
McAlester City Council 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

  

REVISED Regular Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, July 10, 2012 – 6:00 pm 

McAlester City Hall – Council Chambers 
28 E. Washington 

 
Steve Harrison.....................................................................................Mayor 
Weldon Smith ................................................................................Ward One 
John Titsworth ............................................................................ Ward Two 
Travis Read…………………………......................................... Ward Three 
Robert Karr..................................................................................Ward Four 
Buddy Garvin …………………………………........................... Ward Five 
Sam Mason, Vice Mayor ............................................................... Ward Six 
 
Peter J. Stasiak ........................................................................ City Manager 
William J. Ervin ...................................................................... City Attorney 
Cora M. Middleton .......................................................................City Clerk 

 
This agenda has been posted at the McAlester City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on 
the City website:  www.cityofmcalester.com within the required time frame.   

The Mayor and City Council request that all cell phones and pagers be turned off or set to vibrate.  Members of the 
audience are requested to step outside the Council Chambers to respond to a page or to conduct a phone 
conversation. 

The McAlester City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  Sign interpretation or other special assistance for disabled 
attendees must be requested 48 hours in advance by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 918.423.9300, Extension 
4956.   

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Announce the presence of a Quorum. 
 
 
INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Glenn Meyer, Trinity Lutheran Church 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
SWEARING-IN CERMONY 
Judge Deborah Hackler will administer the Oath of Office to the Council member: 
 
 Oath of Office – Council member, 

o Ward 2, John Titsworth 

http://www.cityofmcalester.com/


July 10, 2012 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting  Page 2 of 7 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Residents may address Council regarding an item that is not listed on the Agenda.  Residents must provide their 
name and address.  Council requests that comments be limited to five (5) minutes. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by 
one motion.  There will not be separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is desired, that item will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 
A. Approval of the Minutes from the June 19, 2012 Special Meeting of the McAlester City 

Council. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 
 
B. Approval of Claims for June 20 through July 3, 2012. (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) 
 
C. Ratify and approve a Lease Purchase between First National Bank & Trust Company and 

the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, for: 
 

1)  Lease of One new 2008 Ford #450 Type III Ambulance with Wheeled Coach 
Conversion VIN: 1FDX#45P18DA74637. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 

 
2) Lease of 2011 Freightliner M2106 33000#GVW Truck Chassis VIN:  

1FVACYBS1BDAY3398. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 
 
D. Approve and Authorize the Mayor to sign an American Red Cross Shelter Agreement 

between the City of McAlester and the American Red Cross for the use of the Southeast 
Expo Center as an emergency shelter during a disaster. (Mel Priddy, Director Community 
Services) 

 
E. Approve and Authorize the Mayor to sign a Kiamichi Area Nutrition Project/Center 

Sponsor Contract with the City of McAlester to expire June 30, 2013.  (Mel Priddy, Director 
Community Services) 

 
F. Authorize the Mayor to sign PetroQuest Energy, L.L.C. Division Order for Property No. 

35600076, Orval 1-2H; Section 2, Township 6 North, Range 14 East, Pittsburg County, 
Oklahoma.  The DO is confirmation that the well has reached producing status, provides 
a legal description of the property and confirms the City’s decimal interest in revenues.  
(Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 

 
G. Consider, and Act Upon, a Contract for Professional Service between Robison 

International, Inc. and the McAlester Defense Support Association and the City of 
McAlester.  (Peter J. Stasiak, City Manager) 

 
H. Consider, and act to designate, City Manager, Pete Stasiak as the McAlester City Official 

authorized to sign the 2011-2012 collective bargaining agreement between the City and 
the IAFF. 

 



July 10, 2012 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting  Page 3 of 7 
 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
All persons interested in any ordinance listed under Scheduled Business shall have an opportunity to be heard in accordance 
with Article 2, Section 2.12(b) of the City Charter. 

 
 An Ordinance of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, amending Ordinance No. 2392 which 

established the budget for fiscal year 2011-2012; repealing all conflicting ordinances; 
providing for a severability clause; and declaring an emergency. 

 
 An Ordinance of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, amending Ordinance No. 2425 which 

established the budget for fiscal year 2012-2013; repealing all conflicting ordinances; 
providing for a severability clause; and declaring an emergency. 

 
 An Ordinance of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, amending Chapter 106, Utilities, 

Article IV Division 2. Municipal Collection Service, Section 106-327 (b), charges for 
removal of permissible solid waste; and declaring an emergency. 

 
 
SCHEDULED BUSINESS 
 
1.  Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 2392 which established 

the budget for fiscal year 2011-2012; repealing all conflicting ordinances; providing for a 
severability clause; and declaring an emergency.   (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) 

 
Executive Summary 
Motion to approve the budget amendment ordinance.   
 
2. Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 2425 which established 

the budget for fiscal year 2012-2013; repealing all conflicting ordinances; providing for a 
severability clause; and declaring an emergency.  (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) 

 
Executive Summary 
Motion to approve the budget amendment ordinance.   
 
3. Consider, and act upon, declaring certain vehicles and equipment surplus property in 

accordance with the Code of Ordinances Sec 2-286 and authorize the City Manager to 
sell them in accordance with the Code of Ordinances Sec 2-287.  (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial 
Officer) 

 
Executive Summary 
Motion to declare certain vehicles and equipment surplus property and authorizing the sale of them. 
 
4. Consider, and act upon, a Resolution declaring certain buildings as dangerous by reason 

of being dilapidated and a detriment to the welfare of the public and community. (Peter J. 
Stasiak, City Manager) 



July 10, 2012 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting  Page 4 of 7 
 

Executive Summary 
Motion to approve a Resolution declaring certain buildings as dilapidated and subject to removal. 
 
5. TABLED FROM PREVIOUS MEETING. Consider and act upon, the funding of 

McAlester Main Street Association in the amount of $28,000 and for FY 2012-2013.   
(Peter J. Stasiak, City Manager) 

 
Executive Summary 
Funding of McAlester Main Street Association in the amount of $28,000 for FY 1213. 
 
6. Discussion on funding options for major street improvements.  (Councilman Travis Read) 
 
Executive Summary 
Explore funding avenues for major street improvements. 
 
7. Consider, and act upon, a Personal Services Agreement with Jerry W. Mincher for 

haybaling of City of McAlester Property located south of Highway 31 adjacent to the 
west side of the Indian Nation Turnpike in the amount of $857.99.  (Cora Middleton, City 
Clerk) 

 
Executive Summary 
Motion to approve a Personal Services Agreement with Jerry W. Mincher for haybaling of City of McAlester 
Property located south of Highway 31 adjacent to the west side of the Indian Nation Turnpike in the amount of 
$857.99. 
 
8. Consider, and Act Upon, a Pledge and Guarantee document which authorizes the annual 

renewal of the Participation Agreement with the Association for Landfill Financial 
Assurance. (John C. Modzelewski, P.E., City Engineer and PW Director) 

 
Executive Summary 
Motion to approve the document and authorize the Mayor to sign after review and approval by City Attorney’s 
Office. 
 
9. Consider, and act upon, amending Solid Waste ordinance, Sec. 106-327 to reflect a 2.5% 

increase from Allied in the commercial rates listed for FY 2012-2013. (Peter J. Stasiak, City 
Manager) 

 
Executive Summary 
Motion to approve the amending ordinance.   
 
10. Consider, and act upon approving a sewer main extension to serve the South Side of US 

69 Bypass. (Peter J. Stasiak, City Manager) 
 
Executive Summary 
Motion to approve Exhibit (A) or Exhibit (B) for a sewer main extension to serve the South Side of US 69 Bypass.                          
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Any matter not known or which could not have been reasonably foreseen prior to the time of posting the Agenda in 
accordance with Sec. 311.9, Title 25, Oklahoma State Statutes. 



July 10, 2012 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting  Page 5 of 7 
 

 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT (Peter J. Stasiak) 
 Report on activities for the past two weeks. 
 
 
REMARKS AND INQUIRIES BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
MAYORS COMMENTS AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
 
 
RECESS COUNCIL MEETING  
 
 
CONVENE AS McALESTER AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
Majority of a Quorum required for approval 
 
 Approval of the Minutes from the June 26, 2012 Regular Meeting of the McAlester 

Airport Authority. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 
 
 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B, regarding claims ending July 3, 

2012. (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) 
 
 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 1, an Ordinance amending Ordinance 

No. 2392 which established the budget for fiscal year 2011-2012; repealing all 
conflicting ordinances; providing for a severability clause; and declaring an emergency.  
(Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) 

 
 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 2, an Ordinance amending Ordinance 

No. 2425 which established the budget for fiscal year 2012-2013; repealing all 
conflicting ordinances; providing for a severability clause; and declaring an emergency.  
(Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) 

 
ADJOURN MAA 
 
 
CONVENE AS McALESTER PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY 
Majority of a Quorum required for approval 
 
 Approval of the Minutes from the June 26, 2012 Regular Meeting of the McAlester 

Public Works Authority (Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 
 
 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B, regarding claims ending July 3, 

2012. (Toni Ervin,  Chief Financial Officer) 
 



July 10, 2012 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting  Page 6 of 7 
 

 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item C, Ratify and approve a Lease 
Purchase between First National Bank & Trust Company and the City of McAlester, 
Oklahoma, for: 
2) Lease of 2011 Freightliner M2106 33000#GVW Truck Chassis VIN:  

1FVACYBS1BDAY3398. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 
 

 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 1, an Ordinance amending Ordinance 
No. 2392 which established the budget for fiscal year 2011-2012; repealing all 
conflicting ordinances; providing for a severability clause; and declaring an emergency.  
(Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) 

 
 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 2, an Ordinance amending Ordinance 

No. 2425 which established the budget for fiscal year 2012-2013; repealing all 
conflicting ordinances; providing for a severability clause; and declaring an emergency.  
(Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) 

 
 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 3, declaring certain vehicles and 

equipment surplus property in accordance with the Code of Ordinances Sec 2-286 and 
authorize the City Manager to sell them in accordance with the Code of Ordinances Sec 
2-287.  (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) 

 
 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 4, a Resolution declaring certain 

buildings as dangerous by reason of being dilapidated and a detriment to the welfare of 
the public and community. (Peter J. Stasiak, City Manager) 

 
 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 8, a Pledge and Guarantee document 

which authorizes the annual renewal of the Participation Agreement with the Association 
for Landfill Financial Assurance. (John C. Modzelewski, P.E., City Engineer and PW Director) 

 
 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 9, amending Solid Waste ordinance, 

Sec. 106-327 to reflect a 2.5% increase from Allied in the commercial rates listed for FY 
2012-2013. (Peter J. Stasiak, City Manager) 

 
 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 10, approving a sewer main extension 

to serve the South Side of US 69 Bypass. (Peter J. Stasiak, City Manager) 
 
ADJOURN MPWA 
 
 
RECONVENE COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Recess into Executive Session in compliance with Section Title 25 Section 307 C (10)  et.seq. Oklahoma Statutes, to wit: 

 



July 10, 2012 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting  Page 7 of 7 
 

1) Proposed executive session pursuant to Title 25, Sec. 307 (C) (10): All nonprofit 
foundations, boards, bureaus, commissions, agencies, trusteeships, authorities, councils, 
committees, public trusts, task forces or study groups, supported in whole or part by 
public funds or entrusted with the expenditure of public funds for purposes of conferring 
on matters pertaining to economic development, including the transfer of property, 
financing, or the creation of a proposal to entice a business to locate within their 
jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter discussed would interfere with the 
development of products or services or if public disclosure would violate the 
confidentiality of the business.  More specifically a proposed expansion of an existing 
McAlester employer/business: (Project Spider). 

 
 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
Take any action as a result from Executive Session. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 

I certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on this ______ day of _________ 2012 at _______ a.m./p.m. as 
required by law in accordance with Section 303 of the Oklahoma Statutes and that the appropriate news media was 
contacted.  As a courtesy, this agenda is also posted on the City of McAlester website:  www.cityofmcalester.com.   

_______________________________ 
Cora M. Middleton, City Clerk 

http://www.cityofmcalester.com/


Council Chambers 
Municipal Building 
June 19,2012 

The McAlester City Council met in Special session on Tuesday, June 19, 2012, at 5:30 P.M. 
after proper notice and agenda was posted, June 15, 2012, at 4:51 P. M. 

Call to Order 
Mayor Harrison called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call 

Council Roll Call was as follows: 

Present: 
Absent: 
Presiding: 

Weldon Smith, Robert Karr, Buddy Garvin, Sam Mason & Steve Harrison 
Travis Read 
Steve Harrison, Mayor 

Staff Present: John Modzelewski, City Engineer/Public Works Director; Toni Ervin, Chief 
Finance Officer; Peter Stasiak, City Manager and Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

Scheduled Business 

1. 	 Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance adopting the budget of the City of McAlester, 
Oklahoma, for the fiscal year 2012-2013; providing for severability clause; and declaring 
an emergency. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2425 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF' McALESTER, 

OKLAHOMA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013. 


A motion was made by Councilman Garvin and seconded by Karr to approve ORDINANCE 

NO. 2425. 


Before the vote, Manager Stasiak expressed his appreciation for the input from the Council and 

all of the work from staff in putting this budget together. He stated that with the adoption of the 

budget tonight the City would meet all requirements. 


There was no further discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 


AYE: Councilman Smith, Karr, Garvin, Mason & Mayor Harrison 

NAY: None 


Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 




Councilman Garvin moved to approve the EMERGENCY CLAUSE. The motion was seconded 
by Councilman Smith. There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: 	 Councilman Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

2. 	 Consider, and act upon, authorizing the mayor to sign an Engagement Letter with Cole & 
Reed, P.C. for audit services for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. 

A motion was made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Garvin to authorize the 
mayor to sign an Engagement Letter with Cole & Reed, P.C. for audit services for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2012. 

Before the vote, Ms. Ervin addressed the Council explaining that the Audit & Finance Advisory 
Committee had rated each of the received proposals and the firm of Cole & Reed, P.C. had 
received the top rating. They had also asked Ms. Ervin if she had been satisfied with the work 
that this firm had performed during the previous audit. There was no other discussion, and the 
vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Councilman Smith moved for the 
meeting to be adjourned, seconded by Councilman Garvin. There was no discussion, and the 
vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Smith, Mason, Garvin, Karr & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried, and the meeting was adjourned at 5:35 P.M. 

ATTEST: 	 Steve Harrison, Mayor 

2 



Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

3 



CLAIMS FROM 


JUNE 20, 2012 
THRU 


JULY 3,2012 




7/03/20:2 3: PN EEGULAR I::EPJ;__qTMEN'l' rAYMENT PAGE: 

PACKET: 7/10/201 

VEN;)OR SET: 

FUND 

:JESCRIPT10N CH~CK# .lli10UN'r 

T?_-:',V EXP OMt >iEw CFF1CIAL 060462 .47 

ALtO 060463 cO. 00 

E:MPLOYE:S IRAv 060454 122.27 

BRETT BREWER TRIWE 060491 85. 

I1ILLSR 1~2012C627]848 CLOTH:::::-.JG C:O:'H:::NG REIi-15 060492 97.56 

DIS?ANCE 

TELEPHO;;JE UTI PH;)KE :n1 L- LONS .96 

01-AO:::OLl2 Jl.CS 

01 .00 

Ol-AJ0170 ADA ?A?E.:E 

1--345127 01 REPAIRS 060516 183.42 

.A.DAl-1S VALUE 

FERTI:.rZE:R -BP,LI­ 00 

ONE 

TESrC};G! H~)NT:-1LY FEE-JUNE ~60519 :;;0.00 

2>1-}>.00267 .tt:::RGAS 

1--9005592712 060520 83. 

c6:520 82. 

1-9006018225 060528 .BO 

1-9C06078150 437 

61.98 

47.79 

1-9006315159 060520 95.58 

:-902405034 060520 48.89 

1-::9:::2048210 REPAIRS & MAl LEASES 062:520 o. 
1-99:)2048210 REPAIRS HAl ~EASES 060520 46.00 

1--9902405034 R~?A=RS NAI LEASES 

::n-A00362 :Ol4MUNICAT::J 

::N:'ERNET SE?,V S7ATION 66 ,95 

SUP 60.03 

INTERNET SERV DEPT 060493 32.95 

1-2:::1206273846 REPA:::RS & :NTERNET SV,s-CEMETERY C:6G493 66.03 

060526 

MAI REPAIR I TE~S :::~oR WA1'EHU':-G 



7/03/2012 3;04 PM REGTJLI\R DE?ARTNENT Pl'"Y;-:SNT PAGE: 

CLAH-1S FOR 

VENDOE SET: 01 

01 ::;E~ERAL 

VENDOR ACCOUNT N]\.;.V,E CHECK# 

.n.T~\CJDS c:onti.r.ued 
01 t'JEEDED 

01-J\.C0770 C;J 

-5432203 & l"'Ll1IK 060528 

~::432203 REPAIR & PildN 

01 -:}432203 REPA!R & MldN M! SC REPAIR 

i5 AUTO 

NEEDED 

OKI,AHOHfl. 

-5547308 

BEHAC SUPP:UY 

662106.0Cl 01 -5542316 RE?l."IRS & 

6EL'376. 001 01 -.S542316 REPAIRS PAR'?S 

1-5.1663996. REPAIRS £. 11..;:;'; PARTS ':'0 REPAIR 8.ESTROOMS 060535 

I-Sl664 825. R"P1URS 060535 

1-S1665146.001 REPAIRE 060535 

RE?AIRS [. 

REP?I~5 & 

BIG SHOP 

1-10:)050 01 REPAIRS & MAl TE:NN1S PGH 060538 

FEED 

01 sup £'OOD ,~S 060539 

?R 

01 -5542316 REP}\1RS ;~"Al LABOR TO :?EMOVE TR£E 

1N'MAN 

01 LABO UMPIRE GAMSS 060543 

OI-BOG640 

-55.t;:4202 OPERP.T ING SUP ('ISLD SU?PL:::ES 

01 -5225401 COMPUTER SCA>J}~ER FOR :JSE 

01 -'::324202 HEADSETS 060546 

Ol-CC0209 

1-177266 01 2UP MIse FOR E?EFIGHTE? 060547 

CATHEY " L. 

-::'542202 OPERATINS SUP POOL ?E. TERS 060548 

ANOUN':.' 

248_43 

110. 

341 

.09 

325.37 

69 
3 _41 

91 

3.79 

J.5~. 30 

43 

190.3.:J 

.00 

64. 

00 

,GO 

1,313.23 

427.50 

212.50 

http:1,313.23


00 

7/C3/2012 04 PM ?EGISTER 

PACKET: 08318 

VENDOR 01 

FJND 01 GENERJ.>..L FUN:) 

VENDOR NI;}lE ACCCU::-JI NJlu\1E 

0: 

GJ\S 

SUPPLY 

1-496947 

()1-C00472 ICON ENTERPRISES, 

:::-99988 

01 -5225401 

SOOTWARE MAIN 

TEcH 

D & 

~-12082A 

01-DC0143 PLUS 

··20::"2-] YRLY 

DOLESE 

STREE':' 

RE?AIR 

REPAIR 

ASPrL;;:::"T 

0: 

A'?TORNEYS 

20:2 01 

I-OKMCAI05686 REPJl..:;:RS & HA: 

.MAr 

F00038 EX 

:::-7-928-29280 01 OP~RATING stiP 

Cl-f08170 FIRST NATICNJ'<.L 

1-072812-#133 LEASE PAYl-1ENT 

G & RSNTAL 

1-12432 

:-12536 

1-201207033876 

en 

-55472C3 

-5542316 

REPAIRS 

REPAIRS 

HEPAIRS 

.?EPAIRS 

&: MAl 

& ~n..I 

& MAl 

& N)".1 

NP 

DES IGN MAINT 

WEB ;]ES IGN & H]UNT, 

REPA1R-CI':'Y HALL 

MEMBERSHl 

CONCRETE H1SC 

CCNCRETE fOR MIse 

CONCRETE FOR Mise 

LEGAL FE1:S-MTH:"'Y RSTlUNER 

X;:SC r<.EPAIR 

HISC I TEl·iS NEEDED 

AS NEED 

#133 

TRACHOE RE;'HAL NECESSA 

TRJ\.CHJE RENTAI.­ NEEDED 

?ENTF.l KECESSA 

PLBG REPA1R 

EMER F',ENTAL PLBG REPAIR 

PAGE: 

67 

060549 

G60552 

060::55 

060555 

060562 

06G5E6 

060566 

~6Q566 

1-1110UNT 

39 

00 

4,265. 

~f056.66 

2, 

.00 

278. 

202.00 

.00 

.66 

3,125.00 

111. 

131. 56 

.00 

00 

.23 

45.13 

19 

http:3,125.00


7/83/2012 C4 P~! REGULA~q DEPARTMENT ?AYMENT 

PACKET: CLAIMS ;;1012012 

VE:NDOR 

FUND 

GIL DBSCRI?':'ION 

ABATEXSNT2 MOI-JI~G 1, .50 

F.BATEHENT'S MOI-JING 060567 

GRISSON 

01 REPAIRS & MAl MC:IJE~ REPAIR 

1-277007 OJ.. -554231 ?EPA1RS & MOWER REPAIR 060569 

1-10113 01 -58 STREET REpAIR FREIGH:' HAuL GRAVE 060570 J, 

-5431331 EMPLQYEE 'I'MV TRAVEL REIMB 060466 322.32 

INC. 

I-C2741£A 01 DIS?ATCHER 

0':-I00110 

060573 ~6.83 

4,60 

860573 14. 

149 82 

OJ.. -S21I202 30.89 

C1-100120 TYLER 

:::-;::25-44772 01 2 YEAR 05::;574 00 

01 NO~n~LY 060575 .00 

01 MONTHLY SUPFORT FEE-IT OEOS75 

:-.l}l..TION W;~CL:SSALE 

-5543202 OPERATINS 559,61 

I-564S61: ell - 5 54 32 02 ;JPERATING 21L 

1-5652164 Qr -5544202 O?ERATING 710. 

01-180259 

SCP 288.29 

SUP 06e577 638.64 

INVESTlGATIVE CONCEPTS, 

1-:21202390 0: ~5653348 DReG TESTINGI NEW HIRE BA::::KSROUND 

JIM WOOD 

1-12--14331 01 & 'V.AI Ale REPAI3\S STIPE GYM 060580 2, ,18 

01-JOOt;3L; p.:JSTIN I JR. 

}\J3ATEMEN?S HQWING G60581 400.0::: 

KEITH R ':"'YON 

F<.EPAIRS PLBG REPAIRS POOL 180.00 



7/03/2012 

PACKET: 

VE~DCR 

FUKD 

01 

01 

PH 

C:"'AIi'1S 

REGULAR DEPAATMENT PAYMENT 

S/L ACCOUN':' DSSCRI PT h::N 

1-2512 CHIPS-KOHAR 060584 

LIZIK 

01 -::;212308 CONTR.4CTED CONTR.,~C? FEE 

LOCKE CO. 

I-l/3::"OS87-00 REP}\..IRS &. G60S8B 

1-}7943696-00 REPAIRS 060588 36 

::::60588 _34 

=-4.70 

REPAIRS IIEl1S 

R::?AIRS :TEMS 

RE?AI?,S ITEHo 

01 -5549203 REPAIRS; lTEH5 060588 

1-18125967-00 81 -55482:::3 RE?AIRs XAI MIse RS?AIR & HAINT I'I'EMS 

=-=-e1338Sl-~O S 1 REP}\2:RS & VlAI t-ESC MF-.INT l':'E:-:,S 067588 

LOWE' 

06C539 

060589 

01 -5548316 :;:TEMS 

1-02844 01 -5549316 ITEMS 060589 

1-06270 01 060.589 

1-07500 01 ::6::589 23.73 

I-CE12S C 1 C60539 E_92 

1-0901497 Q1 C160539 113.96 

5548316 

01 -5321202 

-5547203 REPAI RS [, HAl Ml sc PtAINT £, 

1-09375 CPERATING SUPPLIES 

1-lJU I-EHS 060590 

1-09831 SUP OFFTCE 06059:; 

1-09909 HAL 060S9D 11. 41 

1-09989 MAINT SlJPPLIES 060590 199.00 

1-90"48 tJ,AINT SUPPI,IES 060590 

r':EPAIP-s &: MAl CEMENT PATCH 

01 -554231E ?£PAT RS &: MAL 

-55483l6 REPlURS « f-ESC MAINT 

I-910:S4 01 -5213202 OPERA':'lNG rOJ~s fOR 

l"1]<.RSARET - LOV 

T-,J:.ms L~SAL NEEDED 060592 00 

01-[100089 

-5101319 MI SCELLP.NEOUS HEH3ER 68, 



.00 

7/03/2012 

PACKET; 

VENDOR 

FIJN;) 

01 

GENr:BAL FUt\:D 

DSPART:-:ENT Pll.YME:;\'T 

VE~DOR NANE: IT.s}1 # S/L 

01-H0032S '; 9AWKIKS 

fEES -12 GANES 060596 

-5431331 F:M?LOYEE TRAV TRAVS~ REI~B CO:'JF 860469 

1-645844 01 PARTS EQ:JIPMEl'l 

1-10311. ::::~'l'ERNET 

01---~00765 MY-LO?, 

-5431204 :::KCIDEi\T CC;~{AND EQUI P OE0601 

H::)NUME:H CO 

0606e4 

01 ?OOL ITEMS 

Ol-MC0148 He CEN'I'E 

1-1770£ 01 

[;ONALDS REST'JR.A.,,"f':' 

2012 PRISO.iER 068609 

HOL:CAND 

REPAI RS &. 

&. 

P.AI 

},;AI 

CHAI:< S.l"WS 

060010 

OE0510 

060610 

MCALESTER 

PU3::..rCAT:ONS 

1\5 

AS 

KEEDED 

NEECED 

06:1611 

06061 ::. 

J"-DVER'TISING & 

:,£,GAL C6CJ611 

NIX 1"O:\D MERCURY :::NC. 

=-~36311 R2?AIRS &­ Ml-U El1ER REPF.::::RS 

01-000075 0' AUTO 

REFAIR ~AIN :::NV 437S06-::".:MER PART FOR A.'1BCL 

!JI-000:J82 CJl.I(LEY 

I-132650 7 71 

CLOTHIKG 

UNl FoRM 

C;JI FORM PURCHASES 

SAFETY EYEWAF.E 

060618 

C;6-J618 

060618 

.00 

.98 

,GO 

:00. CO 

510.69 

94.00 

113. 

1e6. 

21 

.00 

.80 

11.55 

33.00 

.01 

.49 

.70 

32.30 



':;:'llND en G£:.lEHAL 

OAKLEY 

OKLll. 

1- 9-B&JEFFERSCN 

LltBOR 

01-000520 

01-P00181 PAPA PIZZA 

81-POJ210 C0LF. 

1-78683 

K H.~LL INC 

01 

SERVICEll\EP 

I-201206273843 

C;1-ROO~92 RO~'JALD W BARNES 

REGULAR 

C 1 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

DEPARTMEK'E 

ACCClJNT 

··5210330 

-5225~02 

-0543202 

-5215313 

-:'215313 

-5544309 

r.:s;:; CIU PT ION 

OPE?",J.;.TING sup ~ICENSES 	 FOP 7 

FoR 7 

OPERATING 7 FOOLS 

OPERA':'ING POOLs 

OPER}l.TI:.lG POOLS 

"PEfC~TlNG 

s~? LICENSES FOR POOLS 

REPAIRS & MAl YRLY TNSP-l,IBRAH 

OIL-OK FOR CONTRACT vn THO E. 

5. SUSSCR SUPVEY 

SCFTyiAAE & At; At..JNUJ\.L FEE 

SAFETY 	 SAFETY m.;MD 

r)PERA'::'ING 

OPE?,}\TING 

oPER]:"T:::NG 

COMPUTER COMPIJTER W/DUA-: 

CON'7RACTED MONTHLY CONTEQL 

l]':'IL-KOMAR 

~JTIL-KQMfl....J; PAP-K 

ELEC?RTC LA..;{E 

ELEC'I'HTC U'l'IL ELECT UT:L-MCl\. LAKE PARK 

:JTIL'PD/NARC 

fjTIL~EMER RESP 

LARO UMPIRE FEE.s~l GAMES 

PAGE: 

CHECKH 

860618 

060619 

06C627 

268628 

06%28 

:::6C629 

060495 

060495 

OfOLJ 9:: 

060635 

Al"i:CUNT 

50.00 

50.00 

50. 

00 

1,840, 

.00 

216.0U 

126, 

924,00 

126,00 

158.73 

6C.02 

18 

.73 

.00 

http:OPER}l.TI:.lG


3: 04 PH PltGE: 

PACKET: FOR 

VENDOR I'IEM 

?CTARY CLUB 

1-3936 

"HANNON 
I -20:2tn03381: 

:-010643 

STEVE 

UN1FOR.~SI 

:--'3(1149 

M.ACHI~E LLC 

ADVA>JTAGS 

10677 

1-3l76287156 

I-0031057:;N 

H. L~BER CO. 

IE;:) ALEXANDER 

#3150 

01-T02429 THO}ll..AS DAVIS 

1-201206293861 

c>TOQ540 SOLCTIONS INC 

feOD 

01 

01 -5542203 

01 

-5544202 

01 

01 : 316 

01 

01 

01 -55443C8 

01 -5543203 

& S:)BSCR 

SE 

REPAIRS t-lAI 

OPERA~ING SuF 

C=..OTHING ALLC 

~EP;'.:;:RS & 

REPAIRS & 

CON'TRJ£T 

CON'T INGENCY 

:..ABO 

lie Klj,I 

IX tJ.I'\I 

YEARLY l'4EMBEFSHIP DU2S 

:'::ONTR)1.CT 

EMER 

FOR SB 

POLICE RECRUITS 

REPA::RS TO TRUCK 

KITE JE?F 

t:1~PIRE FEES-16 

EMERGEN::::Y 

t)}'jP I KE 

JluHTORlAL S:)?PLIES-P:)QLS 

JA.N"ITQiUAL 

C68640 

06064l 

060642 

060644 

060£46 

060646 

060646 

060646 

060647 

060E48 

060650 

.00 

.00 

76. 

.00 

.63 

1,380.00 

24.73 

79. 

2,535.00 

8.68 

400.00 

.61 

.00 

304. 

384. 

http:2,535.00
http:1,380.00
http:ONTR)1.CT


7/03/2012 

PACKET: 

VENC'OR SET! 

FeR 7;10/2012 

F:JND 

REGULAR PAY}1ENT HEGISTER PAGE: 

NM·:lE C~ECK# 

u s .sERVlCE 

c-41344C8 060654 

531. J 2 

355.00 

52. 

0; VERNER SHOF 

1-2272 TOOLS CLEF.NT.N-G 

OJ REPAIR & MP-.IN S:G:.JS; & MIse .13 

BRe 

737 

::::-09482 

1-000333 

1-000843 

1-008603 

I-C)163.S 

'-02155 

:;:-:::2227 

1-06087 

1-07425 

1-08969 

OJ 

01 

01 

01 

OJ 

01 

-5653213 

COMPUTER TECH 4 -2 C II Co:t>1PlJ?ER HON ITORS 

F.EP.~IRS & 

OPERATn~G 

:tEPAIRS & 

OPE?.A':'ING 

OP::'?P.':'ING SlJP 

NEEDED 
PICNIC 

=~EEDED 

SUPPlIES 

SUPPLIES 

SUPPI,IES 

j'1.WA'RDS ?ROGRA FOOD & PRIZES FOR PICNIC 

SC"P NISC .sUPPLIES AS ~EEDED 

SUPPLIES NEEDED 

C:)HPUTER MONITORS 

[. PRIZES FOR PIC~IC 

FOR PICN1C: 

06G659 

'J60659 

0606~9 

060659 

060659 

060659 

060659 

860660 

OE066J 

060660 

{)60660 

860660 

06066(: 

060660 

436.74 

29.88 

17.31 

~9B.43 

6.47 

-\IJOOl93 SIG;.JS 

1-:1-1785 

1-11-1818 

01 -S43231(: 

~5432316 

RS?AIRS 

REAIRS , 

Y...l\:: 

V>AI 

LETTER:::;.JG [, STRIPDJ:'; 060661 

060661 

40.00 

450, 

WELDO!>] INC. 

1-841043-00 

1-841817-0: 

01 

o~ REPMRS & L::TES 

;.JESDED 

FOR VEHICLE 

060662 

~ 7 0 

WElTE ELECTR:CAL SLH?PL Y 

I-S1474996.001 

1-514;2800.001 

REPl\IRS & NAI SAFETY SUPP:':E5 

REPAIRS HAl SAFETY SUPPLIES 

~EP1URS S: t-'..l:U SAFETY SUP?LIES 

REPAIRS & MAl HISC: REPAIR &. }.1]I,INT ITEMS 

060664 

060664 

060664 

159.05 

13.50 

.00 

113. 



DE?ARTMENT PAYMSNT REGlSTE:R 

1/10/20l2 

I-S1486098, DOl 

\)1 -5542203 :JG::Hi64 

060664 

%0664 

06065£ 

060664 

"I _35 

6.45 

060665 

060665 32.37 

XE:F:JX 

EQUI PMEKT REN 

FEE 

tEE 

FOR 

FOR 

COPIERS 

FUND GE.NERAL 94, .03 



FeR 7/10120:2 

ITEM # 

&- X::}';'NG 

1-2F1207; 

PA?ER 

:-345451 

AIRGAS 

Ol-A00272 

ALTIVIA 

1-224040 

.l1,.TWOODS 

AUTO PARTS 

1-907534 

01-308108 OIL & 

BEYJ>,C SUPPLY 

1-$1652300.0[;1 

I-31664022 

:;:-Sl .00: 

1-$165/108.001 

I-S16E8398.001 

BLUE (JSA: 

I-656146 

REGU:I...JU-, DEPARTNEI'JT PAYMENT PAGE: :1 

GIL ACC:)::~T 

02 -5974304 

LAB 

LAB 
LJ...B 

T~5T=NG 

TESTING 

860515 

:::58515 

409, 

00 

,00 

90.CO 

21 00 

O? S~'? COPY PAPER-CITY GGC,,] 674 . 

RE?P.l:t:<,S 

REPAIRS 

& 

& MAl WELDER 

C60S20 

060520 

43 

.00 

02 

07 

-5864308 4,642 • 

4, 

:::HEMICALS 

CHEHICALS 

ALUM 

Jl..LUH 

FOR WTP 

FOR h'T? 

3, 

3, .96 

02 SHALL ~OOLS :)60526 ~,124.15 

& 

CHEt11CALS 

tJ.AI PA.l:(TS 

PARTS 

AS 

AS 

168. 

.68 

-5975218 STREET REPAIR FEE TO HAUL G?J\VE;~ 060533 990.00 

e.G 

02 

02 

,,597,,202 

-5975202 

-59752D2 

-5975202 

OPER.}'\TING 

OPEEATI~G 

REPAIRS & 

OPER,1'..TING 

OPEPJ.;.,TING 

CPERATINC; 

OPERATING SUe 

SUP 

ITEHS 

I'TEMS 

1~E:1S 

ITEMS 

ITEgS 

AS 

AS 

NEED 060535 

060535 

060536 

060536 

14.74 

31.BS 

22. 

50. 

,49 

REPJU~S & 

SEWER HAIr; 

RE?A!RS & 

RE 

FR7 FOR 

HYD.?J...NT 

FOR 

cH£~. 

AD.~PTEK 

CHEM. FUM? 

060542 

:.::60542 

,I!) 

06 



7/03/2012 R~GULAR DEPP.RTHEN7 PA'r11ENT ]? 

?j\CKET: FOR 7/l0/2012 

VENDOE 01 

fCND MPWA 

VF,NDOE 

BRENNTAG SCUTHi'~EST 

060544 00 

060544 3, ,00 

01 

060461 lSC 

060494 

01-[0084 C1 CRl'..W:ORD & 

02 F~E5-2::'1~ ADDIT 060551 481],00 

02 CONTI~GENCY \ t:tEVF.TOS!. 10 , 008.00 

eRE::IT FEE 

FEE 916.9 7 

FEE 11226.04 

02 -5975218 08 

02 

(;60555 

060555 

060555 

I-RM12041412 

688.00 

I ··FJ1:2041850 STREET REPAIR CONCRETE: FOR ?,EPA: RS 060556 430, 

::~RM12042203 668 

,00 

766.00 

RESO~JRCE 

1-15777 -5973304 TEST~NG TEST::::NG 100.00 

1-OKl:1CAI05914 .. 11AI BOLTS &. 060562 

:!: -OKM::F.l 05954 &. M.lt= 80:1S & 

I-OKMCP.:0621J BOLTS & S;JPPLIES ~S,99 

I-CKM:::fd06543 & HAItH I TEXS 060562 146, 

060562 

I-OKc1CAI06550 COt-1PRESSQR SUPPLIES OE0562 

I-OKMCAI06571 COMPRESSOR & SI]?PL2ES 142.29 

060562 830,30 

REPAIRS (;, 1-1;;,= 068562 

I-OKMCAI07042 & Mf"I ,14 

I-0i4lCAI07:91 MIse REPAlR &­ ;>fAINT ,55 

I -OKMCA1 G7 258 OFERATl1\G SlJP J;: st;P?LIES 80.90 

Ol··F00170 NAT: ONP,L EANK 



'3 : PM 	 r:r~?}\.I<.T'MENT FA1:1':ENT REGISTER 

;0/2012 

01 

fUND 02 

lTEt·; , 

co!'.t tn'.led 

?AY!':E1\T 

REPAIRS [. 

C 1 :MFRESS SUPPLy 

1-C3',O~8 	 SiJP 

SUP 

SCP 

Q1-I00120 

OPERAT ING SUP 

02 	 REPAIR 

02 REPAIRS S 

co. 
T-8106691 LAB 

CONSULTAN'::'S 

CONSL:~TANT'S 

CG. 

I-7}308 02 

1-73883 -5866230 

1-73885 02 -5866230 

-5866230 

1-0230-433553 	 REPAj ES & f'_~I 

REPAIRS & NAI 

8KlA COMMERCE 

-5267521 CD3G #29 

OTA 

02 TRAV 

}lJ'JALYTICA:" SERVICE 

1-1203352 02 LAB TZST=NG 
02 :"J..l3 TESTDiG 

CATERPI:"'=-'AR & CC}I;.PACTOR 

ROTATING &. PUNP 

OPEN 


MIse 


MONTHLY FEE-CB&C 

BREAK ROO!': 

FOR 

HISC REPAIR [. Y-.AINT 

\-~ATER TESTING 

CR STU 

JR.ll.INAGE S':':)DY/DESIGN 

~\.~TER FOR 

WATER 

Wl\TER 

~lATE.R FOR 

F,$ NEEDEJ- BOT~ 

AS ;.JEEDED-BOTH 

CDBG EDI F #2908 

PASS ESS 

MCKTHLY TESTING fEES 

MONTHLY FES 

?l\GE: 

000564 

060573 

060573 

OEOS/S 

OEOS79 

06059:: 

06059S 

OE:}S95 

060617 

:60617 

060625 

060626 

060626 

.67 

315. 

336 " 

958. 

;, 226, 

14. 

21.76 

1, 83 

80.00 

:89.4.7 

135. 



"1/03/2012 

PACKET: 

VENDOR S£'::': 

04 PM 

083 ~8 

Q 1 

02 MPt-'i.!\ 

FOR 

R:2:S-;JLAR DEPARTl'lENT PAGt:: 14 

~lAHE 1TEH # DEseRl PT I ON CBECK~ 

02439 YRLY :"TRS 06049B 0'" 

GI-R00090 INC 

1-36919 

FOR U\NDFI LL 

FeR UTM 

060632 

REPAIRS £. 1~9.96 

:;:-94794 

1-94829 02 -5974206 CHEM::CAi.S 

FOR. Vi?P 

FOR i·np 

FOR WTP 

CAUS?IC FOR 

068643 

060643 

060643 

OECE.13 

tL 504. 

.00 

4, 

T. 

STREET .88 

Gl-UG0128 SHIP 

~-109910 FEES K:;EDED 060656 29, 

"r:> -521 OPI!~RATING 060660 .40 

I-51 '~8:;591. 

1-51482082. 

1-S1~ 8~459. 081 

REPAIRS 

REPAIRS 

REPA: RS 

& 

MAl 

& HAI 

MISC l1AINT & REPAIR 

REPAIR & }-tAINT I'J'E1.fS 

::T::1'1S 

ITEMS 

ITEMS 

OE0664 

0&v66~ 

0E0664 

16 

129. 

233.09 

ELEC'J'R:: C SUPP 

REPAIRS MAL PARTS ,OR REPAIRS OG0666 239.09 

F~N0 108,390. 



I 7/03/2012 :3: 04 H1 DEPARTMENT ?~.,{MENT 

PACKET; CLJI.Il1S 7/10/2C12 

VENDOR 01 

F:'-:SD .!\UTHORI':'Y 

ITEM # CHECK# AMOUNT 

Ol"'A0020C )\DJlMS VALU~ 

-587620.3 LAND FeR GRiJS 

BRCTHERS 

FOR .00 

I-R.'{)2038511 FOR 060:;55 .00 

"/ CJ F::RST 

FNB ::.oAN 060564 

03 F.IRPORT AUTHORITY .00 



7/03/2012 Gr::PARTMENT REGISTER PAGE: 16 

PACKET; 

VENDOR 

DES::RI?TI0N CHECK# 

~5S49388 SER\i REU1B FOR MEAi. DEL 36.llS 

CO:1PTON 

08 -5549306 CONTRACT 

CCt"~TRAcT 

;]60554 

000554 

EMl'1A E, 

I~2012:J6293866 150.::0 

111 

1-201206273844 08 -SS493LS TELEPfi())lE ur I :JT1L-NUTRITION 0&0497 

08 NUTRITICN . 64 



7;03/2012 04?::1 

PACKET: :)8318 ::::LA:::MS FeR 

01 

09 ;ANDF;a RES. 

ITEM it 

1-51-01 SUB 

TITLE 

1ITLS 

FEE 

FEE 060540 

00 

50 

COUNTRY TESTING! 

I-T1206410A SUB TITLE LAl"JDFli.L S50 



FUND 

3: 04 PM 

083] :::L1UNS 

AIRPORT 

7/10/2012 

GPA,1\JT 

DEPI\.P.TMENT 

ACCOUN"r N;:'14E DESCR I PT TON CHECK# 

:8 

1-4416 24 -5876401 CAPl TAL FIELD FEE-AP 3, ,00 

FUND TOTAL: 3, 



3: 0; PM REGULAR DEPM\TH£NT REGISTER 

PACK~T: 08318 CLAIBS <1/10/2012 

TOURISM 

GIL ACCoUNT 

"- Jl 062 D12 -2 0 1 0/20 11 ~56SSJS3 t-1A::::N STREET P 	 1,050.80 

SOUTHEASTERN 	 O!(LAHot-'lA 

1-49040 27 -5655348 E'EST'iVALi J'JLY J'JLY EVEr..;':' 1.30.0:1 

27 -5655352 PRIDE IN CON TRAer PRlDE IN 	 300.00 

FUND 

http:1,050.80


.98 

3: 04 PN REGULAR 

?ACKET: GR318 FOR 

VEN:lOR SET, 01 

28 EXPO CENTER 

VEK['OR IEH ij }\CCOUNT '8ESCRIPTICN A.."WUNT 

,):-300192 

788354 23 Su .sUPPLIES =-,043 

vJEEDE}\TERS fOR Hf>.:::NT 

O:-t100470 

~56S43J RE?-AIRS I), MAl :JH DOOR AT EXPO 95.00 

OKLL. DEPT Or 

I), tMI 

& HAl 

. 00 

SA;)LER REFRIGERP."ION 

I~2798 REPAIRS 060637 .00 

28 

28 

SUP 

SLIP .80 

01 UNlfIRS':' HOLDINGS, ,--,.P. 

-S6::43~6 & Y2\I MOP SVS- JUNE .00 

28 

L:~ -5654210 

SUPPLIES 

StJ?PLIES 

060660 

060E60 

EXPO 2 , • 54 



7/G3!2G12 ?AD>':EN'? PAGE: 
PACKET: FOR 

VENDOR SET: 

r:JND 

ITEM # GIL NAME DESCRIPTION 

G C !J 

I/O 

I;.JTF.:RJ';AT:::CN,ll,:", 

I~080144,~9 

~'l GO'I£FNHENTr INC 

: ->:1 :.5713 

INC 

I-C274} 

I-;}2305 

29 ~~MD INST" CERTIFICATION ,00 

29 

29 

29 CPEFATING !'HSC SCFPLIES 

FUND 



l;::::J!201;( 3:04 FJ-i REGULAR DEPARTMENT P}\YHENT RJ::GISTER 

PACKE~: 8E3lE CLF.1l1S FOP 7/10/2012 

VENDOR SET: 01 

30 ECoNOHIC 

VENDOR NAME IT£H 

U;l,;"f;?LNl C;:::li.;.sUL':'.n.N':'S I.8 30 10, 

t<POWER ECONOMIC DEVELOP 

DEV 060594 4:. 

34 MCALES:EP. HA:N 

CONTRACT WITH MCALESTER M..;rI,.IN 

~~OR:::HE?,N ~SC;ZOW, :::NC. 

I-f'M7 #7 

!"1EHLBURGER BFAWLEY, INC 

:a;:}SINESS 

BUS:::NESS 

BUS:NEsS 

060616 

06061 

060El6 

CEFT CF C2>1·1E?c£ 

'::-8:2012-#12248 CDse 1 060620 

IN MCALESTER 

HISC PR:::t;E IN IN Mc}\LEST 060630 2 ! 

I NTEP8AT I:JNA':'" ( 

LOBBYING SEP-V '2VS 'J6G63rl 

FUNC TOTAL: 



7/03/2012 

PACKET: 

VEN:COE 

FUND 

FoR 7/:012012 

R£GULA..L:1.. DE?AHTHENT PA"l1'l£NT REGISTER 23 

ACCGUKT NAl1E CHECK# 

35 -58 REP.n.IR,S & REPAIR 226.66 

Ol~A00435 ALWAYS 

& MAL STJ>Ji0 HAMMER 060524 

-5862203 MAl CU'!'TING 7EET~ FOR 381.13 

C-907711 

1-90 7 027 

1-907C9;;' 

1-907 589 

1-907614 

1-9C7871 

I~9Q7904 

1-907912 

CR 

35 -::'862203 

-SB62203 

REPAIRS 

REPAIRS 

REPAIRS 

REPAIRS 

REPI\IRS 

REPAIRS 

REPAI?S 

REPAIRS 

REPAIRS 

& PAl 

& 

& 

& 

& 

& 

MAl 

PAl 

MAl 

MAl 

SMALL 

SYALL 

SY]'...LL 

SK2\LL 

S:tv<.c.ALL 

S}-I.ALL 

PAP.TS 

PARTS 

P.'L"O..TS 

PA.."Q,TS 

PA..,t\TS 

PARTS 

P}\.RTS 

PAFTS 

060528 

OEOS28 

050528 

060529 

06G529 

C 60 52 9 

98,61 

2".98 

83.12 

2'(.93 

,24 

26. :0 

2I.34 

3,64 

-5862203 

S862203 

-S8E2203 

RE:.?AIRS 

REFJ..:::RS 

060529 

060529 

060529 

8. S 8 

.66 

0_57 

01-800150 SEALE.S GOODYEAR T1RES 

1-l1C-195747 

I~MC-195769 

I~HC-196157 

REPAIRS 

REPA:::t<.S 

r.. HAl 

t" MAL 

&: MAl 

& HAl 

& M~;;I 

060534 

860534 

(68534 22. TS 

INc 
:-385222 35 REPAJ:RS ;. BLADES FOR FLAIL 197, 

01-FOC3:Q !o~RONTIER INTNL. 

1-193041 35 REPAJRS & tJ..r...I HYDRO-BUST FOR h'-43 



.78 

7/03/2012 3; PM RSG:'JLAR DEPART~ENT PA'tMEKT PAGE: 

PACKET~ CLAIHS 7/10/20~2 

VENDo.R 01 

F:JND 3S rTEST ptAINTENANCE 

VENDOR NAl:J;:E GIL f.CCOUNT t>ESCRIPTION 

Kl\CH 'NERY C 

1-984086 35 & }1IA I S,-fALL AS NEEDED 06:::583 

ol-MC0045 yiELDING 

I'RAILER 

PEPAIRS TF..F,I LER 

'!'PJ\ ?LER 

RSPAIRS TR4::~2R REPAIR P,A_'RTS 060602 

LIGHTS 060602 

1-57C2 060602 

-N:;0270 CENTEH, =NC , 

REPA1RS & MAl SM,l\:'L p.n.RTS Jo.S OE06 ' 

35 -58622;:;3 REPAIRS PJi..RTS AS 

-58622:;3 REPF-,IRS & PARTS AS 

NIX ,~c. 

1-136087 35 ; YAl 060613 

1-78661 35 & l/.Al 

01-000075 Jl.."JTO ?ARTS 

SPACE FANS 

1<230-434323 -5862203 REPA::RS & l"tAI FeEL ADDIT:VE-FIRE 'TRUCKS 

.RAl·l INC 

107 PROPAc"'lE us:::: 

01-S007~O Y;ACHINE LLC 

AS NEEOE:l 06064S 

AS NEEDED 060645 

01 

-5862203 REPAIRS & Pl>..RTS 

1-623042166 35 REP}:"IRS ~ 

:::1-WO:]269 h'HITES 

35 l-..S NEEDED 060663 

FLEST fOTAL: 

':"01.13 

714.31 

.14 

2,000.00 

220.99 

.00 

.GO 

30.69 

.55 

9.50 

9,980. 

http:2,000.00


3: 04 PM REGU=-AR PA'fHE:JT PAGE: 

08318 FOR 7/1 

01 

FUND 

VENDQ3. GI L )\CCOUNT HAlliE A.~CUNT 

01-A00199 TNC. 

41 -5210480 XCSQU1TO .00 

PAYMENT LEASE P}'.Y))Et":T ON DURA.fA.lctl£H 

Ol-HC0212 3QDY SHOP 

,00 

41 ~APIT.r\L C;;UTION NEW TRUCK :)6061 S 386.43 

AUTOPLEX OF 

:-CEB85490 UTILITY J60633 071.00 

01-sca090 

CAPITF~L QC'TLA REPl,ACEHENT 

CIP FUND 

REPeRT 



PM REGl STER FAGE: 25 

Accom<T TOTF"LS 

BUL'SET eVER AN:iUAL BUDGET OVER 

YEl"" N1\MF. BU:-JG BUDGET 



.3: 04 PM 

Ac:::rJNT 

02 -5974204 

02 -5975284 

02 

02 

02 

REGULAR :JEPARTMENT 

RE?AIRS & Yili:.:lTENJll'ICE 

CHF.MICALS 

ABATE:HENTS 

'CuES 	 SuBSCRIPTIONS 

E.XPENSE 

PE::JG.R..tlJvt 

IK'?EHNET SERVICE 

OPERp.IING SUP?LIES 

?EES 

CONTIN''::;E;NCY HGR) 

EXPENSE 

CONTR1\CTED LA.T\I:J?:::i...L 

RECYCLING CENTER 

REP.Z\:::RS 6: MAINTE)JANCE 

REPAIRS I;. MAINT SUP?LIES 

SMALL 

CHEMTCl\LS 

LAB 

REPAIRS :-'.AINTENAN::S 

AeVERT I S lNC! PRI NT I NG/POS TI.. 

SUPPLIES 

SMALL TOOLS 

EXPt:NSE 

STREET & Kl\.DlTENA1J 

SEW£,( 

R::'S:STER 

83.08 

946. aE 

33.00 

1 G6. co 
125.00 

50.40 

293. 

952.2" 

180 03 

79.95 

9,13S.43 

80. 

7 S.11 

1,124.15 

562.24 

698. co 
1,199. 

3,300. 

403 

,89 

.6iJ 

.61 

.15 

4,500 

2, 

12,000 

000 

21, E-OO 

1,800 

12 f 0)0 

9,GOO 

L 510 

18,300 

4,508 

6,000 

7,000 

000 

10,600 

sao 
GOO 

14:,000 

3,300 

55 , COO 

000 

1,500 

401,200 

32,000 

61, 

6,000 

4,000 

000 

040 

85C 

36,750 

PAGE: 	 27 

·-;=====GROUP 

ANNUF.L BUDGET OVER 

B-;J:JGL:T 

2, 

649. 

1, 

1,363 

1,177.00 

. Q2 

90.39 

,95 

1,531.4 7 

836.5G 

733 24 

224. 

33,011. 

4,349. 

047.85 

293 20 

http:1,177.00
http:1,124.15
http:9,13S.43


f/V.j/iUli .1: PM REGULAR. DEPARTI1ENT PA't1-ENT 

ACCCCNT 

24 -SiPE401 

YEAR 

YEA.Q, 

NC ERRORS 

CF REPeRT «* 

ACCOUNT TOTA-:S 

BUDGET 

3, aDO 

& HAl NISNlLNCE 

SERVICES 

TELE?HOKE UTI:"ITY 

780. Q::; 

2,300.:::'0 

M.l\lN S7REET PROGFAH 

REP}"\JRS & K:>"INTENJV\!CE: 000 

0PER:l\TING S~}PPLIES 5,000 

6, 

201, 

120.00 

BUS INESS DEVEI;OPMENT EX?EN 0 1)0 

CApITAL OUTLAY OQO 

& !.f;.AINTENlt..NCE 376,87 2 

PETRO;:,E:.n~ ?RCDUC?S 

::::CNT 1N::;:SNCY 

CAPIT.L~L OUTLAY 

OUTLAY 

OCTLAY 

TOTALS 

CONSULTANT S 

SERVICES 

LEASE PAYMENTS 

ijB908 

LE.ll.SE PAYMENTS 

~119817 ?AYMENTS 

CJBG j EDI F LeAN 

LEASE ?AYME:N'::'S 

TOTALS 401.54 

y 

. ~O 

981.29 

298.20 

y 

3,107.50 

.00 

http:3,107.50


'ACKR'f: 

VENDOR 

8ANK 

08318 

SET: 01 

FNB 

CLAIMS FOR 7/10/2012 

FIRST NATIONAL BANK 

'lEN DOR NAME 1 L D , D£SC 

F"'JND 

01 

n 
02 

02 

03 

08 

08 

09 

24 

27 

28 

29 

30 

35 

41 

ALL 

PAGE: 19 

CHECK 

TYPE. 

POSTING PERIOD 

PERIOD 

6/2012 

712012 

6/2012 

7j20~2 

712012 

6/2012 

7/2012 

7/2012 

7/2012 

7/2012 

7/20] 

7/2012 

7/2012 

7/2012 

7!2Q12 

CHECK 

DATE DISCOUNT 

RECAP '* * 

/\MOUNT 

8,707,36CR 

26,249.67CR 

3, Q80.03CR 

104,910.90CR 

8,421.00CR 

152.92eR 

589.72CR 

3,387.92CR 

3,450.00CR 

4,130.00CR 

2,634.54CR 

623.05eR 

124,396.45CR 

9,980.02CR 

43,386.27CR 

404,499.85CR 

AMOUNT 
CHECK 

Nott 

CHECK 

AMOUNT 



-3Jl::l:lO S,)lCl3lJ 
i 

IFirst National Bank 
&: Trust Co. of McAlester Member FDIC \ 

\,--NO 031\13 

June 27, 2012 

City of McAlester 
P. O. Box 578 

McAlester, Oklahoma 74502 


Attention: Cora Middleton, City Clerk 


RE: Lease Purchase No. 132 and 137 

Dear Ms. Middleton: 


Enclosed you will please find Ratifications for the above numbered leases for Mayor Harrison's 
signature. 


Once I receive the signed originals I will obtain Mr. Nelson's signature and return you a signed 

copy of both. 


I appreciate your assistance and if you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

;;Ydd4~~.. 1j· 
Kattfv CroJl1. 

Compliance!CRA!BSA Officer 


encs. 

235 East Choctaw P. 0. Box 948 McAlester, Oklahoma 74502 918.426.0211 Fax 918.426.6335 



RATIFICATION OF LEASE 

On June 5, 2009, a Lease Purchase was entered in! 
National Bank & Trust Co., McAlester, Oklahoma, as Lessor a 
Oklahoma, a Municipal Corporation, as Lessee, in connection \tvllfl me rent and lease of 
the following described equipment: 

One new 2008 Ford E450 Type III Ambulance with Wheeled Coach Conversion 
ViN: lFDXE45P18DA74637 

Lessor and Lessee hereby desire and adopt, ratify and confirm the above 
referenced Lease and all of its terms and provisions. 

CITY OF MCALESTER FIRST NATIONAL BANK & TR CO. 

Steve Harrison, Mayor Roi Nelson, President & 
CEO 

Oate:_______ Oate:______ 

FNBICITY Of MCALESTER LEASE NO. 132 



-------

RATIFICATION OF LEASE 
1',.2 It 

On July 28, 2010, a Lease Purchase was entered ;t 
National Bank & Trust Co., McAlester, Oklahoma, as Lesso. _.._ "J r, 
Oklahoma, a Municipal Corporation, as Lessee, in connection with the rent and lease of 
the following described equipment: 

2011 Freightliner m2106 33000#GVW Truck chassis IN:1 FVACYBS1BDAY3398 
with any and all equipment, accessories and attachments to said vehicle; 
One new DuraPatcher Truck Mounted Style Spray Injection Road Repair 
Machine; and 
One new DuraPatcher 6,000 gal. Gravity Feed Vertical Emulsion Storage Tank. 

Lessor and Lessee hereby desire and adopt, ratify and confirm the above 
referenced Lease and all of its terms and provisions. 

CITY OF MCALESTER FIRST NATIONAL BANK & TR CO. 

Steve Harrison, Mayor Roi Nelson, President & CEO 

Date: 

FNB/CI1Y OF MCALESTER LEASE NO, 137 



10151 East 11 th StreetAmerican Red Cross 
Tulsa AI'ea Chapter Tulsa, OK 74128 

Emergency Services 918-831-1109 
Fax: 918-831-1129 

www.oklahomaredcross.org 

American Red Cross 
Shelter Agreement 

The American National Red Cross ("Red Cross"), a not-for-profit corporation chartered by the United States 
Congress, provides services to individuals, families and communities when disaster strikes. The disaster relief 
activities of the Red Cross are made possible by the American public, as the organization is supported by private 
donations and facility owners who permit their buildings to be used as a temporary refuge for disaster victims. 
This agreement is between the Red Cross and a facility owner ("Owner") so the Red Cross can use the facility as 
an emergency shelter during a disaster. 

DR#: ___~.... ______~..____ Facility: 

Parties and Facility 
Owner: 

Legal name: se~+~_~_ ___._..._ .. _._.... ___~ 
Chapter: _.___... . ...______~_______ 
24-Hour Point of Contact: ~ ! 

Name and title: ~(rCJ U.f-J1 b1 UlI{SCT:!L...__ ___ 
Work phone: q(f· 4;'0 :j}tiilt!. Cell phone/pager: 11f - 4e1t cf ... I qZ:3 

Address for Legal. Not.ices $1;0 4.·t Itw .1.0 
.. 91Lt A:ltfdir, rJ1 f452~f-_-_----­

-.--~...-------- --_._-- ---­~----------

Red Cross: 
Legal name: 
Chapter: 
24-Hour Point 

Name and title: Samantha Henry 

8-831-1272 Cell phone/pager: _9_~18....-.._69~1__-._1.1....2~7___ 

Copies of legal notices must also be sent to: 
The American National Red Cross, Office of the General Counsel, 
2025 E Street, NW, Washington DC 20006 

and 
The American National Red Cross, Disaster Operations, 
2025 E Street NW, Washington, DC 20006. 

1 Rev, 12-07 

http:www.oklahomaredcross.org


Shelter Facility: 
(Insert name and complete street address of building or, if multiple buildings, write "See attached 
Facility List" and attach Facility List including complete street address of each building that is part of 
this Agreement). 

----16iJ.--"><() 0 iJ-It:Wf!;R .;;;..70 
___~LL~~~j:J 1450 1 __________...._~ 

Terms and Conditions 

1. Use of Facility: Upon request and if feasible, the Owner will permit the Red Cross to use the Facility on a 
temporary basis as an emergency public shelter. 

2. Shelter Management: The Red Cross Will have primary responsibility for the operation of the shelter and will 
designate a Red Cross official, the Shelter Manager, to manage the sheltering activities. The Owner will designate 
a Facility Coordinator to coordinate with the Shelter Manager regarding the use of the Facility by the Red Cross. 

3. Condition of Facility: The Facility Coordinator and Shelter Manager (or designee) will jointly conduct a pre­
occupancy survey of the Facility before it is turned over to the Red Cross. They will use the first page of the 
FacilitY/Shelter.. Opening/Closing Form, available on CrossNet, to record any existing damage or conditions. The 
Facility Coordinator will identify and secure all equipment that the Red Cross should not use while sheltering in 
the Facility. The Red Cross will exercise reasonable care while using the Facility as a shelter and will make no 
modifications to the Facility without the express written approval of the Owner. 

4. Food Services: Upon request by the Red Cross, and if such resources exist and are available, the Owner will 
make the food service resources of the Facility, including food, supplies, equipment and food service workers, 
available to feed the shelter occupants. The Facility Coordinator will designate a Food Service Manager to 
coordinate the provision of meals at the direction of and in cooperation with the Shelter Manager. The Food 
Service Manager will establish a feeding schedule, determine food service inventory and needs, and supervise 
meal planning and preparation. The Food Service Manager and Shelter Manager will jointly conduct a pre­
occupancy inventory of the food and food service supplies in the Facility before it is turned over to the Red Cross. 

5. Cu?todial Services: Upon request by the Red Cross and if such resources exist and are available, the Owner 
will make its custodial resources, including supplies and custodial workers, available to provide cleaning and 
sanitation services at the shelter. The Facility Coordinator will designate a FaCility Custodian to coordinate the 
provision of cleaning and sanitation services at the direction of and in cooperation with the Shelter Manager. 

6. Security: In coordination with the Facility Coordinator; the Shelter Manager, as he or she deems necessary 
and appropriate, will coordinate with law enforcement regarding any public safety issues at the Shelter. 

7. Signage and Publicity: The Red Cross may post signs identifying the shelter as a Red Cross shelter in 
locations approved by the Facility Coordinator and will remove such signs when the shelter is closed. The Owner 
will not issue press releases or other publicity concerning the shelter without the express written consent of the 
Shelter Manager. The Owner will refer all media questions about the shelter to the Shelter Manager. 

8. Closing the Shelter: The Red Cross will notify the Owner or Facility Coordinator of the closing date for the 
shelter. Before the Red Cross vacates the Facility, the Shelter Manager and Facility Coordinator will jointly 
conduct a post-occupancy survey, using the second page of the Shelter/Facility Opening/Closing Form to record 
any damage or conditions. The Shelter Manager and Facility Coordinator or Food Service Manager will conduct a 
post-occupancy inventory of the food and supplies used during the shelter operation. 

2 Rev. 12-07 



9. 	 Reimbursement: The Red Cross will reimburse the Owner for the following: 

a. 	 Damage to the Facility or other property at Owner, reasonable wear and tear excepted, resulting from the 
operations of the Red Cross. Reimbursement for facility damage will be based on replacement at actual 
cash value. The Red Cross will select from among bids from at least three reputable contractors. The 
Red Cross is not responsible for storm damage or other damage caused by the disaster. 

b. 	 Reasonable costs associated with custodial and food selVice personnel which would not have been 
incurred but for the Red Cross's use of the Facility for sheltering. The Red Cross will reimburse at per­
hour, straight-time rate for wages actually incurred but will not reimburse for (i) overtime or (ii) costs of 
salaried staff. 

c. 	 Reasonable, actual, out-at-pocket operational costs, including the costs of the utilities indicated below, to 
the extent that such costs would not have been incurred but for the Red Cross's use of the Premises 
(both parties must initial all utilities to be reimbursed by the Red Cross): 

Owner initials 


Water 


Gas 


Electricity 
 - ..... -=-~'A--..... -- ­

Waste Disposal ._-_... _-­

The Owner Will submit any request for reimbursement to the Red Cross within 60 days after the shelter closes, 
Any request for reimbursement for food, supplies or operational costs must be accompanied by supporting 
invoices. Any request for reimbursement for personnel costs must be accompanied by a list of the personnel with 
the dates and hours worked at the shelter. 

10. Insurance: The Red Cross shall carry insurance coverage in the amounts of at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability. The Red Cross shall also carry Workers' 
Compensation coverage with statutory limits for the jurisdiction within which the facility is located and $1,000,000 
in Employers' Liability. 

11. Indemnification: The Red Cross shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify Owner against any legal liability, 
including reasonable attorney fees, in respect to bodily injury, death and property damage ariSing from the 
negligence of the Red Cross during the use of the Premises. 

12. Term: The term of this agreement begins on the date of the last signature below and ends 30 days after 
written notice by either party. 

THE AIVIERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS 
Owner (legal name) (legal name) 

By (signature) By (Signature)~a_~ 
Name (printed) 	 Name (printed) ,CynYlA ~ A~ 

Title 	 Title YoIU4lL~'-

Date 	 Date t· Z O·/;;Z 

3 	 Rev. 12-07 



Kiamichi Area Nutrition Project, Inc 

Project/Center Sponsor Contract 

This Contract is made the 1st day of July 1st
, 2012, by and between the 

Kiamichi Area Nutrition Project, Inc, hereinafter designated as the "Project" and 
the hereinafter designated as the "Center Sponsor". This 
Contract will expire June 30, 2013. 

In consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein, the Project 
and the Center Sponsor agree as follows: 

I. 	 The Project shall provide and be responsible for the following: 

A. 	 Reimburse the Center Sponsor on a monthly basis to assist in 
defraying center staff salaries, travel, fringe benefits, and other budget 
center expenses as described in the annual budget (See Attached 
Budget). 

1. Funds are contingent upon continued federal and state 
funding. 

2. 	 Funds dispersed to the Center Sponsor on a monthly basis 
cannot exceed 1/12 of the budget unless an explanation of any 
additional expenses is listed on the Monthly Financial Report. 

3. 	 Effective July 1, 2012, funds to the Center Sponsor will not be will 
not be sent until the Project has received it's reimbursement from 
the State for the month the expenses occurred. 

II. The Center Sponsor shall provide and be responsible for the following: 

A. Provide and be responsible for the local nutrition center facility, 
bookkeeper and services pertinent to the operation of the center, 
grantee amount agreed of $19,357.00 and any additional monies 
necessary. 

B. To be responsible for the fire and safety and health standards of 
the facility and shall assure the Project that the facility meets the 
appropriate local and state ordinances, codes, and regulations. 

C. 	To cooperatively interview applicants for center staff employment 
and with mutual advice of the Project and the KEDDO Area 
Agency on Aging, where appropriate, to recommend which 
individual (s) are to be employed. 

D. 	Placement of center staff on the Center Sponsor payroll. Center 
staff are employees of the Center Sponsor. The Center's budget 
allocates that employees be paid 260 days a year. There will be no 
holiday payor longevity pay paid by KANP, Inc. NOTE: Due to a 

http:19,357.00


decrease in federal funding, the S;;ity of McAlester has 
agreed to pay employees, food and travel costs so that the center will 
remain open 23 days and holiday pay will be paid for 11 days (34 days). 

E. 	 Provide all insurance on the facility and contents. 

F. 	 Keep all necessary personnel records for the center staff and 
make these records available to the Project. 

G. 	 Provide all personnel necessary for the operation of the Nutrition 
Center and adhere to due dates for monthly reports. 

H. 	Provide congregate and home delivered services and appropriate 
program services on a regularly scheduled basis. Hours of operation 
will be established to accommodate the greatest number of potential 
participants and follow the Center's budget for serving meals 249 days a 
year to congregate and home bound participants. 

I. 	 Provide an individual to submit to KANP, Inc. the following information: 

1.Supporting documents and Monthly Financial Report due by the 3rd 

of the following month. 

IV. 	Duties and Regulations of the Nutrition Center Site Manager include the 
following: 

A. The Nutrition Center Site Manager shall be placed on the payroll 
of the Center Sponsor and shall adhere to policies set forth in the 
program application and other policies of the Center Sponsor. 

B. 	The Nutrition Center Site Manager shall be responsible to the 
Center Sponsor and Project for the timely submissions on a 
scheduled basis for all records, documents, monthly reports and 
other requirements by the Project and state and federal 
guidelines. Monthly reports due include the following: 

1. 	 S-19 Report. Due to the Project no later than the 2nd of 
each month. 

2. 	 S-38 Report. Due to the Project no later than the 2nd of 
each month. 

3. 	 Contribution Check and KF-1 (Contribution Sheet). Due to 
the Project no later than the 2nd of each month. 

4. 	 OAA Assessment and Change of Client Status Forms, Scan 
Sheets, Eligible Visitor Forms, and Advantage Calendars. Due to 
the Project no later than the 2nd of each month. 

C. 	The Nutrition Center Site Manager shall be responsible for the 
banking and record-keeping of all project donations and make 
the records available to the Project upon request. 



D. 	 The Nutrition Center Site Manager shall be responsible for 
coordination of other staff members, activities of the social 
program, securing of transportation of the elderly to and from the 
center and all other activities set forth in the state and federal 
guidelines. 

E. 	 The Nutrition Center Site Manager shall be responsible for 
conducting and completing Older American Assessments on all 
congregate and home bound participants according OAA Policy. 

F. 	 The Nutrition Center Site Manager shall attend all site 
manager meetings and any additional training as designated by 
the Project. 

V. When and if, the Project should cease to exist, the Center Sponsor agrees to 
the appropriate disposal of equipment purchased with TITLE III funds in the 
manner mandated by the KEDDO Area Agency on Aging and federal regulations 
as promulgated by the Older American Act and the Special Unit on Aging, Aging 
Division, of the Oklahoma Department of Human Services. 

In consideration of the promises and covenants stated herein, the Project agrees 
to provide to the Center Sponsor, administrative assistance, training, and 
counseling necessary to provide, through a congregate center, all program 
components required by state and federal laws, rules, and regulations, for the 
conduct of a Nutrition Project. 

This contract is based on the availability of funds from the KEDDO Area Agency 
of Aging and may be expanded or reduced according to the availability of said 
funds. The Kiamichi Area Nutrition Project, Inc, shall not be liable for program 
objectives for which funds are not made available. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be 
signed by the duly authorized officers: 

For the Project: 	 For the Center Sponsor: 

Name Title Date Name 	 Title Date 

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL 

THE DAY AND DATE ABOVE WRITTEN THE DAY AND DATE ABOVE WRITEN 


NOTARY PUBLIC NOTARY PUBLIC 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 


(SEAL) 	 (SEAL) 




Cooking site 
---­

ADV-P ADV-HD Total ADV Advantage % 

McAlester Nutrition Center-FY 2013 Budget 22 33 55 19% 

Wages & Title 111-8 Title III-Ci Title III-C2 Totallll-C Total 

Personnel Taxes 1 hr per day 96 47 143 Adv 

Site Manager 
Diane Chadsey (7/2001) 

Hourly Rate Hours Days 

$7.25 7 260 $13,195 $7,482 $3,206 $10,688 $2,507 
$7.25 1 260 $1,885 $1,885 

Total Wages $15,080 $1,885 $7,482 $3,206 $10,688 $2,507 
FICA 7.65% $1,154 $144 $572 $246 $818 $192 
Unemployment 1.00% $151 $19 $75 $32 $107 $25 
Workers Comp 1.00% $151 $19 $75 $32 $107 $25 

Total Cost $16,536 $2,067 $8,204 $3,516 $11,720 $2,749 

Cook 
Carol Hammontree (7/2010) 

Hourly Rate Hours Days 

$7.25 8 260 $15,080 $8,550 $3,665 $12,215 $2,865 
Total Wages $15,080 $8,550 $3,665 $12,215 $2,865 
FICA 7.65% $1,154 $653 $283 $936 $218 
Unemployment 1.00% $151 $86 $36 $122 $29 
Workers Comp 1.00% $151 $86 $36 $122 $29 

Total Cost $16,536 $9,375 $4,020 $13,395 $3,141 

Cook Aide 
Diana Wassom (7/2009) 

Hourly Rate Hours Days 

$7.25 8 260 $15,080 $8,550 $3,665 $12,215 $2,865 
Total Wages $15,080 $8,550 $3,665 $12,215 $2,865 
FICA 7.65% $1,154 $653 $283 $936 $218 
Unemployment 1.00% $151 $86 $36 $122 $29 
Workers Comp 1.00% $151 $86 $36 $122 $29 

Total Cost $16,536 $9,375 $4,020 I­ $13,3!}5 $3,141 

McAlester Nutrition Center-Page 1 



------

ADV-P ADV-HD Total ADV Advantage % 

McAlester Nutrition Center-FY 2013 Budget 22 33 55 19% 

Wages & Title 111-8 Title III-C1 Title III-C2 Totallll-C Total 

Personnel-Con't Taxes 1 hr per day 96 47 143 Adv 
Site Aide r 

Not applicable at this site 

Hourly Rate Hours Days 

$0.00 0 0 
Total Wages 

FICA 0.00% 

Unemployment 0.00% 

Workers Camp 0.00% 

Total Cost 

Custodian 
Eva Frazier (8/2009) 

Hourly Rate Hours Days 

$7.25 4 260 $7,540 $4,275 $1,832 $6,107 $1,433 
Total Wages $7,540 $4,275 $1,832 $6,107 $1,433 
FICA 7.65% $577 $326 $141 $467 $110 
Unemployment 1.00% $75 $43 $18 $61 $14 
Workers Comp 1.00% $75 $43 $18 $61 $14 

Total Cost $8,267 $4,687 $2,009 $6,696 $1,571 
Food Transporter 

Leroy Dick (11/2011) 

Hourly Rate Hours Days 

$7.25 4 260 $7,540 $4,275 $1,832 $6,107 $1,433 
Total Wages $7,540 $4,275 $1,832 $6,107 $1,433 
FICA 7.65% $577 $326 $141 $467 $110 
Unemployment 1.00% $75 $43 $18 $61 $14 
Workers Camp 1.00% $75 $43 $18 $61 $14 

Total Cost $8,267 $4,687 $2,009 $6,696 $1,571 

McAlester Nutrition Center-Page 2 



ADV-P ADV-HD Total ADV Advantage % 

'" McAlester Nutrition Center-FY 2013 Budget 22 33 55 19% 

Wages & Title 111-8 Title III-C 1 Title III-C2 Totallll-C Total 

Personnel-Con't Taxes 1 hr per day 96 47 143 Adv 

Bookkeeper (Contract Labor) 
Not applicable at this site 

Monthly Rate Hours Months 

$0.00 1 12 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total Personnel $66,142 $2,067 $36,328 $15,574 $51,902 $12,173 

Cost of 


Travel Travel 


Home Deliveries 
Miles Rate Months 

15135 $0.555 12 $8,400 $4,763 $2,041 $6,804 $1,596 

Total Travel $8,400 $4,763 $2,041 $6,804 $1,596 

Food Cost of 

Paid out of KANP, Inc Admin Food 

Prepared Meals Cost Days 

176 $1.10 249 $48,206 $27,333 $11,714 $39,047 $9,159 

Purchased Meals 

20ay 17 $3.55 105 $6,337 $6,337 

5Day 0 $3.55 260 $0 $0 

70ay 5 $3.55 365 $6,479 $6,479 

Total Food $61,023 $27,333 $11,714 $39,048 !21,975I 

McAlester Nutrition Center-Page 3 



ADV-P I AOV-HD I Total ADV Advantage % 

". McAlester Nutrition Center-FY 2013 Budget 22 I 33 I 55 19% 

Cost of Title IIl-S Title IlI-C 1 Title III-C2 Totallll-C Total 

Utilites Utilities 1 hr per day 96 47 143 Adv 

Cost Months 

Sewer & Water $1.1 12 

Trash $1.1 12 

Gas $1.1 12 $1.1 $1.1 $1.1 $1.1 $1.1 

Electric $1.1 12 $1.1 $1.1 $1.1 $1.1 $1.1 

Total Utilities $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Cost of 


Other Other 


Cost Months 

Communications $11.11.1 12 $1,21.11.1 $681.1 $292 $972 $228 

Pest Control $1.1 12 

Total Other $1,200 $680 $292 $972 $228 
Amount 

Grantee of Grantee 

Title III-C Grantee from Sponsor 

Total Grantee $19,357 $1.1 $13,551.1 $5,81.17 $19,357 $1.1 

less Total Grantee $19,357 $0 $13,550 $5,807 $19,351 $0 

Cost-

OAA Funds Grantee 

Total Cost for Nutrition Center $75,742 $2,1.167 $41,771 $17,91.17 $59,678 $13,997 

less Grantee from Sponsor $8,001.1 $1.1 $5,61.11.1 $2,41.11.1 $8,1.101.1 $1.1 

Less Additional Grantee from Sponsor $11,357 $1.1 $7,951.1 $3,41.17 $11,357 $0 

McAlester Budget 2013 $56,385 $2,1.167 $28,221 $12,11.11.1 $41.1,321 $13,997 

McAlester Nutrition Center-Page 4 

http:17,91.17


j.aJ:nichj Area Nutrition Project, Inc~ 


PO Box 577 


Wilburton, OK 74578 

(918)465-4840 Office (866)465-4840 Toll Free {918)46S-280S Fax 

Office of City Manager MEMORANDUM 
JUi'J (] {j lUll 

Received 
TO: City of McAlester 

FROM: Carla Brunson, Project Director 

DATE: June 1, 2012 

SUBJECT: Center Sponsor Agreement and Budget for FY2013 

Please find enclosed with this memorandum a Center Sponsor Agreement and Budget for 

FY2013. 

The Center Sponsor Agreement will need to be signed and notarized and sent back to KANP, 
Inc. After my signature and notarization, I will send a copy of the agreement back to you. 

Both the Agreement and Budget have been revised to reflect the number of serving days and 
the new grantee amount. 

On behalf of the KANP, Inc Board of Directors, I want to express our appreciation for your 

continued support of the Senior Nutrition Program. We are very thankful for the additional 
grantee amount given so that the center may remain open for 23 days so that our seniors are 
served a meal and nutrition center employees do not lose any days of pay. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me. 



PetroQuest 


June 22, 2012 

CITY OF MCALESTER 
PO BOX 578 
MCALESTER, OK 74502 

Re: 	 Division Order 
Orval 1-2H; Section 2, Township 6 North, Range 14 East 
Pittsburg County, Oklahoma 

Gentleman: 

Enclosed is PetroQuest Energy, L.L.C.' s Division Order in duplicate covering production from the Orval 
1-2H well. Please retain the Division Order marked "YOUR COpy" for your records and return the 
executed original to our office in the pre-addressed envelope provided. The Division Order is effective 
from the date of first sales. 

Also enclosed is an INSTRUCTION SHEET to aid in properly executing the Division Order. If we do not 
have your tax identification number on file, I have enclosed a blank Form W-9. Please submit the 
completed Form W -9 to PetroQuest. Failure to do so may result in PetroQuest withholding 31 percent of 
your revenue for taxes in accordance with federal law. Any tax withheld will not be refundable by 
PetroQuest. 

If you have any questions, you can contact me by calling 337-262-8178 or by email at 
cm~:gist@ petrQguest.com. 

Sincerely, 

Craig Mergist 
Division Order Analyst 

Enclosures 

400 E. Kaliste Saloom Rd., Suite 6000 Lafayette, Louisiana 70508 
P.O. Box 51205 Lafayette, Louisiana 70505·1205 337-232·7028(office) 337-234-4699(fax) 

http:petrQguest.com


~;~~;'~Stl-l.________ __E_RD_J_V_I_SI_O_N_O_RD ____--+-_""",:,:~~~~~~-'-__ 

b",;__~~~_~~_ "-_~_~.~~.__,,__,d 

P.O. BoX 51205, LAFAYETTE, LA 70505·1205 

OPERATOR: PetroQuest Energy, L.L.c. DATE: June 22, 2012 
PROPERTY NAME: Orval1-2H PROPERTY No.: 35600076 
COUNTY/PARISH: Pittsburg EFFECTIVE: January 25, 2012 
STATE: Oklahoma PRODUCT: Gas 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: The Orval 1-2H well is located in Section 2, Township 6 North. Range 14 East, Pittsburg County Oklahoma. 
The well covers all of Sections 2-6N-14E, Pittsburg County, Oklahoma, producing from the Woodford formation. containing 642.24 
acres, more or less. 

O\\'NER No.: CIT003 DIVISION OF' INTEREST: 0.0782827 
OWNER NAME: CITY OF MCALESTER TYPE OF INTEREST: RI 
ADDRESS: PO BOX 578 

MCALESTER, OK 74502 

--.....-------------­

CITY OF MCALESTER certifies the ownership of the division of interest in production or proceeds is correct as described herein, 
which will be paid by PetroQuest Energy, L.L.c. 

PetroQuest Energy, L.L.c., shall be notified in writing of any change in ownership, decimal interest, or payment address. All such 
changes shall be effective the first day of the month following receipt of such notice, 

PetroQuest Energy, L.L.c., is authorized to withhold payment pending resolution of a Litle dispute or adverse claim asserted 
regarding the interest in production claimed herein by Lhe undersigned, The undersigned agrees to indemnify and reimburse 
PeLroQuest Energy, L.L.c., any amount attributable to an interest to which the undersigned is not entitled. 

PetroQuest Energy, L.L.C., may accrue proceeds until the total amount equals $100, or pay annually if amounts are greater than SilO, 
whichever occurs first, or as required by applicable state statute. 

In addition to the terms and conditions of this Division Order, CITY OF MCALESTER and PetroQuest Energy, L.L.c., may have 
certain statutory rights under the laws of the state in which the property is located. 

THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT AMEND ANY LEASE OR OPERATING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE INTEREST 
OWNER AND THE LESSEE OR OPERATOR OR ANY OTHER CONTRACTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF OIL OR GAS. 

WITNESSES: OWNER(S) SIGNATURE: 

---------~.------.----

Date: ___________________ 

TAX ID OR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER: 

FAILURE TO FURNISH YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY OR TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER MAY RESULT IN 
31 PERCENT WITHHOLDING TAX, IN ACCORDANCE WITH FEDERAL LAW, AND ANY TAX WITHHELD WILL 
NOT BE REFUNDABLE BY PETROQUEST ENERGY L.L.C. 

35600o76.CITo03. 1111201 2 



PO Box 578 
McAlester, OK 74502 City of McAlester
918-423-9300 ext. 4956 
918-421-4971 Fax# 

Fax 
To: Bill Ervin 

Fax: 918-423-4243 

Phone: 918-423-4242 

Re: PetroQuest Division Order 

D Urgent [J For Review 

Dear Mr. Ervin, 

From: Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

Pages: 3 

Date: 07/02/2012 

cc: 

D Please Comment D Please Reply [] Please Recycle 

Please find following copies of the Division Order that I received in the mail this moming. Please review 
as we would like to place it on the Consent Agenda for the Council meeting on July 10, 2012. 

(Manyou
\\\J~MC~erk 



Page 1 of2 

Cora Middleton 

From: Bill Ervin [ervinlaw@sbcglobal.netl 

Sent: Tuesday, July 03, 20122:33 PM 

To: Cora Middleton 

Subject: Division Order from Petroquest re; City's interest in Orval 1-24 Sec.2 T6N, Rg 14E (268.14 net min 
acres) 

Cora: 

From the infonnation provided from Petroquest's, Craig Mergist, the .0782827 interest expressed in the 
0/0 is correct. He offered to send the entire division order title opinion to show the interest attributed 
to the City by their examining attorney but I told him that was not necessary. 

You can put this on the Council's agenda for approval. 

Bill 

Ervin & Ervin 

Attorneys at Law L. L. P. 

P.O. Box 1449 
McAlester, OK 74502 
(918) 423-4242 Phone 
(918) 423-4243 Fax 
ervinl~\N@$QGgIQQfJI,net 

Begin forwarded message: 

I attempted to send this earlier, but I messed up on the address. Sorry for the 
delay. 

Craig M 

From: Craig Mergist 
Sent: Monday, July 02, 2012 1:03 PM 
To: ~ervinJaw@$gc;:;gIObql.net! 
Subject: Orval 1-2H 

Mr. Ervin, 

We spoke by phone earlier today. You asked for the calculations we used to 
determine the interest of the City of McAlester in the Orval 1-2H well operated by 
PetroQuest Energy. 

The city is credited with 268.14 acres in a unit of 642.24 acres. The royalty of the 
lease covering the city's mineral interest is 3/16. We determined the city's unit 
interest by taking 268.14/642.24 * 0.1875. The result is 0.07828265, as reflected 

07103/2012 

http:268.14/642.24
http:ervinJaw@$gc;:;gIObql.net


Page 2 of2 

in the division order we sent. 

Please let me know if you have any other questions regarding the interest of the 
city in the Orvall-2H. 

Craig Mergist 
Petro Quest Energy, LLC 
337-262-8178 (direct) 

07/03/2012 




Contract for Professional Services Between 

ROBISON INTERNATIONAL, INC. 


and the 

MCALESTER DEFENSE SUPPORT ASSOCIATION 


AND THE CITY OF MCALESTER 


This Agreement is made 1 July 2012, by and between Robison International, Inc., a 
consulting firm doing business in Washington, DC, herein referred to as "Consultant", the 
McAlester Defense Support Association, herein referred to as "MDSA" and the City of 
McAlester, Oklahoma herein referred to as "The City". 

In consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it is agreed by and between 
Consultant, MDSA and The City: 

ARTICLE I - CHARACTER AND EXTENT OF SERVICES 

A. Consultant agrees to provide consulting services on behalf of MDSA and The 
City in accordance with the statement of Work, incorporated herein and made part of this 
Agreement. 

B. In furtherance of its business MDSA and The City wish to retain consultant as an 
independent contractor to render certain described consulting services. This Agreement provides 
for the retention of Consultant as independent contractor, and neither Consultant, nor his own 
employees or agents, shall be considered employees ofMDSA or The City for any purpose. 

C. MDSA and The City agree to cooperate in full with Consultant should such 
cooperation be necessary to the furtherance of the services described in the Statement of Work. 

D. The Account Executive for the Consultant for the purposes of this agreement is 
John Bonsell, Vice President. 

ARTICLE II - BILLING AND PAYMENTS 

A. The City agrees to pay Consultant a retainer for the services listed in the statement 
of work as items 1, 2 and 3 in the amount of Two Thousand dollars ($2,000) per month 
beginning 1 July 2012. Such services shall be considered lobbying or unallowable expenses in 
the sense of CF AR 31.205.33 unless otherwise noted. Payment to Consultant is due within thirty 
(30) days after receipt of invoice. The City will not be responsible for expenses of Consultant. 

7/3/2012 Page 1 

http:31.205.33


B. MDSA agrees to pay Consultant a retainer for the services listed in the statement 
of work as items 4, and 6 in the amount of Two Thousand dollars ($2,000), per month 
beginning July 1,2012. Such services will not be considered as lobbying. In addition, it is 
agreed that Consultant will be reimbursed by MDSA in full for all out-of-pocket travel expenses 
incurred. Reimbursement of expenses hereunder will be made on the basis of itemized 
statements submitted by Consultant, which statements are to include actual bills, receipts, 
invoices or other evidence of expenditures. Payment to Consultant is due within thirty (30) days 
after receipt of invoice. 

C. Invoicing and backup documentation will not be prepared in accordance with 
CFAR 31.205.33 unless required by the Statement of Work. 

ARTICLE III CHANGES 

MDSA and The City without invalidating this Agreement may order changes in service within 
the general scope of the Agreement and Statement of Work, consisting of additions, deletions or 
other revisions. All such changes shall be authorized in writing and executed by Consultant, 
MDSA and The City. 

ARTICLE IV - PLACE AND PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 

This contract is effective 1 July 2012 through 30 June 2013. However, the Agreement 
may be terminated by either party upon sixty (60) days written notice, via registered mail, at any 
time after thirty days from the date this Agreement. In the event of such a termination, the 
Consultant shall be paid the value of services rendered and cost incurred to the date of 
termination. 

ARTICLE V - NOT A WARRANTY 

Consultant agrees to use his best effort in the furtherance ofthe work described. It is 
mutually agreed, however, that Consultant does not guarantee or warrant to MDSA andlor The 
City any particular result of his efforts. 

ARTICLE VI - ENFORCEMENT 

A. It is mutually understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by 
and construed in accordance to the laws of the State of Oklahoma. Any action at law or in equity 
or judicial proceedings for the enforcement of this Agreement, or any provision thereof, shall be 
resolved by a court of Law having jurisdiction. 

7/312012 Page 2 

http:31.205.33


-------------

----------

----------------

B. In the event legal action is necessary to enforce the terms of this Agreement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable amount for attorney's fees and court costs. 

ARTICLE VII - REGISTRATION 

Unless directed otherwise, Consultant shall register as lobbyist on behalf of The City in 
accordance with the Lobby Disclosure Act of 1995 (2 U.S.C.1601 et seg.). 

ARTICLE VIII- ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This document, and attachments incorporate by reference herein, embodies the entire 
Agreement between MDSA, The City and Consultant. There are no promises, terms, conditions 
or obligations of either party other than those contained herein. This Agreement shall supersede 
all previous correspondence, representations or agreements, either written or oral between the 
parties. 

IN WITNESS WHREOF, Consultant, MDSA and The City do hereby place their hands. 

CONSULTANT 

BY: ____ Date: 
Randall L West 
President 
Robison International, Inc. 

McAlester Defense Support Association (MDSA) 

BY: Date: 
Mark Jordan 
Chairman 

The City of McAlester (The City) 

BY: Date: 
--~----------.------------------- --------------- ­

Steve Harrison 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Cora 

City Clerk 


STATEMENT OF WORK 

7/3/2012 Page 3 



Robison International Inc. will provide to MDSA and The City the following services and 
deliverables: 

For the City: 
1. 	 Information, feedback and perspectives to assist in formulating and implementing 

short and long term strategies for expansion of The City's participation in DOD and 
other programs. 

2. 	 Assist The City'S Washington DC legislative liaison activity as needed. 

3. 	 Assist The City's Washington DC lobbying activity to include providing information 
and assessments on key programs of interest to The City being considered by 
Congress. 

For the MDSA: 
4. 	 Assist MDSA and the City in deVelopment plans for continuation of current 


programs/missions, as weB as future opportunities at the McAlester Army 

Ammunition Plant (McAAP) as well as other defense work in the area. 


5. 	 Provide position papers and relevant data on issues requested. 

6. 	 In performing these services, Robison International will work in close cooperation 
with MDSA and the City, and other designated points of contact. 

Note: Items 1,2, and 3 are considering Lobbying 

7/312012 	 Page 4 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

AGREEMENT 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIREFIGHTERS 

LOCAL 2284 

and 

CITY OF MCALESTER 

July I, 2011-June 30,2012 

(Union's Last Best Offer) 

1 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 


ARTICLE. . . . . . . . . PAGE 


1. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT. 	 4 

2. RECOGNITION. 	 5 

3. AUTHORITY AND TERM. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 

4. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS SECTION. . . . . . . . . .. 7 

5. UNION RIGHTS 	 9 

6 . DEFINITIONS. 	 11 

7 . PREVAILING RIGHTS. 	 13 

8 . PROHIBITION OF STRIKES . . . . . . 	 13 

9 . MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY TO AVOID DISCRIMINATION. . 15 

10. UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICE 	 15 

11. 	 PERSONNEL REDUCTION 16 

12. 	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 17 

13. 	MAINTENANCE OF PHYSICAL CONDIITON AND FITNESS 
FOR DUTY . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 22 

14. 	MERIT INCREASES 23 

15. 	 HOURS OF DUTY 25 

16. 	 CALL BACK AND OVERTIME. 26 

17. 	HOLIDAY BANK TIME 27 

18. 	 SICK LEAVE .... 30 

19. 	 INJURY LEAVE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 35 

20. 	 SENIORITY .... . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 6 

21. 	 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE AND PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT 37 

22. 	ANNUAL LEAVE. . . . . 39 

23. 	 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 41 

24. 	 INSURANCE ...... . . . . . . . . . . . .. 41 

2 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

25. UNIFORM MAINTENANCE ALLOWANCE 42 


26. LONGEVITY SERVICE PAY .... 42 


27. DUES DEDUCTION ................. 43 


28. WAGES ...................... 46 


29. SAVINGS CLAUSE ................. 51 


30. REIMBURSEMENT FOR PERSONAL PROPERTY 52 


31. WORKING OUT OF CLASSIFICATION. . . 53 


32. GARNISHMENTS AND LEVY ON WAGES ......... 53 


33. UTILITY SUBSIDY ... 54 


34. SHORT TIME LEAVE .............. . 54 


35. PROMOTION PLANS FOR McALESTER FIRE DEPARTMENT. 55 


36. DEPARTMENTAL FIRE SERVICE TRAINING 60 


37. PENSION/RETIREMENT ....... . 63 


38. TRANSFERS. 64 


39. ALCOHOL AND DRUG TESTING POLICY 68 


40. HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 84 


41. AFFILIATION LEAVE ..... 85 


42. SAFE STAFFING LEVELS. 86 


Signature page . . . . . 89 


Attachment #1 Pay Plan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 90 


3 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 1 


PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT 


It is the intent and purpose of this Agreement, ente into 

by and between the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, a municipal 

corporation, hereinafter referred to as loyer and Local 2284, 

International Association of Firefighters, AFL-CIO/CLC, 

hereinafter re r to as Union, to protect the public health, 

safety and welfare of the citizens of McAlester, Oklahoma, from 

strikes, work stoppages, or slow-downs by the Union; to insure 

that the employees in Bargaining unit not be denied other 

well-recognized rights of labor, including the right to be 

represented by the Bargaining Agent of their ice and the right 

to bargain collectively with Employer concerning wages, hours and 

other terms and conditions of employment; and to provide for the 

equitable and orderly settlement of grievances which may arise 

during the term of this Agreement. The parties to this Agreement 

agree that uninterrupted and prompt fire se ce to the public is 

the basis for the existence of the fire s 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 2 


RECOGNITION 


Union proposes that of the sworn pers , only Lhe 

ief and one des Led representative may be excluded from the 

barga ing unit. The ity and Union agree that the llowing 

personnel shall be excluded from the bargain unit: 

A. 	 Fire Chief 

B. 	 Assistant Fire Chief or One (1) Designated 


Administrat AssisLant 


Probationary refighters 


D. 	 Civilian Employees 

ARTICLE 3 

AUTHORITY AND TERM 

SECTION 1. The articles in this Agreement constitute an 

agreement by and between the Employer and the Union. 

SECTION 2. This Agreement shall be effect as of the 1st 

day of July ~ 2011 and shall remain in full force and effect 

until the 30th day of June ~ 2012. 

SECTION 3. The terms of this Agreement shall not exceed one 

(1) year, provided this Agreement shall cont from year-to­

5 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

year and be automatically extended for one year terms unless 

written notice of request for negotiations s given by either 

party at least thirty (30) ys before t ary date of 

this Agreement. Should a new agreement be in stages of current 

negotiations, the existing agreement shall be automatically 

ef ct. 

SECTION 4. It shall be the obI tion the oyer to 

meet at reasonable times and confer in good faith within ten (10) 

days after receipt by the Employer of written notice from the 

Union sting a meeting for collective bargaining purposes. 

SECTION 5. Whenever wages, rates of pay, or any other 

matters requiring the appropriation of monies by the Employer are 

included as matters of collective bargaining under the provisions 

of this is the obligation of the Union to serve 

notice of request for collective bargaining at least one-hundred 

twenty (120) days before the last day on which monies can be 

approp ated by the Employer to cover the contract period, whi 

is subject of the collect bargaining procedure. 

SECTION 6. In the event the Union and the rare 

unable within thirty (30) days from and including the date of the 

first meeting to reach an agreement, any and all unresolved 

arbitrative issues may be submitted to arbitration at the request 

6 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
e 

of ei her party, in accordance with the provisions of Title 11, 

O.S.A. 	 (1978), Section 51 106 through 51 110. 

ARTICLE 4 

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS SECTION 

SECTION 1. Union recognizes the pre ive of oyer to 

operate and manage s af irs all respects and in accordance 

with its re sibilit s, and the power of authority which t 

Employer has not offic lly abridged, delegated, granted or 

modified by this Agreement are retained by the Employer; and all 

rights, powers and authority the Employer had prior to the 

Sl ng 0 this Agreement are retained by the Smployer, and 

remain exclus ly without limitation thin the rights of the 

Emp 

SECTION 2. Except as may limited rein, Employer 

reta s the right in accordance with the Constitution and Laws of 

the State of Oklahoma and the responsibilit and duties 

contained in the Charter of the Y of McAlester, Oklahoma, and 

the ordinances and regulations promulgated thereunder; 

A. To determine Fire rtment licy, luding t 

right to manage the affairs of the re Department in all 

respects, exc as above stated; 

B. To assign working hours, including overtime; 

7 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

c. ~o direct the members of the re Department, including 

the right to hire, terminate, su , discipline, promote 

or transfer any fighter; 

D. To determine the t Ie of organization of the Fire 

Department, including the right to organize and reorganize 

the re Department and the dete nation of job 

classifications and ranks based upon duties assigned; 

E. To determine t safety, health and property ection 

measures for the re Department; 

F. To allocate and assign work to Firefighters within the 

Fire Department; 

G. To be the sole judge of the qualif tion of applicants 

and training of new loyees; 

H. To schedule the operations and to determine the number 

and duration of hours assigned duty r week; 

1. To establish and enforce Fire rtment rules, 

regulations and orders; 

J. To introduce new, roved or fferent methods and 

ques of ope rat of the F Department or change 

sting methods and techniques; 

K. To determine the amount of supervision necessary; 

L. To control the departmental budget, and; 

8 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

M. To take whatever action may be necessary to carry out 

the ssion of the Employer in situations of emergency. 

ARTICLE 5 

UNION RIGHTS 

SECTION 1. The Union Presi and his two (2) designees 

shall be ed time off with pay to conduct bona fide and 

necessary business, up to an aggregate maximum of ninety-six (96) 

hours dur the term of this nt, provided, approval is 

obtained from the re Chief or his designee. Records o+' t 

off for Union bus ss will be maintained Fire Department 

Administrat A copy of this record will be provided to the 

Union President and/or his two (2) designees upon request. 

SECTION 2. It is agreed by the City that up to (3 ) 

members of the bargaining unit may serve as members of the Union 

negotiation team for the e of negotiating annual reements 

and shall excused from duty without loss of pay, if pr 

approval is obtained from the Fire ief. The part s expressly 

understand that no Union member shall receive additional 

compensation from the City due to the Union member's status as a 

member of the negotiation committee for the Un n. 

9 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

SECTION 3. ~he Union may have a bulletin board within the 

Fire Station, its size and location subject to the I of 

the Fire Chief. It is for notices concerning Union; educat n, 

recreation and social affairs, and other matters the Union and 

the Employer may agree upon. t is understood that mater 1 of a 

pol ical, controversial or inflammatory nature shall not be 

posted. For the pu es of this section, polit 1 shall be 

defined to include matters dealing with the administration of 

public affairs or rtai ng to political activities at the 

local, state or national level. For the purposes of this 

Article, inflarr@atory s I be defined as those comments tending 

to te passion, tumult or of a personal de ory nature, 

especially those comments directed toward the administration of 

the fire service, local government or toward elect offici s of 

the City of ester. The Fire Chief or his designee shall be 

authorized to remove any mat al from the bulletin board that 

does not conform to the ent of this Article. It shall be the 

re sibility of the Union to maintain the mate al they post, 

to insure prompt removal of out ed material, and further 

insure that the sting of such mater 1 is limited only to the 

bulletin board. 

10 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
+ 

ARTICLE 6 

DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1. Grievance Grievance shall mean any all 

unilateral violation of this Agreement by either party or any 

spute or controversy concern g the meani ,interpretation or 

application of this Agreement or any terms or provisions thereof. 

Management shall mean the City 

Manager, his designated representat or such ot r persons 

carrying out his directions or policies or acti in his behalf. 

SECTION 3. e ~ Employee shall mean any full-t 
-.~~~"----

employee engaged in the occupation of fire fighting for the City, 

excluding the Chief and one Assistant Fire Chief or one 

Administrative Assistant, probationary employees and c lian 

employees. 

SECTION 4. Immediate Fami Immediate ly shall mean 

spouse, children, brothers, sisters, parents, guardians or other 

relatives of the employee who reside in employee's household and 

brothers, sisters and parents of employee's spouse. 

SECTION 5. Probationa - Probationary period shall 

apply to any emplo who has served the City Fire Department 

less than twelve (12) months. Probationary pe od for emp s 

11 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

advancing into a higher rank shall not be less than s (6) 

~onths, or more than twelve (12) months, at the discretion of the 

Chief, substantiated by written evaluation. 

SECTION 6. Twent Year Anniversa Date - The 
~.~..~~~....~~~--~--~~....=--~ ..~~~.....~.. ~.... 

anniversary e is twenty (20) years from the date of t~e 

employee date of hire in the McAlester re Department. Any 

interruption or break in service shall be added to the loyee 

anniversary date to insure that the employee has a full twenty 

(20) 	 rs of service with the McAlester Fire rtment. 

SECTION 7. Ann Date-Anniversary date r all merit 
---~-~----...~~---~..~ 

evaluations will occur on an employee's initial re date and 

will remain with the employee during his/her entire tenure with 

the City of McAlester Fire Department, i ess of 

promotions. For all employees who have an ann rsary date based 

on ir last promotion and were not topped out as of 7/1/2006, 

they will continue to me t evaluations bas on ir last 

pro~otion. This date will remain with the employee for future 

merit evaluations irregardless of future promotions until the 

emp e tops out and reverts to date of hire for ann rsary 

date. (This def ion will language in a number of 

locations in the agreement and if t parties miss a particular 

location this definition is controlling.) 

12 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 7 

PREVAILING RIGHTS 

SECTION 1. All rules, regulations, fiscal s, 

working conditions, departmental ices and ma~ner of 

conducting the operation administration of the Fire 

Departrne~t currently in effect on the effect date of this 

Agreement shall be deemed a part of this Agreement, unless and 

except as modified or changed by the specific terms of ~his 

SECTION 2. It is mutually by the parties that 

this statutory rement appl s equally to each of the 

parties. 

ARTICLE 8 

PROHIBITION OF STRIKES 

SECTION 1. During the term of this Agreement, t Union 

agrees to proh ition of a job action, i.e. st kes, work slow­

downs, mass absenteeism, or being party to such activities. In 

addition, the Union agrees not to petition s affiliate, AFL­

CIO, for I I sanction to st ke during the term of this 

Agreement. The Union shall not be in breach of agreement where 

13 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

the acts and actions hereto re er.umerated are not caused or 

authorized by Ur.ion. Union shall not a or assist any 

person or parties engaging in the above prohibit , by 

giving rection or guidance to such activities and conduct, or 

by provid g funds, financial and other assistance for the 

conduct or direction of such activities or for t of 

strike, unemployment or other benefit to those persons or part s 

participating in such prohibited conduct and activities; 

provided, however, that Union may provide legal representation. 

SECTION 2. noti cation, confirmed in writing by t 

City to Union, that certain of its members are engaging 

wil strike. Union sha I diately writing, order such 

members to return to work at once and provide City with a copy of 

such an order, and a responsible offi ial of Union shall publicly 

order them to return to work. Such characterization t 

strike is in-progress or has taken place or that any particular 

member is or has engaged in a wildcat strike. The notification 

sha I made s ely on t representation of Employer. In the 

event that a wildcat strike occurs, Union agrees to take all 

reasonable, ef ive, and ffirmative action to secure the 

members return to work as promptly as possible. 

14 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 9 

MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY TO AVOID DISCRIMINATION 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be int rpreted as 

diminishing the obli ion of both parties to undertake 

affirmative action to insure that applicants or employees are 

treated without re rd to race, color, reI ion, sex, size, 

national origin, status or union membersh political 

aff liation or mental or physical handicap. Specifically, 

pursuant to Equal Employment Opportunity Corrunission Guidelines, 

each party is obligated to take positive action in affording 

equal employment, training and promotional opportunities to all 

members, as required by Title VIr of the Civil Rights Act of 

1964, as amended. 

ARTICLE 10 

UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICE 

SECTION 1. The Employer and the Union agree that unfair 

labor practices, as defined in Title 11 O.S.A. (1978), Section 

51-102 (6), (6al, and (6bl, shall constitute unfair labor 

practices for the purpose of this Agreement, and shall be subject 

to review by the P.E.R.B. of the State of Oklahoma. 

15 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 11 

PERSONNEL REDUCTION 

SECTION 1. In the event of a personnel reduction, the 

employee with the least seniority shall be laid off first. 

Seniority shall be determined by the last date o~ re within the 

Fire Department. 

SECTION 2. No new employees shall be hired until 

employee or employees laid off have D Dotif that an opening 

exists by certified or registered mail. With fifteen (15) days 

after rece of such not fication, employee or employees on 

layoff will notify the City Personnel Office of their intention. 

Any employee's failure to respond within i een (15) days shall 

be considered as indication that the employee does not intend to 

cont his employment with the McAlester re Department. 

SECTION 3. Emp s who have been laid off shall retain 

the recall preference for a period of twelve (12) months from the 

date of individGal layoff from duty. 

16 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 12 

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

SECTION 1. The City, on or any employee covered under 

this Agreement may file a grievance wi~hin thirty (30) days of 

alleged occurrence, as hereinafter defined, and shall be afforded 

~he full ection of this Agreement. For the purposes of this 

Article, " y" shall mean the Fire Chief or his designated 

sentat 

SECTION 2. The Union President, or his authorized 

represen~ative, may report an ng grievance to the Fire 

Chief in an effort to forestall its occurrence; s larly, the 

Union may be so formed by the ~y. 

SECTION 3. Any con~roversy be~ween e City and Union 

or any oyee concerning the interpretation, enforcement or 

application of any p sion of this Agreement shall be adjusted 

in the following manner: 

A. The grievance shall be scussed by ~he employee 

involved with the City. T answer sh 1 be orally 

submitted by the City wi in ten (10) calendar days to 

the employee involved and to the Union Presiden~. 

B. If the grievance is not set~led by the provision 

of 	Section 3A, shall be submitted, in writing, to 

17 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

t Union Grievance Corruni ttee. wi thin ten (10) 

calendar days, the Union G nce Committee shall 

dete ne, in its sole discretion and judgment, whether 

or not a grievance exists w hin the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement. 

1. f the Union Grievance Committee finds a 

grieva:1ce does exist, the Committee shall submit, 

in writing, the grievance written report of 

their fact-finding investigation to the Fire Chief 

r ustment. 

2. f the Union Grievance Co~~ittee finds a 

evance does not exist, no further proceedings 

shall be necessary. 

C. The Fire Chief shall submit his a:1swer, i:1 writing, to 

the employee involved and to the Union Grievance Co~~ittee 

within f (5) business days. If the evance has not 

been settled within that time, then shall be sent to the 

City Manager for adjustment. 

D. The City Manager shall submit his answer, in writing, 

to the G evance Committee within ten (10) bus ss days. 

If the re Chief, the employee involved, the City Manager, 

and the Union Grievance Committee have not settled the 

18 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

grievance within that time, it shall be submitted to 

arb ration for a ustment as follows: 

1. The bargain agent and the City shall each 

select and name one (1) arbitrator and shall 

irrunediate thereafter notify each other, in 

writing, of t name and address 0 person so 

selected. 

2. The two (2) a itrato s so selected and named 

shall, within ten (10) days, agree upon and select 

a third arbitrator. 

3. If, on expiration of the pe iod as above 

stated, the arbit~ators are unable to agree upon 

the selectio~ of a third arbitrator, the 

rgaining agent and the City shall request the 

Federal Mediation and Conciliation S ce to 

provide a list of five (5) arb rators. 

4 • Withi~ seven (7) cal r days from t 

rece of such panel, the two (2) a itrators 

al selected shall meet and alternately stri 

names until one (1) arbitrator remains who shall 

be chairman of the Arbitratio~ Board. The City 

shall strike the first name. 

19 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

The Arbitration Board (acting through its 

Chairman) shall call a hearing to be held with 

thirty (30) ca days after the date of the 

appointment of the Chairman. 

6. Within twenty (20) days after the conclusion 

of the hearing, the arbitrators shall issue a 

written i on containing find and 

ions with re to the issue 

presented. A copy of the opinion shall be mailed 

or deli to the Union and the Employer. 

7 . With re to the interpretation, 

enforcement, or application of t ovisions of 

this Agreement, the decision, findi and 

reco~~endations of the arbitrator shall be final 

and binding on the parties to this Agreement. 

8. The arbitrator's authority shall be limited 

to the interpretation and application of the terms 

of this Agreement and/or any supplement hereto. 

The arbitrator shall have no jurisdiction to 

establish provisions of a new Agreement or 

va ation of the present Agreement or to arbitrate 

away, in whole or part, any provisions or 

20 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
2Z£ 

amendments thereof. Th s shall not Dreclude 

individual wage grievance. 

9. The cost of the impartial arbitrator shall be 

shared equally between the Union and the City. f 

a transcript of the proceedings is requested, then 

t party so requesting shall pay for it. 

SECTION 4. All time I ts set forth in this Article may be 

xtended by mutual consent but if not so extended, they must be 

strictly observed. If a party fails to pursue any grievance 

within the time liffiits provided, he shall have no further right 

to continue the grievance. 

SECTION 5. t is speci~ically and expressly understood that 

ling a grievance under this Article, which has as its last s 

final and binding arbitration, constitutes an election of 

remedies and a waiver 0 any and all rights by both parties, the 

Union, or other representatives of the party, to litigate or 

otherwise contest the last answer rendered through the Grievance 

Procedure in any Court or other appeal forum. 

21 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 13 

MAINTENANCE OF PHYSICAL CONDITION AND FITNESS FOR DUTY 

SECTION 1. The City and on mutually recognize that the 

health and physical fitness of its Firefighters are of paramount 

importance. It is recogniz that it is each employee's 

responsibility to mainta a physical condition suff ient to 

perform the position he/she holds. In order to maintain said 

condition, City may develop, and employee shall undertake, a 

program of progressive physical condition and exercise on a 

regular basis. 

SECTION 2. The City agrees that positions shall be lled 

with due regard to the physical capabilities of applicants and in 

that regard, the City may, at any t r an employee to 

un rgo fitness-for-duty medical examinations at the City's 

expense. The City will advise the employee, in wr ing, of the 

basis for the examination and shall furnish a copy of said 

nation to the affected o If it is determined by the 

established medical evaluation procedure that the oyee in 

question is not physically fit for duty, a written explanation 

will be forwarded to the employee at that time. The employee 

will be placed on probation as required by the appropr 

22 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
'e ¥ 

medical authority. If the medical authority determines that a 

life threatening condition exists, suspension may be ordered. 

SECTION 3. An e~pl e who is suspended or terminated 

active duty for ilure to meet physical requirements shall not 

have any of his accrued legal righ~s penalized by action of this 

Article. 

SECTION 4. It is understood and agreed that the City shall 

seek and receive from Union input as to ew and condi~ ing 

programs. It is agreed that the City and Union have, by s 

Article, made a mutual commitment ~o improve the physical health 

and safety of the ~embers of the bargaining un t. The physical 

conditioning program 1 not be employed in a disciplinary or 

correctional manner. Prior to partic ion in the program, each 

employee shall receive medical evaluation to establish 

participation parameter. 

ARTICLE 14 

MERIT INCREASES 

SECTION 1. The parties hereto recognize that increases and 

steps of pay are to be granted on the basis of merit, knowledge 

and performance, and ~hat employees are not automatically 

23 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

entitled to step increases. In 0 r to insure proficiency in 

advancement, the City may administer proficiency examinations. 

Sun set by its own terms. 

SECTION 2. The Y will prepare proficiency examinations 

with respect to traini and materials actually made available at 

least s y (60) prior to the testing date. 

SECTION 3. All emp merit evaluations will occur on 

his/her current anniversary date and that date thereafter unless 

the oyee is promoted or demoted. Ann rsary date is as 

defined Article 6 above. 

SECTION 4. Employees promoted to a higher rank shall move 

one step back from the step they were in at a lower rank in the 

new higher pay class while the employee is on probation. Once 

re ased from probation, the employees will advance to the same 

y st they had previously held, but in the new classification. 

If the increase pay while on probation is less than 3 percent 

of the previous base pay the employee will be aced the same 

step of the new classification and will not receive an increase 

when released from probation. 

24 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 15 


HOURS OF DUTY 


SECTION 1. Employees shall work a schedule of twenty­


(24) hours on-duty and forty-eight (48) hours off-duty. 

SECTION 2. Employees work period shall be twenty-seven (27) 

days averaging two hundred and four (204) hours per work period 

on an annual period. 

SECTION 3. Shift change shall be executed at 0700. In the 

event an employee is moved from one stat to another station 

during the normal s ft the employee will receive normal city 

leage for the distance they travel from one station to another 

to compensate him/her for use of their personal vehicle. The 

travel expense will be calculated and submitted quarterly. 

SECTION 4. It is that members of the bargaining un 

who are injured as a result of their personal pursuits while en 

the 's premises shall have no basis for claim against the 

Employer r Title 85 of the Oklahoma Statutes, entitled 

"Workmen's Compensation ll 
• 

25 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 16 

CALL BACK AND OVERTIME 

SECTION 1. loyees who are called back to duty from an 

of status shall be c ed th a minimum of one (1) hour 

of duty at a time and one~half computation. A callback list 

shall be established beg ing with the most senior fire 

department member to least senior member. When situations 

arise that require one or more employees to employed for 12 

hours or more at t and one half (1 /2) their regular rate of 

pay, due 0 occurrences relating to manning the employee at the 

op of the list, will be given the opportunity 0 work the 

over ime. Regardless of whether the employee is unable to work 

or works the callback, his name will go to the bottom of the 

list. The next empl rotates into the top spot until all 

employees have been given the opportunity to work the callback. 

SECTION 2. Overtime shall consist of autho zed duty in 

excess of the number of hours in any scheduled work week. 

Checking in and checking out t shall not counted when 

computing overtime. The re Chief or City Manager shall have 

the authority to schedule departmental meetings six (6) t 

annually. These meet will be mandatory r attendance. 

26 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

SECTION 3. No member of bargaining unit shall be 

awarded overtime compensation without the prior approva of the 

Chief or his designee. 

SECTION 4. Each employee shall furnish the Manager's Office 

with a letter from his "outside" employer stating the employee 

acknowledges that the McAlester Fire Department is his primary 

responsibility. All "outs " oyment shall be approved by 

the re Chief or City r each year. 

ARTICLE 17 

HOLIDAY BANK TIME 

SECTION 1. employee shall be nted thirteen (13) 

days of liday k time on the first day of January. 

SECTION 2. loyees may take holiday bank t at any t 

sect to the following: 

A. It must be approved and sche in advance with 

the re Chie or his des 

B. It must be taken amounts not less than twenty-

four (24) hours at one occurrence. 

C. Earned time may be taken twelve (12) hour 

increments with approval of Captain. Capt ns shall 

request approval from the ?ire Chief. 

27 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
M 

SECTION 3. Holidays observed by the ty are: 

A. 	 New Year's Day 

B. 	 Martin Luther King Day 

C. 	 Good Friday 

D. 	 Memorial Day 

E. 	 =ndependence Day 

F. 	 Labor Day 

G. 	 Presidents Day 

H. 	 Veteran's Day 

Thanksgiving Day and the Friday following Thanksgiving 

Day 

J. 	 Christmas Day and the day fore or the day after, that 

day in9 the same as observed by other city employees; 

K. rthday 

SECTION 4. In the event other City employees receive an 

extra holiday during the year, the members of the Fire Department 

will rece an extra holiday also. 

SECTION 5. All holidays are to be scheduled and used in 

calendar year ch the hours are accrued. The only ion 

will be where an individual cannot take certain hours of 

due to the demands of work as determined Fire Chief or his 

designee. All hours not used at the end of the calendar year must 

28 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

be used within next ~hree months and, if ~hey cannot be used 

due to work demands as determined the Fire Chief, the hours 

11 be paid out of the next r ar pay period following March 

3 of the appl le year. Subject to this ex ion, holiday 

leave hours cannot be carried over from year to year. 

SECTION 6. refighters working holidays 1 accrue 

~welve (12) hours of comp time fo working that holiday. This 

comp time accrua is restricted t:o fire department oyees 

working the majority of the hol y. 

SECTION 7. refighers will receive comD time for t 

in class off-duty when the y termines that are 

not: going to pay for t:he expenses re to the class or 

stration fees. e training classes include any c ass 

tructed by OSU re Service Tra ing or National re 

except those incentives t at the LvicAlester re 

tment by McAlester Fire Department instructors th 

t earned on an for hour actua y spent in class. 

29 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 18 

SICK LEAVE 

SECTION 1. Each member of the ini unit shall 

accumulate accrued sick leave at the rate of one (1) day per 

month. 

SECTION 2. All sick leave accrual shall be subject to 

a maximum accrual of ninety (90) days as of January 1st of 

each year. 

A. loyees hired prior to July 1, 1997, shall sell 

back one and one-half (1.5) of accumulate sick 

leave per month beginning when the employee reaches 

seventeen and one-half (17.5) years of employment with 

the McAlester Fire rtment. The hourly rate 11 be 

recalculated in January and July of each year and any 

increase in pay in the last six (6) months shall be 

used to calculate buyback rate. After the employee's 

twenty (20) year versa date t City 11 have 

no r obli ion to buy the employee's accumulated 

leave. However, the oyee following his twenty (20) 

year ann versary date shall be able to accumulate up to 

forty- (45) shifts of sick leave. This additi 

accumulation, plus any sick that may have en 

30 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

accumulat prior to the twenty (20) year anniversary 

date that was not subject to buyback, at retirement, 

these es will not be compensated for accrued but 

unused sick leave. 

B. Employees hired af er July 1, 1997 will not be 

entitled to sell back or be compensated for accrued but 

unused sick leave prior to ret rement as stated in Sub­

section A. At retirement, oyees will be entitled to 

be sated for a maximum of 720 hours of accrued 

but unused sick leave, depending on amount of 

accrued leave. 

C. Employees red after July 1, 2007, will not be entitled 

to sel back or be compensated fore accrued but unused s ck 

leave p or to retirement as stated in Sub section A. At 

retirement, s will be entitled to be compensated for 

a maximum of 260 hours of accrued but unused sick leave, 

ending on amount of accrued leave. 

D. Upon separation prior to an oyee becoming el ible 

for retirement with a regular service pens , be d for 

unused sick leave on a one to three basis i.e. pay for one 

(1) shift for each three (3) shifts of accumulated 

However, no employee may rece payment for more than the 

31 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
,. 

r of hours set forth in Subparagraph A, or C above, 

respectively based on hire date. The parties acknowl 

that Ad~i strative Policy No. 27 and Section 3.02 entitled 

nsation r Unused ick Leave contained in the Ci 's 

Personnel Manual s I not app to those employees covered 

subsection A, Band C above. 

SECTION 3. Comeutation of sick leave shall be accompli and 

recorded as of DecemDer 3 st of each year DY ing each 

employee th one ( ) of sick leave each month of 

emel during that year, and then deducting one ( ) day for 

each shift period used as sick leave. 

SECTION 4. Sick leave shall De used when sickness or injury 

incaea tates emp oyees, whi is not job-related. 

SECTION 5. Sick eave with pay shall be granted to 

employees accordance with the foIl provisions: 

A. Sick leave used shall not exceed the total amount 

accrued to the employee at the time of his absence; 

B. Leave thout pay may be granted by the ief or 

his appointed des for sickness or i ury extending 

beyond the amount of accrued sick leave; 

C. Non-scheduled work days shall not be included in 

computing sick leave expenditures; employees shal 

32 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

granted up ~o two (2) work days of si k leave as 


erne ency leave wi h pay in the event of a death or 


serious illness of the empl s or empl es' spouses, 


imrnediate family and/or grandparents, grandchi E, 


aunts and uncles. 


SECTION 6. oyees who are absent from y for reasons 


which entitle them to sick leave shall noti the Chief, or his 

designee, within a reasonable time a r their usual reporting 

t , if physically able to do so. Reasonable t is general 

considered to be one (1) hour after the usual reporting t 

SECTION 7. Sick leave with n excess of two (2) work 

for reasons of personal illness or injury shall be allowed 

only a er presentation of a written statement by physi 

ce that the oyee's cond ion or his ate 

ly's condition prevent h from appeari for work or 

present elf for duty. Employee ca ing in for sick leave 

shal eave teJ number and ss where he/she can be 

reached. loyee will be cked. Failure to answer tel 

check 11 result in ass of pay for shift. A written 

r will a the loss of pay. 

SECTION 8. All costs for medical care required oyee 

because of an injury in line of duty shall be the 

33 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
G 

responsibility of the City the Workmen's Compensat~on 

system. However, an emp may not receive both paid benefits 

in form of sick leave and/or injury leave, and concurrently 

receive benefits in the form of tempora sability pa s 

through State-required Workmen's sat ion System. 

SECTION 9. 

A. oyees who accrue sick leave in excess of their 

accumulation days during any year sha 1 be permi ed 

to exchange such excess r annual leave t on a three to 

one (3 a 1) basis ( e (3) sick of such eave for 

one (1) day of annual leave) or to be paid for such excess 

on the same s s (pa for one (1) annual leave day for 

each three (3) sick ys) . Excess s ck leave will be 

for annual leave at rate of three (3) for one 

(1) in January following the year in which it is ea 

B. A one-day bonus shall be given to any r of the 

Fire Department has not used a sick day during the year. 

Accumulation of ninety (90) sick days s not necessary to 

receive the bonus y. The City reserves the right to 

determine r any buy back of sick leave shall occur. 

For buy back purposes, refer to Administrative Policy 

34 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

No. 27. Buy back of sick leave under Section shall tave 

no effect on rece ing the one (1) day bonus. Bonus day is 

to be taken and noc bought back. 

SECTION 10. As matcer of def t on, one sick day will be 

equal to one twenty- hour shift. This sick day accrual will 

be a the rate of one day per month. 

SECTION 11. ecion of s ck leave for any reason, 

the City will grant an oyee one shift advancement of sick 

leave for every year f service up to a maximum of twenty (20) 

shifts. The employee will pay back any advancement w h n a 

thirty (30) month peri 

loyees will be I ible for the employee ion program 

if they have exhausted all sick leave, ncluding any advanced 

leave by tte Employer. Any advance not d back when an 

emplo e terminates for reason may be deducted from 

employees' last check. 

ARTICLE 19 

INJURY LEAVE 

SECTION 1. Injury leave shall be ed to any member of 

the barga ning unit who is ured on the job or who contracts an 

occupat anal illness on jab. 

35 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

A. I ury eave will not exceed sixty (60) consecut 

scheduled shifts for each injury or 0 ional illness. 

B. I ury leave wi 1 be granted only on the written 

recommendation and evaluation of a medical doctor. In the 

event an employee is granted injury leave, such employee 

shall submit a phys cian's tten evaluation for each 

rty (30) days so granted for injury leave, or any port 

thereof, until said employee returns to work. 

c. Inju leave granted under this provision will not be 

ied aga st accumulated sick leave. Employees will not 

accumulate sick leave during the time they are on injury 

leave. 

D. Should an empl e e as a result of an occupational 

il ss or injury sustained on the job, the y agrees to 

pay funeral expenses of the deceased employee up to a 

maximum of $5,000. 

ARTICLE 20 

SENIORITY 

SECTION 1. Seniority shall mean the status attained by 

length of continuous service for the Smployer. I shall commence 

from the e on which the employee becomes a regular employee 

36 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

upon satis ctory completion of, not 0 exceed one (1) year, 

ionary pe od. 

SECTION 2. completion of he ionary period, 

employee s 11 be credi ed ~oward senio~i y with the t se~ved 

ng the probationary per ad. 

SECTION 3. l"lhere two or more employees in the same 

classifica ion were nted on the same date, heir ~ela~ 

seniority st ing shall be dete ned the order of their 

oyment application. 

SECTION 4. Seniority shall los upon occurrence of 

of the fo owing: 

A. scharge, if not reversed; 

B. 	 Resi ion; 

C. 	 Unexcused failure to return a work upon the expiration 

of a formal leave of absence, and 

D. 	 RetiremenL. 

ARTICLE 21 

UNIFORM ALLOWANCE AND PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT 

SECTION 1. Such uni rms lor wi 1 be repaired 

or aced by the City, when, in the opinion of the Chief, or 

his des , such irs or replacements are deemed necessary. 

37 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

SECTION 2. Each loyee shall be respons le for the 

p r care ana maintenance of his assi protective equipmenL, 

and if such equipment is lost or dama throu over-sight or 

inattention by the individual loyee, then said empl e 11 

be nancially responsible for repair or replacement of such 

ipment. 

SECTION 3. Each employee shall rece a cloth allowance 

1n the amount 0 four hundred fifty dollars ($450.00) per year, 

to used only for the purchase and replacement of items of 

uniformed clothing as prescribed the Fire rtment Rules and 

Regulations. loyee may s t requests for uniform purchase, 

said purchase to be d inst his r form allowance. 

Footwear shall be limited to a maximum of one d fifty 

dollars ($150.00) to be deducted from the four hundred fifty 

dollar ($450.00) clo allowance. Scuba or repelling 

equipment should be 1 ted to a maximum of two hundred seventy-

f ($275.00), which will be deducted from the four hundred and 

fif dollar ($450.00) annual cloth allowance. 

SECTION 4. The City shall make every good faith effort to 

schedule a uni rm vendor on the D ses, on not less than a 

quarte basis. 

38 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 22 

ANNUAL LEAVE 

SECTION 1. oyees with zero (0) to five (5) years of 

service shall earn twelve (12) hours per month 0 annual leave 

th pay eac~ calendar year, or a total of six (6) days per year. 

SECTION 2. es with five (5) to ten (10) years 0 

serv e shal earn twenty (20) hours per month of annual leave 

with pay each calendar year or a total of ten (10) per year. 

SECTION 3. loyees with excess 0 ten (10) years of 

se ce shall earn thirty (30) hours per month of annual leave 

with pay ea calendar r or a total of fi een (15) per 

year. 

SECTION 4. The vacation schedul shall be posted no later 

than the 1st day of ry, employees sign and bid for 

vacation schedul through t 1st day of March. Seniority 

shall be a fac or In ing annual leave. The Fire Chief or 

s des e shall schedule annual leave. 

SECTION 5. oyees accumulate annual leave up to a 

of forty~five (45) calendar s. The ty may buy back 

any excess annual leave over the forty-five (45) day max but 

not to exceed the (10) days over fort f (45) days. The City 

39 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

reserves the right to determine whether any buy back shall be 

affected. 

SECTION 6. One (1) day equals twenty-four (2 ) hours 

(1 24 hou s). 

SECTION 7. An employee's annual leave accumulation shall be 

reduced by at least one and one-half (1.5) days pe month 

beginning when the employee reaches seventeen and one-half (17.5) 

years of employment with the McAlester Fire Department. As the 

accumulation is reduced, the City shall pay the employee t 

excess over accumu ation. The ty shall required to purchase 

no more than two and one-half (2.5) days per month of excess 

annual leave at the employee's normal rate of pay on an hour per 

hour basis. The hourly rate s 11 be recalculated in January and 

July of each year and any increase in pay in the last six (6) 

months shall be used to calcu te buyback rate. 

SECTION B. HO\'iever, the emp yee following his twenty-year 

anniversary date s 11 be e to accumulate up to twent wo and 

one half (22.5) shifts of annual , the City shall have no 

further obli ion to buy the employee's accumulated leave nor 

will any additional accumul leave subject to buy back. 

40 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 23 

DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 

SECTION 1. ':':'he employel::" agrees to pay all dues, 

certification s, recertification fees, and subscr ion fees 

for all employees qua ifi for merr,bersh or certificat in 

the following organizations: 

A. 	 Oklahoma State Firefighters Association; 

B. 	 National Registry of Emergency Medical ':':'echnicians; 

C. 	 Oklahoma State Emergency Medical Technicians 


Association. 


D. Pittsburg County Fire ghters Associatio~ 

ARTICLE 24 

INSURANCE 

SECTION 1. The City shall have no responsibili to of r 

or any insurance to membel::"s of the bargaining unit. The 

City shal pay to the si ed representat of the members of 

bargaining unit an amount equal to the city's cost in 

p ding each City e \>J ith medi al and 1i 

insur'ance or 610.66 per bargain unit member, whichever 

is mor'e. 

41 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

i3-\,'---4~t:-S---'f':.e-:t=-e-:£€ftE:;e. Sun set by its own terms. 

SECTION 2. Should the bargaining agent provide the ty 

th y days' notice prior to the beginning of a new contract year 

that they wish to join the City's medical insurance an, the 

City agrees to a all employees subject to accentance the 

City's insurance carr 

SECTION 3. The Emplo r agrees to payrol deduct 

coverage for members of the bargaining unit who have authorized 

and approved such payroll deduction. 

ARTICLE 25 

UNIFORM MAINTENANCE ALLOWANCE 

SECTION 1. Each employee shall be respons e cleaning 

and laundering of uniforms and maintenance of footwear. 

ARTICLE 26 

LONGEVITY SERVICE PAY 

SECTION 1. In addition to base rate for each position, 

ty rees to provide a ongevity service pay benefit for each 

member of the bargaining unit, which shall be calculated on a 

42 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

basis of five-dollars ($5.00) per month for each year of 

continuous ervice with the City. The longevity benef shall 

comJnence with t:.te £i annivers ry date of employment. Said 

longevity shall be paid s -annually in the months of June and 

December of each calendar ar with a maximum benefit of t rty 

(30) years. 

ARTICLE 27 

DUES DEDUCTIONS 

SECTION 1. Ci Y rees to deduct regular monthly Union dues 

from earned wages of those members of the bargaining unit. The 

deduction shall be made from one (1) paycheck each month. The check 

for the total payment of dues withheld by the ity shall be made 

y to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Union. 

SECTION 2. Employees authorizing deductions shall present an 

executed authorization card to the City more than thirty (30) days 

prior to the beg ng date of the deduction. 

SECTION 3. City shall deduct dues only from employee's 

paycheck, and will not deduct initiat s, special assessments, 

f s or ot deductions. Deductions shall be at a stated rate 

throughout the term of collective bargaining agreement executed 

herein. No deductions shall made when the salary to paid an 

employee is not suf icient to cover t amount to be ed. 

43 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

• 

SECTION 4. All ions wil be for the month VJhich they 

are taken. 1 deduct ns refundable at the ~ime of te nation or 

resignation shall be refunded by the Union. The City shall not be 

respons Ie for errors or omissions. In the case of an error or 

improper deduction made by the City, a proper adjustment of same 

s 11 be made by Union with the emplo af ed. 

SECTION 5. The Union shall indemni ,defend, and hold the City 

harmless against any and all claims made, and against any suit 

instituted against the City on account of payroll deduction 0 Union 

dues. The cost for the payrolJ deduct service charged by the City 

shall be ln accordance with the following: 

A. All extra work or expense incurred by the City because of 

requests or delays in furnishing information, materials, or 

supplies by the Union, or due to the furnishing of finite, 

erroneous or conflicting data shall be paid r or borne by the 

Union. T charges are to be based upon the City's actual cost 

and will be due and owing to the City upon delive of an 

it zed invoice to the Union; 

B. For normal se ces cont ated by this section, the Union 

s 1 be charged $200.00 per year. 

C. City shall not be liable either at law or equity for any 

damages incurred by the Union which occurs from the City's non­

44 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

performance or delay of the duties and obli ions of this 

covenant, where such non-performance or delay is due to fire, 

electrical or machine ilure, s rike, lock-out, governmenta 

order or regulation, or any other failure similar or diss lar 

beyond the City's reasonable control. 

D. Any member of the Union wishing to stop Union dues 

deductions shall notify the personnel/payroll office the 

first day of each month. 

2. 2mployees in the rgaining unit who are not members of the 

Union may voluntarily elect to have an amount deducted from 

their paycheck, which reflects 85% of t monthly Union dues 

amount. In order to for such a voluntary, monthly 

deduction from a paycheck, an employee mus present an executed 

authorization card to the City more than thirty (30) days prior 

to the beginning date of the deduction. Further, any such 

employee may revoke such authorization and such voluntary 

deduction at any t , upon presenting written notice of 

revocation to the City more than thirty s prior to the next 

deduction. 

SECTION 6. The Employer agrees to make pa 11 deductions of an 

IAFF payroll assessment fee in addition to those provided in Section 

1 from the paychecks of dues-paying members of the Union. The 

45 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
53 1M 

assessment shall be applicab e to members who have signed and have on 

fi with the Employer a voluntary, effective, autho zed and 

approved payroll deduction card. The special assessmen~ shall 

revocable by the Employee notifying loyer in writing. The Union 

sh 11 be notified of any revocation. 

ARTICLE 28 

WAGES 

SECTION 1. For FY 2009 20l{} 2011-2012, members will not receive 

an across the board increase effective as of July 1, ~ 2011. 

FIREFIGHTERS PAY RANG2 

Captains C-19 

Lieutenants -17 

Operators C-15 

re ghter II C-13 

Firefi rIC 11 

Probationary Firefighter C-9 

SECTION 2. 

A. All members of the re Department shall obtain State 

EMT Certi ion within the first two (2) years of employment 

with the McAlester Fire Department unless circumstances warrant 

ex~ending the time period by the re Chief. er the first 

istry obligation there will be no further requirements to 

46 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

rna ain Nationa EMT Cert f cat status. Each 

f re ighter/officer shall receive an additional $20.00 per month 

per training sicker, not ~o exceed $470 per month for all 

s~ickers and units inclu ve and ~hose identified separate 

article in Article 36. Only five (5) refresher stickers will be 

count toward training st cker incent pay. The second five 

(5) tra ning stickers may include one (1) refresher sticker per 

course only. Each party reserves the right to request r ng 

this contract if requirements of EMTs change during t course of 

this contract period. 

B. Each firefighter obtain an Associate's e shall 

receive $25.00 per month over base salary. Each firefighter 

obtaining a Bachelor's ree shall receive $50.00 per month over 

base salary. Each firefighter obtaining a Master's shall 

receive $75.00 per month over se salary. These educat 1 

incentives are not cumulative, and satisfactory proof of 

qualification must be provided by e firefighter. 

C. Each firefighter shall receive an additional $10.00 a 

month for obtaining the first ins ructor certification and $5.00 

a month for the next three (3), with a maximum of $25.00 a month. 

Instructor certifications are limited to Instructor Level I, 

47 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

Instructor Level II, re Cause Determination and nvestigation 

(FCDI), Level I, FCDI, Level II and CPR Instructor. 

D. Each firefighter/officer shall receive an additional 

$50.00 per month over bas salary for obtaining the 

qualifications required to a Fire Department 

or/lnvesti or. 

E. Each fire fight officer shall ve an additional 

$5.00 month per Hazardous Material Training course not to 

exceed $25.00 per month. Each firefighter fficer s 11 receive 

an additional $5.00 per month per Hazardous Material Train-the 

Trainer course or Hazardous Material Response Team Instructor 

(as identified in Arti e 36, Section 4) not to exceed $25.00 per 

month. This incentive is no long obtainable after 07 01-05. 

Incent s earned under this sub-section prior to 07-01-05 shall 

continue. 

F. Certified EMT instructors shall receive one hundred 

fifty dollars ($150.00) a month incentive pay. No more than two 

EMT instructors will eligible to rece this pay and the re 

Chie shall be responsible for rna ng the assignments. 

G. No more than three empl s will be assigned to 

perform mechanic duties. se employees will rece an 

additional $150.00 per month incentive pay. Duties are outlined 

48 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

in the Rules and Regu ions. Designation of the mechanics and 

any a tional ties and ~esponsibil ies shall solely 

des gnated by the Fi~e Ch f. 

H. Each firefi er will be paid twenty ($20) llars per 

month for completion of any OSU rescue series and vehicle 

extrication. This is subject to the ncen ive limitation as 

identified in Article 28, Section a. 1 members of the 

McAlester Fire Department shall obtain and maintain Hazardous 

Materials rations Level Certi ion. Any employee wanting to 

receive incentive pay and serve on Hazardous Materials Response 

Team (HMRT) at Technician certification level wi 1 be paid an 

a itional seventy-five ($75.00) per month. Not subject to 

limitation as identified Artic 28, Sec.2-A. Emp oyees may 

sign up this incentive upon complecion of the course or each 

year Ju . Employees may remove this incentive after two (2) 

years of signing up. (This would allow for the choice to be on 

the HMRT.) Should the number of Techs fall below the required 

nimum, the Employer may request negotiations and re-open this 

section of the agreement with ten (10) days notice to 

Bargain Agent. 

49 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

I . The re Mars shall an additional one 

hundred fifty dollars ($150) per month for successfully 

completing mainta ing CLEET Certification and Bonding. 

SECTION 3. 

A refighter shall obtain rank of Firefighter II after: 

A. The successful completion of Oklahoma State Fire 

Service Trai ng Recruit Schoo 

B. successful completion of EMT basic training and 

issuance of the Oklahoma State EMT registration. 

C. ~he successful completion of five (5) Oklahoma 

State Fire Service training stickers. 

D. Anniversa date shall be date of obt rank of 

Firefighter II. 

SECTION 4. A new recruit has to have complete OSG training 

courses A and B, Recognizing and Identifying Hazardous Materials, 

and Wild Land Fire. Rodney Ragan and Larry Glover shall be 

red as having completed these courses even though 

OSO Fire Service Training does not recognize that they have 

complet the course. 

50 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 29 

SAVINGS CLAUSE 

SECTION 1. If any sion of this Agreement or the 

application thereof to any person or circumstance is held 

inval invalidity shall not effect other provisions or 

applications of this ement which can be given effect w thout 

the invalid sion or application, and to this end, the 

ons of this Agreement are severable. 

SECTION 2. It is understood that the foregoing is a 

complete understanding 0 all the terms and conditions of 

oyment to be governed by this Agreement during the contract 

period, and it cannot be altered in any manner save by the 

complete written concurrence of the parties subscr ing hereto. 

SECTION 3. Any endices to this ement all be 

numbered, dated and signed by the Employer and the on, and 

shall be subject to the provisions of this Agreement unless the 

terms of said Appendices spe fically lete or change a 

provision of this Agreement; and all Appendices shall become part 

of this Agreement as is specifically set forth herein. 

SECTION 4. It is understood that all time I s found 

within this Agreement may extended by mutual concurrence. 

51 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 30 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR PERSONAL PROPERTY 

SECTION 1. Personal arti es necessary to enable 

Firef ghters to better perform their duties that are or 

broken in the line of duty shall be repaired or replaced at the 

option of the City; however, with regard to watches, the Ci 's 

responsibility to ir or replace may not exceed $75.00. 

SECTION 2. Personal articles, as conta in this Article, 

shaJl include, are not limited to: 1. Prescr ion 

eyeglasses and/or contact lens; 2. Dentures; 3. Heari a s; 

4. Watches; 5. Medical 10 jewelry. 

SECTION 3. A \,yr t ten report 0 the damage or brea kage all 

be made to the on-duty Shift Commander \,yhen such or 

breakage occurs. 

SECTION 4. When repair or l:'eplacement is necessary, the 

Firefighter's report stating how, when, and where such damage or 

breakage occurred shall be forwarded to t Fire Chief. 

52 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 31 

WORKING OUT OF CLASSIFICATION 

SECTION 1. ~vhen an authori zed budgeted ition is 

temporarily lor permanently vacant and the fire Chief has 

autho ty to fill said vacancy, the re Chief shall appo an 

employee to fill said vacancy on a temporary basis. 

SECTION 2. After forty-f (45) calendar days from the 

date of actual vacancy, an employee appointed to fill that 

position on a tempo basis shall be entitled to rece the 

base salary pay of that s~t Once the position is 

permanently fill , this working out of classificat on pay shall 

cease on e of the permanent appo 

ARTICLE 32 

GARNISHMENTS AND LEVY ON WAGES 

SECTION 1. loyee shall be expected to their bona 

fide debts so as not to bri disc to department and the 

C y. 

53 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
. fl 

SECTION 2. Failure to comply with this Article means of 

the City being served with a Garnishment and/or Levy on Wages on 

an employee may be cause for dismissal, prov ng such employe 

ha had more than two (2) Garnishments and/ r on Wages 

se on ~he City for process wi~hin one ( calendar year, 

excl ng continuous orders. 

ARTICLE 33 

UTILITY SUBSIDY 

SECTION 1. Each employee residing within the McA~ester ty 

1 "ts will be required to Y 100 of his/her munici utility 

bill. 

ARTICLE 34 

SHORT TIME LEAVE 

SECTION 1. Fire personnel may ta leave off in ~welve (~2) 

hour increments, provided such absence s not create manning 

problems. Such short- ime leave shall be deducted from accrued, 

unused holiday, sick or annua leave, as appropriate under 

existing criter for leave usage Article 17, 18 or 22, 

54 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

subject to Management or Man 's des IS scret as 

lis~ed in each speci c art Ie. 

ARTICLE 35 

PROMOTION PLANS FOR McALESTER FIRE DEPARTMENT 

SECTION 1. Promotion Board shall consist of f 

(~ ,members: Manager or h s designee, Fire Chief, Local 2284~l 

Un President, and two (2) at-la~ge firefighte~s elected by t 

Ba lnl Unit. The Ci~y Manager, Fire Chief, and Union 

President s 1 serve as long as they occupy the office described 

above. The at-la~ge resentatives shall serve a riod f two 

(2) years. Ea member shall have one (1) vote and the majori 

of the votes shall be the f 1 decision on Promotion Board 

matters. The ~e Chief 11 serve as Board Chairman. 

SECTION 2. Eligibil ty questions and P~omotional Issues not 

contained specifical here shall be posed to the P~omotion 

Board for a rul If such an issue should ar se any membe~ 

will call the Board Chairman and shall be his purpose to set 

notice, call mee~ings, and notify each member when a Promotion 

Board meeting is required. 

SECTION 3. All ~es ing r promo~ion shall contain at least 

three (3) icants. In t event re are not three (3) 

55 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 , 

appl cants eligible as identified in Section 4, the Promotion 

Board shall recess back one day at a time, uti izing time 

service, until at least three (3) applicants are obtained. f 

more than one applicant falls eligible the same that the 

third applicant has become igible, then these applicants will 

likewise be eligible. 

SECTION 4. Eligibil Y irements for promotion shall be: 

A. 	 Driver/Operator - Must have been a f refighter for 

(3) 	 years without any interrupted service with the McAlester Fire 

rtment. 

B. Lieutenant - Must have six (6) years of uninter ed 

service wi h Lhe McAlester Fire Department and three (3) years of 

the six (6) years must have been as a Dr r/ rator. 

C. Captain Must have nine (9) years of uninterrupted 

service with the McAlester F re ~epartment and three (3) years of 

the (9) years must have en as Lieutenant. 

D. Training Captain/ re Marshal Must have nine (9) rs 

of uninte ed service with the McAlester Fire Department and 

three (3) ars of the ne (9) must have been as a Lieutenant. 

Must have satisfacto ly completed the following O.S.U. re 

Service Train~ng Courses: 

Fire rson Detect (12 hours), 

56 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

~ire Cause Determinat and Investigation Level I (72 

hours), re Instructor Level II 

Inspection Pract s (60 hours), 

Three (3) college hours relating to re nspection 

Practices or a re Service Training In ion Certificate from 

O.S.U., and eight (8) wee of Basic Police Academy Training by 

C.L.E.E. 

Should any employee applying not have the required 

C.L.E.E.T. training or the three (3) college hours relating to 

Fire Inspection Practices but meet all other criteria, then se 

requirements shall be waived. The Fire Marshal appointed will 

have up to one (1) year to successful y complete these 

requirements unless Management determines that addit 1 t is 

necessary to complete these requirements. 

SECTION 5. All tests s 11 be administered by O.S.U. Fire 

Service T ng and s 11 consist of 100 multiple choice, 

true/false, or matching questions; the combination to be 

determined by O.S.U. Each question 1 be wo one (1) point 

each. For Captain the test stions shall corne from the most 

current edition of the following books: Company Officer, 40 

questions; Fire Instructor, 30 questions; Essentials, 30 

questions. For Lieutenant the test questions shall come from the 

57 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

most current ion of the follow books: Company Officer, 35 

questions; Fire Instructor, 30 questions; Essentia s, 35 

questions. For Driver/Operator the test questions shall co~e 

from the most current edit of the follow g books: Apparatus, 

60 questions; Essentials, 40 questions. Passing score shall be a 

minimum of 60 points. If an applicant achieves the minimum 

ssing score, they shall add one (1) po nt for each year of 

service over t minimum eligibility requirement for the 

position; t s 11 add one (1) point for each year of in grade 

service over the minimum eligibili requirements; they shall add 

one (1) point for each Certi ed Fire Ins ructor class (lor II) 

and one (1) point for each Fire/Arson class (I or II). A 

ical examination on streets, driving and operation of tools 

and apparatus utilizing a checklist shall be prepared and agreed 

upon by both parties on Driver/Operator exam and a copy of 

the last street exam be prov to all applicants two weeks 

prior to the exam. This checklist and street test will be 

prepared within the Department, with the street test being 

prepared and the streets sen on the day of exam. For Fire 

Mar l/Training Capta the test questions shall come from the 

most current e tion of the following books: y Officer, 30 

58 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
& 

questions; Fire Instructor, 30 questions; Essentials, 10 

questions and In ction Practices, 30 questions. 

SECTION 6. The F'ire Chief shall make the promotional 

from either of two (2) icants with the 

highest total score. f the highest scor applicant is not 

chosen the Chief shall give a reasonable explanation of why the 

highest scoring appl cant was not chosen. Scores s 11 remain 

valid and eligible for one (1) year. If another vacancy occurs 

within this one (1) year, the Chief shall then make his 

appointment from the top two (2) applicants on the eligibility 

list. 

SECTION 7. Any employee who has been reduced in rank by 

administrative act or on his/her own accord will not be 

eligible to test for that pas ion for a period of one year. 

SECTION 8. The Chief or his designee shall post an opening 

for promotion testing thin th rty days from the e the 

sition has become vacant. 

SECTION 9. Any a licant who is igible to test for any 

promotion shall notify the Chief in w ing within the allotted 

deadline. 

59 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

SECTION 10. Upon the Fire f's promotional appointment 

the successful appointee wi have a performance eval ion in 

six (6) months to sustain the appointment. 

ARTICLE 36 

DEPARTMENTAL FIRE SERVICE TRAINING 

SECTION 1. Basic Continui Education - Basic fire fighting 

continui~g educat on shall consis of the following o.s.u. Fire 

Service courses and minimum training red for completion 

of each course. 

Unit 1-Ul, Forcible Entry, Rope and Portable Fire 

Exti s r-18 hours 

Unit 2-U2, Ladder Practices-30 hours 

Unit 3-U3, Hose Practice o hours 

U t 4-U4, Sa~vage and Overhaul Practices-24 hours 

Unit 5-U5, Fire Stream Practices-48 hours 

Unit 6-U6, re Apparatus Practice o hours 

Unit 7-U7, Ventilation Pract o hours 

Unit 8-U8, Rescue Practices-48 hours 

Unit 9-U9, First Aid Practices-40 rs 

Unit 10-U10, Inspection Prac~ices-60 hours 

60 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

over to New Stem Both part es agree 

that the re sha 1 change over to the new O.S.U. Fire 

Se ce reco system on July 1, 1993. 

SECTION 3. ional Continui 2ducation Courses 

Additional fire fighting continuing education shal consist of 

the following O.S.U. Fire Service courses, under the new record­

keeping system, and the minimum training required for completion 

of each course. 

Unit l1-Ul1, Basic Strategy and Tacti o hours 

Unit 12-012, refighter Safety and Protective Equipment-24 

hours 

Un 1 13, re Behavior and Chemistry of re-24 

Unit 14~014, Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus and 

Cascade-12 hOclrs 

Unit 15~U15, Company Officer-3D hours 

Unit 16-U16, Public Fire ion-IS hours 

Dni 17-017, Wild Land Firefighting Fundamentals-16 hours 

t 18-U18, Leader ip for Company Office D hours 

Unit 19-U19, Industrial re Protection-20 hours 

20-020, re Fighter Health and Safety-36 hours 

SECTION 4. Hazardous Materia Hazardous material 

training courses shal consist of the follow O.S.U. Fire 

61 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

Service, N.F.A. Fire Se ce Training courses and/or Tra -the-

Trainer hand-off courses and the minimum "'raining required for 

etion of each course. 

Hazardous Materia s Incident Analysis-12 hours 

Hazardous Mate a:s the Pesticide Challenge-12 hours 

Recognizing and Identif ng Hazardous Materials-8 hours 

Incident Command System-12 hours 

Hazardous Materials Response Team Training-36 hours 

Hazardous Mater Is Operations-48 hours 

Hazardous Materia s Technician-80 

LPG C ass 12 hours 

Emergency Vehicle ver Training 8 hours 

Confined Space rat 24 hours 

Confined Space Rescue 40 hours 

Emergency Response to Terrorism 16 hours 

Should any of the "Hazardous ~aterial Train the Trainer" 

courses be discont by the O.S.U. or N.F.A., employees having 

had the course either within the Fire Department or outsi the 

department and being certified as a Level I or II instructor 

shall then meet the qualifications required to instruct t e 

courses w hin the McAlester Fire Department and rece the 

incentive pay attached to these courses. 

62 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

Each firefighter who attends Officer and Leadership courses 

that are only offered th OSU Fire Service Training or 

National Fire Academy and taught by the r structors 'Ni 11 

qualify as additional conti ng education courses as if list 

in Sect on 3. 

ARTICLE 37 

PENSION/RETIREMENT 

SECTION 1. In accordance with 11 O.S. 49 122, the City 

shall contribute the statutorily red percentage of the 

employees' tota actual paid gross s laries to the Oklahoma 

Firefighters Pension and Retirement System. 

SECTION 2. In accordance with 11 O.S. 49-122, the oyee 

shall cont~ibute e ght rcent (8%) to the Oklahoma Firefighters 

Pension and Retirement System. The new conversion calculation 

shall begin on December 1, 2006. 

SECTION 3. All other terms of pension and retirement shall 

be governed by the Oklahoma Firef ghters Pension and Retirement 

System as provided n 11 O.S. 49-100.1 to 11 O.S. 49 143, et al. 

63 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

ARTICLE 38 

TRANSFERS 

SECTION 1. Any ?ull-time employee working for the City of 

McAlester excluded as an emp Gnder the terms and conditions 

of this agreement may transfer into the re Department and the 

Bargaining Unit subject to approval by the Fire Chief and City 

~anager and pursuant to the terms of the a and the 

llowing sections. 

A. Any full-time emplo who is approved for trans r 

into the Fire Department shall be allowed to transfer 

annual leave and sick leave accumulation into the Fire 

rtment at a rate of eight (8) hours per y of 

ated leave. Annual leave accrual rates shall be 

based on time in se ce as an employee as defined in 

Article 6 of the Agreement. 

B. Any full-time employee who is approved for transfer 

into the Fire Department shall have longevity gured 

on continuous time in se with the City of 

McAlester rather than service with the re Department. 

C. Any full-time employee who is approved for transfer 

into the re Department shall begin his/ s ary at 

the beginning pay classification, S One (1) for a 

64 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

Fire Recruit. However, if the employee has prior 

documented fire se ce experience or is at least a 

Certified 2MT he/she may begin his/her salary at St 

Two (2) or Three (3) but still at the same pay grade of 

a Fire Recruit. 

D. Any successful applicant who is not a City employee 

shall likewise start at the re Recruit pay 

classification, Step One (1) unless he/she has prior 

documented fire service or is at least a Certified EMT. 

He/s too, must start at the Fire Recruit pay 

classification but start at a hi step grade as 

described in Section Four. 

SECTION 2. Fire Department Employees (as defined under 

Article 6) transferring within the Department from a L ne 

position to a Staff position or from a Staff position to a Line 

position shall make conversion pursuant to t terms of the 

a and the following sections or sub-sections. 

A. Any employee transferring from a ne position to 

a Staff position shall be allowed to mainta all 

annual leave and sick leave accumulations based on the 

total hours allowed under Article 22 and Article 18. 

Example: A) 45 days X 24 hrs = 1080 hours of annual 

65 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
... 

leave accumulation. B) 90 days X 24 hrs 2160 hours 

of sick leave accumu ation. The employee may exercise 

an option to have al hours of accumulation reduced to 

eight hour days and to be compensated for all excess 

leave over and above the maximum accumulations on an 

hour for hour basis at the employee's regular hourly 

rate of pay. Example: 1200 hours of annual leave 

accumulation reduced to maximum of 360 hours 1 ng 

840 hours to be bought back by the City at the 

employee's hourly rate; or 2400 hours of sick leave 

accumulation reduced to maximum of 720 hours ng 

680 hours to be bought back by the City at the 

employee's hourly rate. 

B. Any Employee transferring from a Line position to 

a Staff pos ion shall accrue or earn annual leave and 

sick leave in the fo lowing manner. 

1. Empl s th less than nine (9) years of 

service shall not be allowed to transfer from a 

Line position to a Staff posit 

2 . loyees with nine years of service shall 

earn urteen (14) hours per month of annual 

leave with pay each cal r year or a total of 

66 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
&£ 

twent 1 ) r year and shall take 

annual leave based on ei (8) hOJrs = one (1) 

day of leave. 

3. Staff emp s will earn sick leave at a 


rate of ei (8) hours per month and shall 


ta sick leave based on eight (8) hours one 


(1) day of leave. 


4 • Staff employees 11 receive thirteen (13) 


holidays based on eight (8) hours one (1) 


holiday. 


5. Staff Employees shall be to earn their 


leave and Holidays b sed on an eight (8) r 


(forty (40) hour work-week) on the first 

(1st) of the month following the trans r 

from line to staff. All leave and holidays 

earned p or to this date 11 be at the 24­

hOJr day. fty-t (53) hour week) 

6. Staff Employees shall work a schedJle of 

eight (8) hours per day five (5) days per week 

or forty (40) hours per week. The daily and 

weekly work schedule is f ble and may be 

s ed with the approval of the Chief as 

67 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
• eM 

ong as forty (40) hours per wee~ are scheduled 

and worked. 

Fire Departnent Employees (as defined r 

Artic e 6) transferring within the department from a 

Staff position to a Line position shall earn and 

accumulate all leave as listed in the specific article 

of the agreement for such leave beginning on the first 

(1st) day of the month the transfer takes place. All 

leave and hoI ys earned wh Ie emplo as a Staff 

Employee will be at eight (8) hours one (1) day rate. 

SECTION 3. Transfers within the same pay grade from Staff 

to Line position or fron ne to Staff position may be allowed 

on if the employee has tested for and is still elig Ie to fil 

a position tha is created or s become vacant, or the emp 

is transferring to a posi ion, either Staff or Line, that the 

empl e rly held. 

ARTICLE 39 


ALCOHOL AND DRUG TESTING POLICY 


SECTION 1. Alcohol a 

------------------~--------~------~~-------~~~ 

The purpose of this art cle is to naintain a work 

environnent that is safe and conduc to high work standards. 

68 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

T~e policy is a joint effort of the City of McAlester and the 

IAFF Local 284 for the el tion of substance abuse and the 

improvement of related job performance. Having a substance abuse 

problem may render an employee unfit for duty. Such behav or 

shall not be tolerated and the City will administer a program to 

educate employees regarding the hazards of substance abuse and to 

eliminate such abuse. The C y's program shall include efforts 

to rehabilitate employees suffering from s:Jbstance abuse 

problems. This policy shall be in accordance with and 

administered pursuant to OKLA. STAT. title 40, 551, et, s 

The Oklahoma Standards for Workplace Drug and Al 1 Test 

Act, 49 U.S.C. sections 2717 and 1434 of the Federal statutes and 

the Department of Transportation (D.O.T.) Rules and Reg:Jlations 

found at 40 CFR Part 121 and 40 CFR Parts 382, 391, and 392 and 

any amendments thereto. Drug or alcohol testing required by and 

conducted pursuant to ral law or regulation shall be exempt 

from the prov sions of the Standards for Workplace Drug and 

Alcohol Testing Act and the ru s promulgated pursuant thereto. 

SECTION 2. Effective Date 

This policy will be effective thirty (30) days after 

offic posting and llowing distribution 0 the pol cy to all 

rs of the bargaining unit. 

69 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

SECTION 3. lication and Violation 

This policy shall apply to all emp oyees of the McAlester 

re ~epartffient. Employees late any aspect of this policy 

luding receiving a confirmed positive test or refusing to 

submit to testing) may be subject to disc linary action, up to 

and luding termination. 

SECTION 4. Pre-Placement Test 

All applicants for position wi the McAlester Fire 

rtment shall undergo drug and alcohol testing as part of 

their physical prior to assignment. 

Job applicants 11 be tested only after conditional offer 

of employment. Refusal to undergo a test, or a confirmed 

positive test, shall be the basis for withdrawing offer of 

employment. 

SECTION 5. Random Test 

A. The City may request or require unit members to undergo 

drug testing on a random selection basis. 

B. "Random selection basis" means a me sm for 

selecting employees for drug testing that: 

1. Results in an equal probability that any employee 

from the group of employees subject to the selection 

mechanism will be selected; and 

70 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
m 	 tI 

2 . Does not give the employer scretion to wa the 

selection of any employee selected under the mechanism. 

C. Un t employees shall be randomly tested at the 

following test rates: 

1. The maximum year y rcentage rate for random-

controlled 	substances testing shall be f 

(25%) percent of all Fire rtment members. 

D. The City shall st ve to ensure that random-controlled 

substance tests, conducted pursuant to this article, are 

unannounced. Follow ng the testing of the poo of Fire 

Department members, the City will provide the Union 

Pres nt a listing of all members scheduled for testing and 

those tested. 

E. Every unit member who is sele for random drug 

tes ng shall proceed to the test site immediately upon 

notification, unless the unit member is act ly performing 

a safety-sensitive ion at the time of notification, 

which will not reasonably allow his/her replacement. In 

such cases, the unit member's supe sor shall ensure that 

the unit member proceeds to the testing site as soon as 

possible. 

71 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

F. Unit members will be informed that they have been 

selected to submit samples after they have arrived at work 

on the day of collection. Specimen collections shall occur 

as soon as possible after the beginning of the work shift. 

Unit members shall be tested only during working hours. 

G. Fire employees shall be considered a 

separate pool of employees for purposes of random testing. 

SECTION 6. Reasonable Su cion 

Drug and alcohol testing may be required of any employee if 

there is "reasonable suspicion u that the employee is using 0 has 

used drugs or alcohol in violation of this policy. Reasonable 

suspicion is, among other things: 

5.1 Observable and articulable phenomena, such as physical 

symptoms or manifestation of being under the influence of drugs 

or alcohol while at work or on duty: 

5.2 The direct observation of such use while at work or on 

duty. 

5.3 A report of drug or alcoho use while at work or on 

duty provided by reliable and c ble sources and which have 

been independently corroborated; 

5.4 that an employee is involved in the use, 

possession, sale, solic ation, or transfer of drugs while on 

72 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
A 

duty or while on the employer's premises or operating the 

employer's vehicle, ry, or equipment. 

No testing under "reasonable suspicion" shall be initiated 

unless the circumstances are properly reviewed and agreed upon by 

a least two (2) supervisory-level personnel within the Fire 

Department. A written record of the observations leading to any 

drug or a 1 tests shall be created by the sor(s) who 

made such observations within 8 hours of the observed behavior. 

SECTION 7. Post-Accident 

Post-accident drug and alcohol testing may be conducted on 

any employee where there has been damage to City property which 

City reasonably believes at the time exceeds Five Hundred Dollars 

($500.00)or where there has been i ury to any employee or third 

party, or where there exists "reasonable suspicion" the 

accident, i ury, or damage was a result of the use of drugs or 

alcohol by the employee. 

SECTION 8. Post-Rehabilitation Testi 

The City of McAlester may ire an to undergo 

drug or alcohol testing without notice for a period of two (2) 

years after returning to work after a confirmed posit test 

and/or following participation in a drug or alcohol dependency 

~reatment program. (Post-rehabilitation testing shall be in 

73 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
ed 

addition to any other testing the rehabilitation program 

requires. ) 

SECTION 9. Substance for 'Vvhich Test t'Cla be Given Includes 
Related Metabolites 

9.1 	 Ethyl Alcohol or Ethanol (beer, liquor, etc.) 

9.2 	 Cannabinoids or Marijuana (pot, weed, grass) 

9.3 	 Cocaine (including crack) 

9.4 	 Amphetamines (including speed) 

9.5 	 Op ates (including morphine, codeine, dilaudid, 
percodan) 

9.6 idine (including angel dust, PCP) 

Thresho d reporting Is shall be those established and 

rna ined by the ral rtment of Transportation and as 

utilized by the National Institute for Drug Abuse. 

SECTION 10. 	 and Collection Procedures 

10.1 Al collection and testing shall be done in 

accordance w h the rules prornul ed by the Oklahoma State 

Board of Health. 

10.2 Al sample collection and testing for drugs and 

alcohol pursuant to the provisions of s article shall be 

conducted in accordance with the following: 

a. 	 Samples shall be collected and tested by labs 

deemed qualified by the State Board of Health. 

74 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
& P' 

b. 	 The collection of samples shall be performed 

under reasonable and sanitary conditions. 

c. 	 A samele shall be collected in sufficient 

quantity for litting into separate specimens 

pursuant to rules of the State Board of Health 

to provide for any subsequent independent 

analysis in the event of challenge o~ test 

results on the main specimen. 

d. 	 Samples shall be collected and tested with due 

regard to the of the individual being 

tested. In the instance of urinalysis, no 

employer shall observe an applicant or emp 

in the process of produc ng a urine s Ie. 

e. 	 S e collections shall be documented, and the 

documentation shall include: 

1. 	 Labeling of samples so as reasonably to 

preclude the probability of erroneous 

identification of test results, and 

2. 	 An opportunity for the applicant or 

employee to p de notification of any 

formation which the appl or 

employee considers relevant to the test, 

75 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

luding identification of currently or 

recently used prescr ion or non­

prescr ion , or other relevant 

information. 

SECTION 11. Cost 

The City shall pay all costs of testing for drugs or alcohol 

required this policy including confirmation tests required by 

is policy. If an oyee requests a retest of a s e in 

order to challenge the results of a positive test result, 

oyee shall pay all costs of the retest. If the retest 

reverses the findings of the challenged positive test, the C 

shall reimburse the individual for the cost of the retest. 

SECTION 12. with 

Employees refusing to rgo testing according to the terms 

of this icy shall be subject to disc I ry action up to and 

including termination. Employees found supplying or att ing 

to supply an altered s e or a substituted sample, not +- r 

own, by whatever means, sha I be subject to disc inary action 

UD to and including termination. 

SECTION 13. Confidentiali 

76 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
4* 

The ty shall treat all tests all information related 

to such test, includ interv~ews, memoranda, reports, and 

statements as conf ntial. 

SECTION 14. Disc Action 

The City shall not take di linary action against any 

oyee who tests positive for drugs or alcohol unless the test 

is confirmed by a second test performed on the same sample using 

the methods prescribed by the Oklahoma Standards for Workplace 

Drug and Alcohol Testing Act. However, this shall not preclude 

the use of paid leave in cases involving reasonable s cion. 

~on-probationary employees with a previously satisfactory 

work record will be given an opportunity to continue employment 

after an initial occurrence of a positive drug or alcohol test. 

Some period of leave with pay may be granted dependent on the 

employee's leave accrual for the employee to be enrolled in an 

approved rehabilitation program. 

Continued oyment, if offered, shall be contingent upon 

the employee agreeing in writing to undergo random or periodic 

drug and/or alcohol post-rehabilitation testing for two (2) 

years. 

If an employee tests positive r drugs and alcohol, said 

employee may be suspended, demoted, or terminated following a 

77 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
'4 

pre-te ion hea ng. 6mployees refusing to enroll in an 

approved rehabilitation program shall be terminated. 

SECTION 15. Upon demand that the employee submit a samDle 

for testing, the employee shall receive a written description of 

his/her rights, obligations and options, as set forth in 

subsection 1 below. Thereafter, the employee shall be escorted 

to the designated medical or collection facility where s es 

will be given for the purpose of ana is. 

A. 	 RIGHTS OF EMPLOYE6S UNDER THE SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY FOR 
THE CITY OF MCALEST6R 

You, as an oyee of the City of McAlester, have been 

asked to give the ty a breath sample for alcohol test and 

a urine sample for drug testing under the substance abuse policy. 

You, as an employee, have the following rights: 

1. You may refuse to the C Y with the appropriate 

sample. However, if your refuse, it may result in 

termination of your employment. 

2. If you agree to give a breath and/or ne sample for 

testing, you will be asked to sign a consent form which 

authorizes the taking and sending of the sample to the 

laboratory used by the City to conduct the analysis and to 

release said results of analysis to the medical 

officer and to the designated Substance Abuse Policy 

78 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

Administrator for the ty of McAlester, which is the 

Personnel Director for the City of McAlester. 

3. If you agree to be tested, you will be escorted to a 

medical facility by the applicable supervisor. If you are 

tested for alcohol and not drugs, you will be returned to 

work upon a negative finding subject to spe al instruction 

for safety-sensitive employees. If posit , you will be 

unable to return to work for at least twenty-four (24) hours 

and will be subject to possible dis inary action. Upon 

being tested for drugs under reasonable suspicion, post 

a , or cost vehicular accident testing, you will be 

s with pay. Suspension 11 be effective 

immediately after the testing and shall be for the period of 

time required to process, screen and confirm test results. 

If your test results are negative, you will be reinstated 

and all reference to the suspension shall be removed from 

your personnel file. Random testing and return to duty 

follow-up testing for drugs does not require immediate 

suspension. 

4. If your test results are positive for drugs or alcohol, 

you will be given the opport ty to participate in the 

Employee Assistance Program. Participation in the Employee 

79 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

Assistance Program will not avoid any disc ine, including 

termination, which may be imposed. 

5. You may, within seven y-two (72) hours on receipt of 

the drug test results, request the split specimen be 

analyzed by a different certified laboratory site. 

If you request the split specimen test, you will be 

responsible 	for its cost unless the test results are negative. 

On this day of , 200 
-~~- ~----~..- ­

Have read the for rights and fully understand them. 

Employee Si ure 

Prior to testing, the yee shall sign a consent form 

authorizing: (1) the medical facility to take the specimeni and 

(2) authorizing the testing laboratory to release the test 

results to the medical review officer and the designated 

substance abuse policy administer. The consent form shall 

provide space for the employee to acknowledge that he or she has 

been notified of the substance abuse policy. An employee's 

refusal to sign the consent form shall constitute a refusal to be 

tested. 

MEDICAL CONSENT AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION 

80 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
$.' 

The undersigned volunta ly consents and agrees, as a 

condition of employment, to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test, 

ch may include a urine test for controlled substances and/or 

evidential breath or blood alcohol test by doctors or other 

qualified persons. 

The results of any such examination and tests may be 

released to the Personnel Director of the City of McAlester, 

Oklahoma. 

: hereby release the physicians, medical facilities, 

clinics, and their employees, agents and representatives from 

any and all liability, for inaccurate test results 

arising from the release and use of the information discovered 

in such test including the results of any test and any decision 

rega ng my employment or pro employment with the City 

of McAlester, Oklahoma. 

---_.__._._---_.-.--_.__._._-­

(Employee S ure) 


CONFIDENTIALITY OF TESTING RESULTS AND RECORDS 


A. The City shall maintain all drug and alcohol test results 

and related in rmation including, but not limited to, 

rviews, reports, statements and memoranda, as confidential 

records separate from other personnel records. 

81 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

B. Such records, including the records of the testing 

facility, shall not be used in a criminal proceeding or a 

civil or administrative p ng, except in administrat 

actions taken by the employer. 

C. The records maintained by the City shall be the 

property of the employer and, upon request of the unit 

member, shall be made available for inspection and copying 

to the unit member. 

D. The City shall not release records to any person 

than the unit member or the City's medical ew officer 

except the list of those scheduled for testing and those who 

have been tested to the Union President, unless t unit 

member, in writing following receipt of the test results, 

has expressly granted permission for the City to release 

such records or pursuant to valid court order. 

E. A testing facility, or any agent, representative or 

designee of facility, or any ew officer shall not 

disclose to any employer, based on the analysis of a sample 

collected from a unit member for the purpose of testing for 

the presence of drugs or alcohol, any formation relating 

to: 

82 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

• 
1. The general health, pregnancy or other physical or 

mental condition of the unit member; 

2. The presence of any drug other than the or its 

metabolites that the C y requested to be identi ed and for 

which a medically acceptable explanation of the positive 

result, other than the use of drugs, has not been 

forthcoming from unit member, provided however, a 

testing facility shall release records of drug or 

alcohol test, and any analysis and information related 

thereto, to e individual tested upon his request. 

F. If the test result is negative, the MRO shall only inform 

the City that the test was negative w hout disclosing any 

other information. 

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM E.A.P.) 

The City shall maintain ei an in-house or contract an 

\\Emp oyee Assistance Program", which at a minimum p s for 

drug and a cohol dependency evaluation and referral services for 

substance abuse counse ing, treatment or rehabilitation. 

APPEAL PROCEDURES AND REMEDIES 

A. Unit members may appeal any discipline imposed s a 

result of drug or alcohol testing via the vance procedure. 

83 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

B. The Oklahoma Standards for Workplace and Alcohol 

Testing Act provides that any person aggrieved by a willful 

violation of the Act may institute a vii action for 

declaratory or injunctive relief and damages, and provide for 

misdemeanor penalties for knowing and willful o ations of 

the Act. 

C. The party's agreement to random drug testing in no way 

diminishes, acquiesces, or removes a unit member's civil 

rights under the U.S. Constitution. 

ARTICLE 40 


HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 


There is hereby established a Health and Safety Committee 

and respons lities are as follows: 

SECTION 1. Committee shall consist of ve (5) members, 

which include one firefighter, one driver, one eutenant, one 

ain, and the Fire Chief or his designee. 

SECTION 2. Any and all recomrnendations shall be presented 

to the re Chief for action or non-action. If this committee 

disagrees vii th the Chief's action or non-action, the matter shall 

automatically go to the Safety cer. 

84 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 .. 

SECTION 3. The Safety Officer will review all details and 

submi t a nal report in wri ng to the Chief and Safety 

Committee. 

SECTION 4. The COInmi ttee of Rank will be sele to serve 

as follows: 

A) Firefighters will des te their representative 

B) Drivers will designate their representative 

C) eutenants will designate their representative 

D) Captains will designate their representative 

SECTION 5. It is understood this co~mittee will act solely 

as an advisory and non-authoritative committee. 

ARTICLE 41 

AFFILIATION LEAVE 

SECTION 1. Any employee who becomes an officer or maintains 

an appointment on a fire service related board or cOMnittee such 

as re Chie Association, International Association of Arson 

Investigators, Oklahoma State Firefighter Pension Board, Oklahoma 

State Firefighters Association, International Ass ation of Fire 

Fighters, Professional Fire Fighters of Oklahoma, State Fire 

Marshals Office at either t state or national level shall be 

85 




-----------------"---

McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
4 

given t off of up to one day per month to attend ttee 

meetings, ard meetings, or conventions. This leave wil: not be 

accumulated from month to month. 

ARTICLE 42 

SAFE STAFFING LEVELS 

Section 1. The parties agree the McAlester Fire Department is 

an organization of dedicated professionals who are committed to 

serving the community by protecting life, property, and the 

environment through fire and injury prevention, education, fire 

suppression, and emergency medical response. 

Section 2. The parties agree inadequate staffing and non-

functioning or antiquated equipment or apparatus have been 

attributed to serious injury and even a fire fighter fatality 

over the years. The replacement and maintenance of equipment and 

apparatus, along with training and fire prevention have been 

instrumental in preventing further fire fighter fatalities. 

Section 3. The parties agree staffing levels have not been 

adequately increased to properly man the equipment or apparatus 

and are basically unchanged since 1981. When an ambulance is 

deployed from a sub-station the response area for fire response 

86 




---------------------- ---_._-----------_ .. -

McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 

is left uncovered most of the time. When two (2) or more 

ambulances are deployed the City is left without adequate 

staffing to safely extinguish a house fire. Requests for 

additional manning have been requested by the Fire Chief almost 

every year. 

Section 4. The parties agree to prioritize staffing and strive 

to increase staffing to adequate levels consistent with the 

national recommended minimum staffing level needed to safely and 

efficiently extinguish a 2000 square foot residential structure. 

The parties further agree that grants or other funding sources 

will be sought to offset additional costs to the City. 

Section 5. The parties agree that increasing staffing levels 

will be incremental in nature and cannot fully be accomplished in 

one fiscal year. A committee made up of three (3) designated 

representatives of management and three (3) designated 

representatives of the bargaining unit will agree on the duration 

of time needed and the incremental number of staff per fiscal 

year needed to meet the needed staffing level based on revenues 

available. 

87 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
&, FE 

Section 6. The parties agree a minimum staffing level of forty 

(40) bargaining unit employees will the base number of emE!oyees 

for implementing increases in staffing. 

88 




McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2011/2012 
rr 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands this 
<1 day of r 20 ;,)...

~~~~~"'~~~~~~~~----

CITY 0 McALESTER, OK~AHOMA 

A Municipal Corporation 

Mayor of McAlester 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FIREFIGHTERS 
Local 2284 
Bargaining Agent 

ATTEST: 

Cora ty Clerk 

89 




~ 
t:&l 
CIl 

~ 
lQ 

ATTACHMENT #1 H 

i;j
FIRE "Xl 

4% Union Proposal CLASSIFIED PAY SCHEDULE n o1YR 1YR 1YR 1YR 2YR 2YR 2YR 2YR 2YR 2YR 
CLASS 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 ~ 

tr::I 
nF-9 $2,653.00 $2,733,00 $2,815.00 $2,900.00 $2,987,00 $3,076,00 $3,168,00 $3,254,00 $3,361,00 $3,462,00 1-3 
H 

F-11 $2,813,00 $2,897.00 $2,984.00 $3,073.00 $3,166,00 $3,260,00 $3,359,00 $3,459,00 $3,563.00 $3,670,00 ~ 
F-13 $2,982,00 $3,071.00 $3,163,00 $3,257,00 $3,356,00 $3,456,00 $3,560,00 $3,667,00 $3,777.00 $3,891.00 

~ F-15 $3,161,00 $3,255,00 $3,354,00 $3,454,00 $3,558,00 $3,664,00 $3,773,00 $3,888,00 $4,004,00 $4,124,00 

~ 
F-17 $3,350,00 $3,451.00 $3,554,00 $3,661,00 $3,770,00 $3,883,00 $4,001.00 $4,120,00 $4,244,00 $4,371,00 H 

Z 
H 

F-19 $3,551,00 $3,658,00 $3,767,00 $3,880,00 $3,998,00 $4,116,00 $4,240,00 $4,368,00 $4,49900 $4,633,00 
~ 

E 
B z 
1-3 

I\l 
o 
..... 
..... 
"­
N 
o 
..... 
I\l 

http:4,001.00
http:3,451.00
http:3,891.00
http:3,777.00
http:3,071.00
http:3,563.00
http:3,073.00
http:2,984.00
http:2,897.00
http:2,900.00
http:2,815.00
http:2,653.00


McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 

Meeting Date: 2012 Item Number: 1 

Department: Finance 

Prepared By: Toni Ervin Account Code: 

Date Prepared: 3 2012 Budgeted Amount: _ ..__.... 

Exhibits: 

Subject 
Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 2392 which established the budget for fiscal 

year 2011-2012; repealing all conflicting ordinances; providing for a severability clause; and declaring an 

emergency. 


~34!.mj,.t4u.rmt.,,_ 
• Motion to approve the budget amendment ordinance. 

Discussion 
The budget amendment ordinance is necessary to cover proposed revenue and/or expenditures not included in 

the budget for this fiscal year. 


See attached. 

Lild.!I,fJI!.",,­
Initial Date 

T. Ervin 7/3/2012• Department Head 
P. Stasiak 7/3/2012ICity Manager 

Page 1 of 1 

i 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, 
OKLAHOMA, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2392 WHICH 
ESTABLISHED THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011-2012; 
REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES;PROVID­
ING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, the City Council heretofore adopted Ordinance No. 2392 setting 
forth the Budget for Fiscal Year 2011-2012 beginning July 1, 2011 and ending June 30, 
2012; and 

WHEREAS, the City Departments and Divisions routinely review their budget 
appropriations to determine if any changes are necessary; and 

WHEREAS, based upon said review the City staff now recommends that certain 
amendments to the Budget be considered by the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority to make amendments to the City 
Budget under Aliicle 5, Section 5.07 (b) of the new City Charter as well as State law; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the proposed amendment to the 
FY 2011-2012 Budget, with the revenues and expenditures therein contained, is in the 
best interest of the City; and therefore, desires to adopt the same by formal action. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, 
OKLAHOMA: 

SECTION 1: The proposed amendment to the FY 2011-2012 Budget of the City 
of McAlester, Oklahoma, as heretofore adopted by Ordinance, as summarized in Exhibit 
A-I, which is attached hereto and fully incorporated herein by reference, be, and the 
same hereby are, completely adopted and approved as an amendment to the said FY 
2011-2012 Budget. 

SECTION 2: All portions of the existing FY 2011-2012 Budget, Ordinance No. 
2392 except as specifically herein amended, shall remain in full force and effect, and not 
be otherwise affected by the adoption of the amendatory ordinance. 

SECTION 3: That all other ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of any such conflict or inconsistency and all other ordinances not in conflict 
herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4: Should any paragraph, sentence, subdivision, clause, phrase, or 
section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the 



same shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 
thereof, other than the part or parts as declared to be invalid, illegal, or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 5: That an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and for the provision 
of the public peace, health and safety, by reason whereof it is necessary that all acts take 
effect immediately and be in full force and effect from, and after the passage and 
approvaL 

PASSED and the EMERGENCY CLAUSE ruled on separately this 10th day of 
July, 2012. 

CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA 
A Municipal Corporation 

By __________________________ 

Steve Harrison, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

Approved as to form and legality this 10th day of July, 2012. 

William J. Ervin, City Attorney 



---- --------------------------

ExhibitA-1 

City of McAlester 

Budget Amendment - FY 2011-2012 


General Fund 

July 10,2012 


Effective June 30, 2012, Council Item July 10, 2012 

Estimated Revenue or Fund Balance 
Amount of 

Balance Amendment Balance 

Fund Account 	 Before Increase After 

Appropriations 
Amount of 

Balance Amendment Balance 

Fund Account Before Increase After 
Number Number Dv'~"~llvll A 11 (LJecrease, ""HV"U"'~.It 

01 .. c54:3~1~:111O~0_!,.F;;','i=-re__.....~_____'_IF_,u'7,-lI~time,Payroll (Non:Unifonn) _ 180,383 4,4901~J
~···~O~I----+-·· 5431101 ,Fire -P;;J].ti.nePayroll (Unifonn) 1,779,890 67,853 1,847,743 I 

01 5431103 IFire Ovel1imePayroll 95,000 12 :7 107,187 
c 01 5431105 Fire : Severance/Unused Leave I 1,472:J~. 
I 01 5431106 ,Fire --==~::~wor~ker's~~I~~s~ti~-":"_.• _-=-==:==1 39,097 43,0 82,098 
I _~0111_~_+--5431107Fire - 1___. __~2=!:8~2:,5,~6;5~+ ____~2.2=,O_~~I______30~~~ 
,- 01 5431108 i£it:<'..i~.Jnsurance ----.....-------... ---- I ,207 "~_ 

01 5431111-11';;';-- ---------~----------+-cM~edlii'--c·a·r·-e - 20,737.00 5,197-25,934­

.01 54311 13 : Fire 	 I PenSIOn (UOIfonn) 254,145.00 8,815 262,960 
! I 

I 

--------.....---------1-- ..- ..--- J. ----.-,-----.-- -= 
._------_....._--_. 

~ ------r--- -----:---- ­
c~t~~~~~c===t~-~- --- __....____.....______...J -- ____.....__ ._'-__---'-IS6,S-----'M_~_________ ___1 

Original Budget- Revenues'" $ 14,582,512 ... Does not include appropriated fund balance 
: Amendments Y 1 0 395,527 

i Current Budget - Revenues $ 14,978,039 

Original Budget - Expenditures $14,582,512 

Amendments -YTD 769,412 


Cu rrent Budget - Expenditu res $15,351,924 

Approved by the city Counci this Explanation of Budget Amendment: 

July 10, 2012 Appropriate funds for Fire Personal Services accounts not previously budgeted. 


Approved: 

Mayor 

Attest: 

Posted By _____ Date _____ BA# ____ Pkt# 

CilyClcrk 

Al112-074 

http:254,145.00
http:20,737.00
http:HV"U"'~.It


.­ _..­ "-_.__._-_._--------­

FY 11-12 Budget Amendments listed by Fund 
Revenue 

011 9/13/11 01 Highway Safety Grant Approp. Funds for Highway Safety Grant 33,127 33,127 

020 11/8/11 01 General Fund Approp Funds for Website Design 24,965 

023 11/8/11 01 General Fund Approp Fund for Pay adjustment 2,789 

024 11/8/11 01 General Fund Approp Fund for Pay adjustment 14,613 

035 12/13/11 01 General Fund Approp Funds for 7 AED's 7,650 

037 1/10/12 01 General Fund Approp. Funds for 2 Parks Trucks 56,000 

042 1/24/12 01 General Fund Approp. Funds for Mid-Year Review 212,500 212,500 

054 3/13/12 01 General Fund Approp. Funds for Street Light & FEMA Fire Grant 198,750 198,750 

066 4/24/12 01 General Fund Approp. Funds for additonal Worker's Comp 134,800 134,800 

069 5/8/12 01 General Fund Approp. Funds for improvements on A.C. facility 24,000 24,000 

073 6/12/12 01 General Fund Approp. Funds for Backhoe for Cemetery 81,004 

074 7/10/12 01 General Fund Appropriate funds for Fire Personal Services 186,864.00 603,177 977,062 

014 10/11/11 02 MPWA Approp. Fund bal for 2010 CDBG and CIP 246,777 

021 11/8/11 02 MPWA Approp. Funds for capital project-Traffic Light 20.000 

025 11/8/11 02 MPWA Approp Fund for Pay adjustment 17,754 

030 11/22/11 02 MPWA Approp. Funds for capital projects 14,441 

032 11/22/11 02 MPWA Approp Fund for equipment and new employees 168,927 168,927 

033 12/13/11 02 MPWA Approp. Funds for capital projects 31,371 

039 1/10/12 02 MPWA Approp. Funds for Allied Rate Adjustment 59,542 59,542 

040 1/10/12 02 MPWA Approp. Funds for capital projects 36,883 

043 1/24/12 02 MPWA Approp. Funds for Mid-Year Review 153,000 153,000 

045 1/24/12 02 MPWA Approp. Funds for capital projects 5,300 5,300 

048 2/14/12 02 MPWA Approp. Funds for Change order (3,300) 

050 2/28112 02 MPWA Approp. Funds for capital projects 157,500 157,500 

071 5/22/12 02 MPWA Approp. Funds for Engineering Fees 28,000 28,000 572,269 936,195 

026 11/8/11 03 Airport Approp Fund for Pay adjustment (7,275) (7,275) (7,275) (7,275) 

027 11/8/11 08 Nutrition Approp Fund for Pay adjustment (6,458) (6,458) (6,458) (6,458) 

019 10/25/11 14 Police Grant Fund Approp Funds for grant for radios 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

056 3/13/12 19 Fire Improvement Grant Approp. Funds for FEMA Fire Grant 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 

006 8/23/11 21 Economic Development Approp. Fund Bal for ED Proj. 669,000 669.000 

010 8/23/11 24 Airport Grant Approp. Fund Bal for Airport Grant 50,000 55,750 

012 9/13/11 24 FAA Runway Grant Approp. Funds for FAA Runway 02/20 drainage im 77,212 77.212 
036 1/10/12 24 Airport Grant Approp. Fund Bal for Airport Grant 1,976,224 1,976,224 2,103,436 2,109,186 

047 2/14/12 26 Educational Fund Approp. Funds for Schools -Capital projects 700,000 700,000 

017 11/8/11 27 Tourism Fund Approp. Fund for partnership 10,290 
052 2/28/12 27 Tourism Fund Approp. Funds for capital projects 10,000 10,000 
057 3/13/12 27 Tourism Fund Approp. Funds for Promotional Advertisement 9,900 9,900 
059 4/10/12 27 Tourism Fund Approp. Funds for Promotional Advertisement (9,900) (9,900) 
061 4/10/12 27 Tourism Fund Approp. Funds for tourism brochure reimb. 5,618 5,618 
063 4/10/12 27 Tourism Fund Approp. Funds for McAlester Stampede Trip 2,500 2,500 
065 4/24/12 27 Tourism Fund Approp. Funds for McAlester Sunbelt Classic 8,000 8,000 26,118 36,408 
018 10/25/11 29 E-911 Fund Approp Fund for new personnel positions 118,160 
029 11/8/11 29 E911 Fund Approp Fund for Pay adjustment 5,418 
044 1/24/12 29 E911 Fund Approp. Funds for Mid-Year Review 88,714 88,714 
064 4/24/12 29 E-911 Fund Approp. Funds for E911 Grant 72,000 144,000 160,714 356,292 

005 8/23/11 30 Economic Development Approp. Fund Bal for ED Proj. 669,000 669,000 

013 10/11/11 30 Economic Development Approp. Fund balance for 8 inch Water Main at Tay 135,150 
058 3/13/12 30 Economic Development Approp. Funds for Promotional Advertisement 9,900 9,900 
060 4/10/12 30 Economic Development Approp. Funds for Promotional Advertisement (9,900) (9,900) 
062 4/10/12 30 Economic Development Approp. Funds for McAlester Stampede Trip 2,500 2,500 
072 6/12/12 30 Economic Development Approp. Funds for "re-purposing" (99,258) 671,500 707,392 
003 7/12/11 32 Gifts & Contributions Appropriate Fund Balances, etc. 12,384 
053 3/13/12 32 Gifts & Contributions Approp. Funds for Donations 4,375 4,375 4,375 16,759 
007 8/23/11 33 CDBG Grant Fund Appropriate Fund Balances. etc. 142.634 233.264 
016 10/11/11 33 CDBG Grant Fund Appropriate Fund Balances, etc. 148,000 148,000 290,634 381,264 
028 11/8/11 35 Fleet Maintenance Approp Fund for Pay adjustment 6,458 6,458 
067 4/24/12 35 Fleet Maintenance Approp. Funds for additonal Worker's Comp 66,100 66,100 72,558 72,558 
068 4/24/12 36 Worker's Compensation Approp. Funds for Worker's Comp premium 2,502 2,502 2,502 2,502 
001 7/12/11 41 Capital Improvement Appropriate Fund Balances, etc. 38,286 1,496,933 
004 8/23/11 41 Capital Improvement Appropriate Fund Balances, etc. 278,879 
008 8/23/11 41 Capital Improvement Appropriate Fund Balances, etc. 38,286 52,004 
009 8/23/11 41 Capital Improvement Approp. Fund Bal for Airport Grant 50,000 
015 10/11/11 41 Capital Improvement Approp, Funds for capital projects 172,651 172,651 
022 11/8/11 41 Capital Improvement Approp. Funds for capital project-Traffic Light 15,000 15,000 
031 11/22/11 41 Capital Improvement Approp. Funds for capital projects 14,441 14,441 
034 12/13/11 41 Capital Improvement Approp. Funds for capital projects 31,371 31,371 
038 1/10/12 41 Capital Improvement Approp. Funds for 2 Parks Trucks 56,000 56,000 
041 1/10/12 41 Capital Improvement Approp. Funds for Utility Maintenance Truck 33,383 33,383 
046 1/24/12 41 Capital Improvement Approp. Funds for capital projects 5,300 5,300 
049 2114/12 41 Capital Improvement Approp, Funds for Change order (3,300) (3,300) 
051 2/28/12 41 Capital Improvement Approp. Funds for capital projects 157,500 157,500 
055 3/13/12 41 Capital Improvement Approp. Funds for Street Light 195,000 195,000 
070 5/22/12 41 Capital Improvement Approp. Funds for HWY 69 Relocate 64,600 64,600 818,518 2,619,762 
002 7/12/11 42 Federal Forfeiture Fund Appropriate Fund Balances, etc. 8,200 8,200 



McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 

Meeting Date: 2012 Item Number: 2 
......_._­

Department: Finance 

Prepared By: Toni Ervin Account Code: 

Date Prepared: 2012 Budgeted Amount: 

Exhibits: 

Subject 
Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 2425 which established the budget for fiscal 

year 2012-2013; repealing all conflicting ordinances; providing for a severability clause; and declaring an 

emergency. 


Recommendation 
Motion to approve the budget amendment ordinance. 

_·]M4!~{1[·ji_
The budget amendment ordi'-n-an-c-e--C-is-n-e-c-e-ss-a-r-y-to-c-o-v-er-p-r-o-p-o-se-d--:-re-\-'e-n-u-e-a-n-d-:Io-r-e-x-p-e-n-d-:-it-u-re-s-n-o-t---i-n-cl-u-d-e-d-il1­

the budget for this fiscal year. 

See attached. 

L.aU.11.1!t:l.1"-­
Initial Date 

T. Ervin 7/3/2012. Department Head 
7/3/2012 

Page 1 of 1 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, 
OKLAHOMA, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2425 'VHICH 
ESTABLISHED THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013; 
REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVID­
ING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, the City Council heretofore adopted Ordinance No. 2425 setting 
forth the Budget for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 beginning July 1,2012 and ending June 30, 
2013; and 

WHEREAS, the City Departments and Divisions routinely review their budget 
appropriations to determine if any changes are necessary; and 

WHEREAS, based upon said review the City staff now recommends that certain 
amendments to the Budget be considered by the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority to make amendments to the City 
Budget under Article 5, Section 5.07 (b) of the new City Charter as well as State law; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the proposed amendment to the 
FY 2012-2013 Budget, with the revenues and expenditures therein contained, is in the 
best interest of the City; and therefore, desires to adopt the same by formal action. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, 
OKLAHOMA: 

SECTION 1: The proposed amendment to the FY 2012-2013 Budget of the City 
of McAlester, Oklahoma, as heretofore adopted by Ordinance, as summarized in Exhibit 
A-I, which is attached hereto and fully incorporated herein by reference, be, and the 
same hereby are, completely adopted and approved as an amendment to the said FY 
2012-2013 Budget. 

SECTION 2: All portions of the existing FY 2011-2012 Budget, Ordinance No. 
2424 except as specifically herein amended, shall remain in full force and effect, and not 
be otherwise affected by the adoption of the amendatory ordinance. 

SECTION 3: That all other ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of any such conflict or inconsistency and all other ordinances not in conflict 
herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4: Should any paragraph, sentence, subdivision, clause, phrase, or 
section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the 



same shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 
thereof, other than the part or parts as declared to be invalid, illegal, or unconstitutionaL 

SECTION 5: That an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and for the provision 
of the public peace, health and safety, by reason whereof it is necessary that all acts take 
effect immediately and be in full force and effect from, and after the passage and 
approval. 

PASSED and the EMERGENCY CLAUSE ruled on separately this 10th day of 
July, 2012. 

CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA 
A Municipal Corporation 

By __________________________ 

Steve Harrison, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

Approved as to form and legality this 10th day of July, 2012. 

William J. Ervin, City Attorney 



ExhibitA-1 

City of McAlester 

Budget Amendment - FY 2012-2013 


Economic Development 

July 10,2012 


Estimated Revenue or Fund Balance 
Amount of 

Balance Amendment Balance 

Fund Account Before Increase After 

Original Budget - Revenues ". $ 1,320,600 *.. Does not include appropriated fund balance. 

Amendments 


Current Budget - Revenues $ 1.320.600 


Original Budget Expenditures $ 1.300,006 i 
, Amendments 350,000 ' 
i Current Budget - Expenditures $ 1.650.008 

Approved by the City Council this Explanation of Budget Amendment: 

July 10,2012 _j\pprop~at~Linds f(Jrth~t1i"t~way~~V\I"te~e..Sewer Ext . .froject 

Approved: 

Mayor 
..--~.~...---~ ...--~~-~-

Attest: 

Pasted By ______ Date ______ BA# ____ Pkt.# 

Cit)' cterk 

A1113-001 

Amount of 

Balance Amendment Balance 

Fund Account Before Increase After 



McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 


Consider, aI1d act upon, declaring certain vehicles and equipment surplus property in accordance with the Codeo[-! 

Meeting Date: 2012 Item Number: 3 

Department: Finance 

Prepared By: Toni Ervin Account Code: 

Date Prepared: 2012 Budgeted Amount: 

Exhibits: None 

~i11@_ 
! 

Ordinances Sec 2-286 and authorize the to sell them in accordance with the Code of Ordinances Sec 2­

Recommendation 
Motion to declare certain vehicles and equipment surplus property and authorizing the sale of them. 

Discussion 
Various departments have several vehicles and pieces of equipment that are either no longer in service or not repairable. 
The vehicles and equipment to be declared surplus and sold are: 

Vehicle Number Make and Model Serial and VIN Numbers 

Sanitation-2 1999 International IHTSHADR5YH686374 
Sanitation-5 1994 International IHTSHAAROSH644917 
Sanitation-4 1995 International IHTSHAARI TH278729 

1977 Ford 2 Ton C61EVZ07975 
1990 Dodge % 1 B7KE2684LS688841 
1991 Dodge 1 Ton 1 B6ME3685MS281468 

Approved By 
Date 

Department Head 
T. Ervin 7/03/2012 

City Manager P. Stasiak 7/03/2012 

Page 1 of 1 



-----------

McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 


Meeting Date: 2012 Item Number: 4 

Planning and Community 


Department: 

Prepared By: Dennis Lalli 	 Account Code: 

Date Prepared: 2012 	 Budgeted Amount: 

Exhibits: 	 Pictures/Resolution/Exh. "A" 

lIIIIIII$Mttma........~_~_~~~__~~~ __________________________________~ 

i Consider, and act upon, a Resolution declaring certain buildings as dangerous by reason of being dilapidated 

Iand a detriment to the welfare of the public and community. 	 . _______________--.l 

Recommendation 

'_M_o_ti_o_n_to_ a_pp_r_o_v_e_a_R_e_S_O_lu_t_io_n_dC_C_l_ar_in_g_ce_rt_a_i_l1_b_U_il_d_in_g_s_a_S_d_il_a_ 

p 

d_a_te_d_a_n_d_S_U_b_~e_c_t_to_re_m_O_\_Ta_I_.__l_' J 
_'1B§'M-1[·j,__~____________________________________---, 

Attached hereto is a list of building locations recommended for removal. They are: 

Address, Block and Lot - Pictures Attached: 

1. 	 45 W. Townsend, Block 117 N.M. Lot11 

48 W. Townsend, Block 145 N.M Lot 3 


3. 	 408 No. B, Block 267 Lot 6 
4. 	 218 W. Adams, Block 303 Lot 3 
5. 	 308 W. Adams, Block 304 E 50' Lot 2 
6. 	 528 W. Adams, Block 306 E60' ofW 75' of Lot 4 
7. 	 1309 E. Choctaw, Block 338 W1I2 Lot 6 
8. 	 1316 Choctaw, Block 369 Lot 1 
9. 	 500 W. Miami, Block 617 Lot 1 

_au·u.W4.I:V_"-----_____________-c-____________ 

Initial 	 Date 

Department Head 

,,,,,_C_it_Y_M_a_n_a_9_e_r P_._St_a_s_ia_k_~~~~-=--=--'-~-b"7Z= "",,_- -	 0_7_1_0_2112 __________ 	 _____ ______-_-_-_-_-=-_______ ___, 

Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF MCALESTER 
DILAPIDATED BUILDINGS 

EXHIBIT"A" 

Dilapidated Structures for Council Consideration: 

L 45 W. Townsend 
2. 48 W. Townsend 
3. 408 No. B 
4. 218 W. Adams 
5. 308 W. Adams 
6. 528 W. Adams 
7. 1309 K Choctaw 
8. 1316 E. Choctaw 
9. 500 Miami 



RESOLUTION NO•. __ 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA, DECLARING 
CERTAIN STRUCTURES AS DILAPIDATED AND DETREMENTAL TO THE 
HEALTH, SAFETY, OR WELFARE OF THE GENERAL PUBLIC. 

**************************************************************** 

WHEREAS, the City of Mcalester desires to remove all buildings are 
dangerous by reason of being dilapidated and a detriment to the welfare of the public 
and community, and which 

WHEREAS, the procedure for notification, as outlined in Section 18-376 of 
the McAlester Code of Ordinances has been complied with. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
McAlester, Oklahoma that: 

SECTION 1 : Those structures listed in exhibit !lA" attached and made part of 
the resolution are determined to be dangerous buildings, and that the welfare of the 
community will be served by their removal. 

SECTION 2 : The property owner is given ten (10) days from this date to 
remove the building. 

SECTION 3 : The City Manager is authorized to remove structures if not 
removed in the allowed ten (10) days. 

PASSED and APPROVED at the the City of Mcalester, Oklahoma, and duly 
signed by the Mayor this 10th day of July, 2012 regular meeting of the City Council of 

CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA 
A Municipal Corporation 

Steve Harrison, Mayor 
Attest: 

Cora Middleton, City Clerk 































McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 


Meeting Date: Item Number: 5 

Department: 


Prepared By: Peter J. Stasiak Account Code: 


Date Prepared: 2012 Budgeted Amount: 


Exhibits: 

Subject 
TABLED FROM PREVIOUS MEETING. Consider and act upon, the funding of McAlester Main Street 
Association in the amount of $28,000 and for FY 2012-2013. 

Recommendation 
Motion to approve the funding of $28,000 to McAlester Main Street Association for FY 
approval ofFY 2012·2013 Budget. 

Discussion 

Approved By 
Initial Date 

Department Head 
P. Stasiak 2City Manager 

Page 1 of 1 



CONTRACT 


TIus Contract is made between the City of McAlester, a mU11icipaI corporation ("City") and McAlester 
Main Street Association" Inc., a non-proflt cOl1)oratioll CMMSN). In this Contract, either the City or 
MTvISA may also be to indiVldually as a "Party" or jointly as the "Parties." 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City of McAlester having been selected as ill1 Oklahoma Main Street Community and 
desiring to promote and assist McAlester Main Street Association" Inc. in attaining the goals and 
objectjves of such program which are intended to accomplish the economic and commercial development 
and revitalization of the geographic commercial disttict, as designated in its plan, hereinafter referred to 
as the "District", resulting in increased retail sales tax revenues, among other benefits, and to better 
inform business owners, entrepreneurs, developers and govemment officials; and 

WHEREAS, l\1MSA possesses the knowledge, skills and ability to assist the City in achieving these 
goals objectives. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, obligations, representations, and 
assmances in this Contt-act, the Parties agree to the following: 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. 	 MMSA will engage in those activities on behalf of the City in order to achieve the 
economic and commercial development and revitalization of the "District" and, to 
promote the general w'elfare oftIle community and its citizens. 

B. 	 MMSA will provide technical assistance on behalf ofthe City to promote lli1d accompHsh 
its aIlllOlUlCed purpose, goals and objectives to the benefit ofthe City. 

The City and MMSA will jointly establish a set of measurable goals and objectives to 
provide accountability and assess the effectiveness of MMSA's efforts. Goals shall be as 
specific as possible. They shall not include service on boards 01" cOlmnissions. 

D. 	 In fillthemnce ofthe agreed-upon goals and objectives, MMSA shall provide an action 
plan to the City ,vithin 60 days after the effective date of this Contract and update 
periodically as approPliate. 

E. 	 MMSA will provide written repOlts to the City as requested that shall include the cunent 
measmements against the goals and objectives. Said reports shall be presented to city 
manager. 

F. 	 The City will independently monitor ;'v[]\tlSA's progress against its goals and objectives 
and may request written reports from the City's Audit and Finance Advisory Committee. 
MMSA \\lill provide its 11.111 cooperation in the preparation of such reports and will attend 
Audit and Finance Advisory Committee meetings upon the City's request. 

G. 	 MMSA will provide to the City a \",-itten annual perfOlmlli1Ce report on activities within 
thirty days following the end ofthe City's fiscal year. 

(1) 



2. 


In SUppOlt of MMSA '5 1l00mal cost of operations, the City will pay to MMSA a 
minimum amount of $28,000.00 during the tenn ofthis Contract L'1 monthly payments of 
$2333.33 assist in accomplishing its goals. 

B. 	 MMSA shan provide appropriate documentation to the City in suppOli of a wlitten 
request for payment. Requests for payment may be submitted at any time but are limited 
to no more than one request per calendar month. 

The City shall process requests for payments tlu'ough its normal pa:rmellt procedures. 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERMINAnON 

A 	 TIle effective date ofthis Contract shall be July 1,2012, and unless otherwise terminated 
or cancelled as provided below, it shall end on June 30, 2013, at which date this Contract 
expires without any further act or notice of either Party being required. TIle Parties are 
tmder no obligation to renew or extend this Contract. 

B. 	 TIle City or MMSA may terminate andJor cancel this Contract, or any palt thereof, at any 
time dming its tenn upon tllirty days notice, for any reason without incuning obligation 
or penalty of any kind. The effective date of notice for tennination or cancellation shall 
be the date of councilor MMSA board action providing for said termination or 
cancellation. 

C. 	 TIle City's sole obligation in the event oftelmination is for payment tor services rendered 
by MMSA before the effective date of tennination and shall be based on a propOltionate 
share of the total amount provided in this contract, eamed to date of termination, as 
detelmined by the City. 

D. 	 Notices given under this contract shall be in lvriting and shall either be personally 
delivered or sent by first class U.S. mail postage prepaid. 

Ifnotice is sent to MMSA, it shall be addressed to MMSAS then knmvn address. 

If notice is sent to the City, it shall be addressed to: 
City Clerk 
City of McAlester 
City Hall 
First and Washington 
McAlesteT, OK 74501 

E. 	 Any modifications, amendments, recessions, waivers or releases to this Contract must be 
in ,,,riting and agreed to by both Patties. 

4. ASSURANCES AND WARRANTIES 

A. MMSA wanants that all services performed hereunder will be performed in a manner 

(2) 
that complies with all applicable laws, statutes, regulations, ordinances, and professional 
standards. 

http:28,000.00


B. MMSA shall be solely responsible for all costs and expenses incident to the performance 
ofall services for the City. 

C. 	 MMSA shaH solely control, direct and supervise all ]\;Il'vISA employees with respect to all 
obligations under this Contract rvITvlSA win be solely responsible for the conduct and 
supervision of ;:my of its employees, Nothing in this Contract is intended to establish an 
employer-employee relationship between the City and either MIVfSA or any MMSA 
employee, All MMSA employees assigned to provide services under this Contract by 
MMSA shall, in all cases. be deemed employees of MMSA and not employees, agents or 
subcontractors of the City, 

MMSA shall indemnifY and hold the City hannless for an claims against the City by any 
MMSA employee, arising out of any contract for hire or employer-employee relationship 
between lV1MSA and any MMSA employee, including, but not limited to, Worker's 
Compensation" disability payor other insmance of any kind_ Fmiher, MMSA 
indemnifies City against any c1ain'l or action arising from an)' negligent act committed b'y 
l'vH,/[SA or its employees. 

D_ 	 Nothing in tlus Contract is intended to anthorize J\!IMSA to obligate the City regarding 
all)' commitment to a third party, including but not necessarily limited to, cash or non­
cash incentives and the sale, lease or donation of real or personal property, without the 
prior specific consent of the city council as evidenced b)' a recorded majorit)- vote in 
open session_ 

S. INDEMNIFICATION 

A. 	 MMSA shall indemnify and hold the City harmless hom any and all Claims which are 
assclted against the City by any person or entity, alleged to have been caused or found to 
al-ise, from the acts, performances, enors, or omissions of MMSA or its employees, 

B. 	 MMSA shall have no rights against the City for any indemnification (e.g., contractual, 
equitable, or by implication), contribution, subrogatiol1, and/Ol' any other right to be 
reimbursed by the City except as expressly provided herein. 

C. 	 MMSA waives and releases all actions, liabilities, loss and damage including any 
subrogated rights it may have against the City based upon any claim brought against the 
City suffered by a MMSA employee. 

6. GENERAL TERl'VIS AND CONDITIONS 

A 	 Access and Records. MMSA will maintain accurate books and records in cOlmection 
with the services provided under this Contract for 36 months after the end of this 
Contract, and provide the City with reasonable access to such books and records. 

R Captions. The section and subsection numbers, captions, and any index to such sections 
and subsections contained in the Contract are intended for the convenience ofthe reader 
and are not intended to have any substantive meaning and shall not be interpreted to limit 
or modify any substantive provisions oftlris contract. Any use of the singular or plmal 

(3) 
number, any reference to the male, female, or neuter genders, and any possessive or nOll­
possessive use in this contract shall be deemed the appropriate plurality, gender or 
possession as the context requires. 



L 

.cit· RiWlo Susp~gcLSj;rvi~L_Upon 'written notice, the City may suspend perfonnance 
of tIns Contract ifJVIMSA has failed to comply with Federal, State, or Local laws, or any 
requirements eontained in this Contract. The right to suspend services is in addition to 
the City's right to terminate andior c.ancel this Contract. TIle City shall incur no penalty, 
'''''-'JV<'c..>v, or liability to 1\1.l'vlSA ifthe city suspends services under this Section. 

D.MMSA shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, 
statutes, ordinances, regulations, insurance policy requirements, and requirements 
applicable to its activities under this Contract. 

E. 	 Conflict oflnterest. To avoid any real or perceived conflict of interest, MMSA shall 
refiaill hiring any person 1-vno is presently employed by the or relatives of any 
person who are presently employed by the City. Further, MMSA shall notiiY the City 
Council if such persons shall serve in any position or office of MMSA 

F. 	 El1!ire Contr~"'h This Contract represents the entire Contract and understanding between 
the Parties. 'TIlis Contract supersedes an other prior oral or \vTitten understandings, 
communications, agreements or Contracts between the Parties. The language of this 
Contract shaH be constmed as a whole according to its fair meaning, and not constmed 
strictly for or against any Party. 

Force Majeurce- Notwithstanding any other term or provision of this Contract, neither 
Party shall be liable to the other for any failure of perfonnance hereunder if such failure 
is due to an) cause beyond the reasonable control of that Part)· and that Party cannot 
reasonable accommodate or mitigate the effects of any lmv, order, regulation, direction, 
action, or request of the United States govemment or of any other govel1lment, national 
emergencies, insUlTections, riots, wars strikes, lockouts, work stoppages, or other labor 
difficulties. Reasonable notice shall be given to the affected Pruty of any such event. 

No Implied Waiver. Absent a 'written waiver, no act, failure, or delay by a Party to 
pmsue or enforce an:r right or remedy lUlder this Contract shaH constitute a waiver of 
those rights with regard to rulY existing or subsequent breach ofthis Contract. No ,vaiver 
of any telID, condition, or provision ofth1s Contract, whether by conduct or otherwise, in 
one or more instances, shan be deemed or construed as a continuing waiver of any term, 
condition, or provision of this Contract. No waiver by either Party shall subsequently 
affect its right to require strict performance ofthis Contract. 

N_JLTInrd PaIt\~Bel1eiiciarles.,. Except as provided for the benefit of the Patties, this 
Contract does not and is not intended to create any obligation, duty, promise, contractual 
right or benefit, right to be indemnified, right to be surrogated to the Palties' lights in this 
Contract, and/or any other light, in favor of any other person or entity. 

1. 	 Reservation of Rights. TIus Contract does not, and is not intended to impair, divest, 
delegate, or contravene rulY constitutional, statutory, and/or other legal right, pIivilege, 
power, obligation, duty, or immunity ofthe City. 

K. 	 S~verability. If a comi of competent jmisdiction finds a tenn, condition, or provision of 
this contract to be illegal or invalid, then the term, condition, or provision shall be 

(4) 

deemed severed fl.-om tlus contract. All other telIDs, conditions, and provisions ofthis 



contract shall remain in frIll force an effect. Notwithstanding the above, if MMSA's 
promise to indemnify or hold the City harmless is found iUegal or invalid", ]\:[I\1SAs shall 
contribute the maximum it is pennitted to pay by toward the payment and satisfaction 
of any ciaims against the City. 

L. The foHo,"ving temlS and conditions shall survive and 
continue in full force beyond the termination and/or cancellation of ibis Contract (or any 

thereof) until the terms and conditions are fully satisfied or expire their very 
nature: 


il. "ASSURANCES AND WARRl-l.NTIES" 


b. "INDEMNIFICAnON"; 
i. "SEVERABILITY; AND 

ii. "SURVIVAL OF TERMS Al\[D CONDITIONS" 

Executed and adopted upon motion duly made, seconded and passed this _~ _ day of 
_______-----" 2012, for the ofMcAlester. 

CITY OF MCALESTER? OKLAHOMA 
A MlU1icipal Corporation 

Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORt\![ AND LEGALITY: 

Ervin, City Attomey 

Executed and adopted upon motion duly made, seconded and passed this day of 
________----'> 2012, for the McAlester Main Street Association, Inc. 

McAlester Main Street Association, Inc. 

) -Eeee - .- .­- d<YU7­B'~4'~ 
ATTEST 

(5) 




:2 

McA.lester tJiain Street partners with: 
State and national ["lain Street Local Downtown and Old Town US Environmental Protection 

programs Merchants Agency 
National Preservation Society 'v'Val-Mart DEQ 
!'vlcAlester Chamber of PSO/AEP McAlester Public Schools 
Commerce Narconon Arvest Bank 
City of McAlester Take fVicAlester Back First National Bank 
Pride in McAlester McAlester news Capitol Bank N,A, 

MPower of McAlester McAlester RadiO Old Town Association 
Kiamichi Vo-Tech 

McAlester Main Street goals: 
Help preserve and revitalize our Historic Hold Main Street events to boost our city sales 
downtown tax 

il) Help attract small businesses to our Historic .. Help advertise and promote our Main Street 
downtown Districts 

<I> II> 

Goals for FY 2012: 

~ rJiinimum of 6 streetscape committee meetings with guidance to keep on track: 
o RFP's & RFQ's to be generated and sent to prospective A.rchitects and Engineers 
o Aggressively researching funding alternatives 

Iiil CuitureFest work with Arts in Humanities, The Chamber, and Pride in McAlester with a goal of 
bringing 5,000 visitors to highlight our historic downtown 

G ~/leet Budget 
o Recruit more corporate sponsors 
o Recruit more support from outside the districts 
o Maintain current membership 
o Fund raisers 

g Maintain compliance with state and city contracts 

" Complete goals not achieved in FY 

It Participate in eligible quality award events that highlight McAlester, such as the Oklahoma 

State Fairl rVlain Street Day at the Capitol, etc. 

918-423-8888 215 East Choctaw Avenue, Suite 112 mca!estermainst@att.net 
www.mcalestermainstreet.com McAlester, OK 74501 
Corporate Sponsors: First National Bank, The Bank NA, McAlester Radio, City of McAlester, Arvest. BancFirst 

11" .t 

http:www.mcalestermainstreet.com
mailto:mca!estermainst@att.net


McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 

Meeting Date: 2012 Item Number: 6 


Department: Council 


Prepared By: Councilman Travis Read Account Code: 


Date Prepared: 2012 	 Budgeted Amount: 


Exhibits: 


Subject 

Discussion on funding options for major street improvements. 


Recommendation 

J 
_·]M§!~'M!·j,_

~--------------------------------.~-------------------------, 

Approved By 

Department Head 

Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 1 

Linda Daniels 

From: Peter Stasiak 

Sent: Wednesday, June 27, 2012 1:33 PM 

To: Travis Read 

Cc: Linda Daniels 

Subject: RE: Agenda Item 


Councilman: 


This is a great topic. Will do!!! 


Pete 


From: Travis Read [mailto:travisread3@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 27, 2012 11:21 AM 
To: Peter Stasiak 
Subject: Agenda Item 

Pete, please place an item on the July 10 regular council meeting for me. "Discussion on funding 

options for major street improvements.!! 


Thanks. 


Travis Read 


06127/2012 


mailto:mailto:travisread3@yahoo.com


McAlester City COllncil 

AGENDA REPORT 


Meeting Date: 2012 Item Number: 7 

Department: 

Prepared By: Cora Middleton Account Code: 

Date Prepared: 2012 Budgeted Amount: 

Exhibits: 4 

Subject 
Consider, and act upon, a Personal Services Agreement with Jerry W. Mincher for haybaling of City of 
McAlester Property located south of Highway 31 adjacent to the west side of the Indian Nation Turnpike in the 
amount of$857.99. 

Recommendation 
Motion to approve a Personal Services Agreement with Jerry W. Mincher for haybaling of City of McAlester 
Property located south of Highway 31 adjacent to the west side ofthe Indian Nation Turnpike in the amount of 

On June 22, 2012 the City of McAlester opened sealed bide for Haybaling services of approximately 115.11 
acres ofland lying south of Highway 31 adjacent to the west side of the Indian Nation Turnpike. Only one bid 
was received. 

Initial Date 
CM 07/02112Department Head 

P. Stasiak 07/02/12City Manager 

Page 1 of 1 

http:of$857.99


Personal Service Agreement 
By and Between the City of McAlester and Jerry & Kathy Mincher 

This Personal Service Agreement made and entered into this ~day of 2012_, by 
and between the City of McAlester, Oklahoma (the "City"), an Oklahoma municipal corporation, 
and Jerrv & Kathy Mincher, an individual (the "Contractor") hereinafter collectively referred 
to as (the "Parties"). 

WHEREAS, the City desires to allow Contractor to bale hay on the following City property: 

A tract, piece or parcel ofland in the easterly part of Section 9, T5N, RI4E, Pittsburg 
County, State of Oklahoma, more particularly described as follows: 

The Point of Beginning being 901.58 feet west of the southeast corner and on the South line of 
said section; thence S 89°53'03" W along the south line of said section a distance of 2070.77 
feet; thence N 00°29' 54" E to a point on the east and west 14 line of said section a distance of 
2619.31 feet; thence N 00°05' 43" E to a point on the southerly right-of-way line of the M.K. & 
T. Railroad a distance of 1742.62 feet; thence N 74°03'02" E along the southerly right-of-way 
line of the M.K. & T. Railroad a distance of 202.79 feet to a point of the westerly right-of-way 
line of the Indian Nation Turnpike; thence S 23°02'35" E along the westerly right-of-way line of 
the Indian Nation Turnpike a distance of 3676.60 feet; thence S 66°57'25" W a distance of25.00 
feet; thence S 23°02'35" E a distance of 1108.80 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has shown an ability to adequately meet the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, and covenants herein set forth, 
City and Contractor mutually agree as follows: 

1. 	 GRANT 
For and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein set forth and 
other good and valuable consideration, the City does hereby grant Contractor the right 
to bale hay on the following City property: A tract, piece or parcel of land in the 
easterly part of Section 9, T5N, R14E, Pittsburg County, State of Oklahoma, more 
particularly described as follows: 

The Point of Beginning being 901.58 feet west of the southeast corner and on the 
South line of said section; thence S 89°53 '03" W along the south line of said section a 
distance of2070.77 feet; thence N 00°29'54" E to a point on the east and west Yl line 
of said section a distance of 2619.31 feet; thence N 00°05'43" E to a point on the 
southerly right-of-way line of the M.K. & T. Railroad a distance of 1742.62 feet; 
thence N 74°03'02" E along the southerly right-of-way line of the M.K. & T. Railroad 
a distance of202.79 feet to a point of the westerly right-of-way line of the Indian 

- 1 ­

http:of202.79
http:of2070.77


Nation Turnpike; thence S 23°02'35" E along the westerly right-of-way line of the 
Indian Nation Turnpike a distance of 3676.60 feet; thence S 66°57'25" W a distance 
of 25.00 feet; thence S 23°02'35" E a distance of 11 08.80 feet to the Point of 
Beginning (the "Property"). 

2. 	 TER:\1 
This Agreement shall commence the 10th day of July , (the 
"Commencement Date"), and unless terminated earlier in the manner set forth herein, 
shall terminate on the day of 20JJ~ (the "Term"). 

3. 	 PAYMENT 
The Contractor shall pay the City cash equal to Eight Hundred Fifty Seven and .~9_ 
Dollars and cents ($ 857.99 ) for the Term of this Agreement. All sums due to 
City shall become due and payable within 10 days of approval by the City Council. 
Any sums due City and not received within five (5) days after the date due shall be 
grounds for termination of this Agreement without advance notice to Contractor. 

4. 	 USE 
A. 	The Contractor shall actively use the Property as agreed by this Agreement. 

Failure to bale hay shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement. 
B. 	 The City shall not be responsible or liable to Contractor or anyone claiming by, 

through, or under Agreement for any costs, expenses, profits, or other 
compensation whatsoever and Contractor shall, among other things, at its sole 
cost and expense, furnish all labor, equipment, tools, vehicles, and other forms of 
transportation, and any other items necessary to bale hay on the Property. 

5. 	 TERMTI'JATION 
A. 	The City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any time, for any 

reason, upon ten (lO) days' prior written notice to the Contractor. 

6. 	 CONTRACTOR COVENANTS 
A. 	Contractor shall furnish all equipment and labor to bale and remove all hay from 

the Property. 
B. 	 Contractor shall conduct all hay baling in a good and workmanlike manner. 
C. 	 Contractor shall not, without prior written consent of City, bum any hay, straw, 

grass vegetation or stalks on the Property. 

7. 	 TI'JDEMNIFICATION 
Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City against and from any and all 
claims by or on behalf of any person(s), firm(s), corporation(s), or any other entity 
arising from Contractor's use of the Property or conduct of its business or from any 
activity, work, or anything done, permitted or suffered by the Contractor, in or about 

- 2 ­



the Property, and will further indemnify and save the City against and from any and 
all claims arising from any breach or default on Contractor's part in the performance 

of any covenant or agreement on Contractor's part to be performed pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement or arising from any act, negligent or intentional, of 
Contractor, or any of its agents, contractors, servants, employees, visitors, or 
licensees, and from and against all costs, counsel fees, expenses and liabilities 
incurred in connection with any such claim, action, or proceeding brought against the 
City by reason of such claim. Contractor, upon written notice from the City, shall 
resist and defend, at Contractor's sole cost and expense, such action or proceeding by 
counsel reasonably satisfactory to City. Contractor hereby waives all claims in 
respect thereof against the City and agrees to defend and save the City, its agents, 
contractors, servants, employees, visitors, or licensees harmless from and against any 
such claim by others. 
Contractor agrees to maintain insurance adequate to cover any potential liabilities that 
may arise as a result of this Agreement, which evidence of said 
insurance shall be furnished the City Clerk prior to hay baling on City Property. 

THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL SURVIVE TERlvIINATION OF THIS LEASE. 

8. 	 NOTICES 
All notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing and may be given, served, or 
made by (a) depositing the same in the United States Mail addressed to the authorized 
representative of the party to be notified, postpaid and registered or certified with 
return receipt requested or (b) through a recognized and bonded local or national 
professional courier service which provides adequate documentation as proof of 
transmittal and/or delivery of said notice. Notices shall become effective when 
actually received. 

Contractor: 	 City: 

Pete Stasiak 
City Manager 

McAlester, OK 74501-6973 	 City ofMcAlester 
28 Washington 
McAlester, Ok. 74501 

9. 	 ASSIGNMENT 
Contractor shall not sublet, or assign or in any manner encumber this Agreement. 

10. 	 ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Contractor and the City 
with respect to the matters covered thereby and shall extend to and is binding upon 
the heirs, executors, administrators, and personal representatives of the parties hereto. 

- 3 ­



11. 	 VENUE 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Oklahoma and 
exclusive venue shall be Pittsburg County, Oklahoma. 

12. 	 SEVERABILITY 
In case anyone or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, 
illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof, and this 
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision 
had never been contained herein. 

13. 	 BINDING EFFECT 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto 
and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, and 
successors. 

14. 	 MISCELLANEOUS DRAFTING PROVISIONS 

This Agreement shall be deemed drafted equally by all parties hereto. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereunto signed this Agreement as of the date first 
above written. 

Executed for and on the behalf of the City on the ---'-~~ day of .-'--~~, ~~_ 

CITY OF McALESTER 
An Oklahoma Municipal Corporation 

ATTEST: 	 Steve Harrison, Mayor 

Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

Executed for and on behalf ofthe Contractor on the & day of ~Iy 
CONTRACTOR 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_....... 


Joe Ervin, City Attorney 




Customer Name: Mincher, Jerry W & Kathryn 
Address: 1481 Old Baker Rd 

McAlester, OK 74501-6973 
Policy: 36-77-1706-1 

Location Address: 1481 Old Baker Rd 
McAlester, OK 74501-6973 

Status: Active 

Fire Policy Information 

Coverages 

Code Description 
fA Dwelling 

Dwelling Extension up to 
B Personal Property 
C Loss of Use 
L Personal Liability 

(Each Occurrence) 

Damage to Property of Others 


M Medical Payments to Others 

Each Person 


Premium Adjustments 

Home/Auto (Multi-line) 
Claim Record 
HI 

Deductibles 

Company: SF Fire I JU N i." 
Servicing agent: Mark Derichsweiler i 

Eff date: 12-01-2011 to 1~-01i:2P121J
{ II\! \. I, ,'I >=" v' Or.,~I':.CE.""" ......... l\. .. '-oJ 

l 
,

Description: Homeowners Pol'iGf.-:~::::--'--.-~-~.--~~~..' 
Years with State Farm: 9+ 

SFPP #: Policy not on SFPP 

Limits 
90,800 

9,080 
49,940 

Actual Loss Sustained 
1,000,000 

500 
1,000 

The information on this document is presented for general informational 
purposes only and is not intended to serve as a declaration page or policy. 

State Farm Fire and Casualty Company, Bloomington, Illinois 



BID TABULATION SHEET 

Haybailing Lease for Property adjacent to the West easement of 
Indian Nation Turnpiks 

Bid Opening 

June 22, 2012,10:30 P.M. 

Bidder Amount 

~~ 



r:~,.~-.-

PROO~c~~er~~!!~~I~ATIONr4')'J5::\l1~0 
500 S. Second, McAlester, OK 74501 918-423-1700 J\) ~(,6\,\::\.~:S--->It 

I, Amy Johns, am of lawful age, being duly sworn upon oath, deposes and says: ,,:~ c\.\,;>~:.~'.:->-··/-
That I am publisher of McAlester News-Capital, a daily newspaper printed and pul5Hsrred in the City of 
McAlester, County of Pittsburg, and State of Oklahoma, and that the advertisement referred to, a true and 
printed copy is hereunto attached, was published in said McAlester News-Capital & in consecutive issues 
on the following dates to wit: 

1 st insertion ................. o/!.........................2012 


2nd Insertion ................... rlt....................2012 


3rd Insertion ............................................... 2012 


4th Insertion ............................................... 2012 


5th Insertion ............................................... 2012 


That said newspaper has been published con­
tinuously and uninterruptedly in said county dur­
ing a period one-hundred and four consecutive 
weeks prior to the publication of the attached 
notice or advertisement; that is has been admit­
ted to the United States mail as publications 
(second-class) mail matter, that it has a general 
paid circulation, and publishes news of general 
interest, and otherwise conforms with all of the 
statutes of the State of Oklahoma governing 
legal publications. 

Publication Fee ......................... 't'_~"'-"-'''''--'~ 


Publisher 

SUBSCRIBED and sworn to before me this 

g day _--,~-"""'-''--'-='--__, 

#00002414 
My Commission expires: 03/23/16 

2012. 


I (Published in the 
i McAlester News­

Cap/tal June 1 & 8, 
2012.) 

CITY OF 
MCALESTER 

The City of McAles­
ter is soliciting com­
petitive bids for the 
hay baling of approxi­
mately 115.11 acres 
of property which lies 
south of the C.R.I. 
and P. Railroad and 
S!ate Highway 31, to 
WIt: 

A tract, piece or 
parcel of land in the 
easterly part of Sec­
tion 9, T5N, R14E 
Pittsburg County: 
State of Oklahoma, 
located south of 
Highway 31 adjacent 
to th!3 west. side of 
the Indian Nation 
Turnpike. 

The terrn of this 
lease shall be 1m a 
period, of one year. 
Successful bidder 
shall agree to all 
terms and conditions 
of the Personal Serv­
ice Agreement. The 
bidder understands 
that this bid is only 
for the right to bale 
and sell hay on the 
property and no other 
rights' are granted or 
irnplied. Successful 
bidder must have lia­
bility insurance cov­
erage in the amount 
of $1,000,000.00. 

Sample of Personal 
Service Agreement 
rnay be obtained at 
the offic!') of the City 
of McAlester City
Clerk.. 

Sealed bids will be 
accepted at the Of­
fice ofth!3 City Clerk, 
Cora Middleton, City 
of 28 E. 

np .. later 
m .. June 

. .. ilufe to 
jh~ 

, 
Bid on 
It in dis­
Contact 

p$rS9rl;Qf:' this. bid is 
Glen' Kerns at 918­
421-4901. 

http:1,000,000.00


McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 


Meeting Date: July 10,2012 Item Number: 8 

Department: Public Works - Engineering 

Prepared By: John C. Modzelewski, PE Account Code: 

Date Prepared: July 2,2012 Budgeted Amount: N/A 

Exhibits: 

IIIIIIIImmrnm;IIIIIIII~_____________________ 
Consider, and Act Upon, a Pledge and Guarantee document which authorizes the annual renewal of the 
Participation Agreement with the Association for Landfill Financial Assurance. 

Recommendation 
Motion to approve the document and authorize the Mayor to sign after review and approval by City Attorney's 
Office. 

Discussion 
The City of McAlester is a member of the Association for Landfill Financial Assurance CALFA). This 
document renews the City's membership in ALFA for FY 2012-2013. Membership in ALFA fulfills the 
requirements of the Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality for financial assurance landfill closure and 
post-closure monitoring costs. 

Approved By 
Initial Date 

07/02112Department Head 
P. Stasiak 07/03112City Manager 



Exhibit B 

PLEDGE AND GUARANTEE 

WHEREAS, The City of McAlester (hereinafter "City") is the beneficial ovvner of a Municipal Solid 
Waste Landfill (hereinafter "MSWLF") owned and operated by the McAlester Public Works Authority 
(hereinafter "Trust"), and 

WHEREAS, The City and the Trust are required to comply with financial assurance requirements for 
the closure of its MSWLF and for post-closure care for thirty (30) years after closing the MSWLF pursuant to 
RCRA Subtitle D regulations and Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality rules and regulations, and 

WHEREAS, The City and the Trust are in compliance with the aforementioned rules, regulations and 
laws by its paliicipation as a member ofthe Association for Landfill Financial Assurance, an Oklahoma not for 
profit association (hereinafter "ALF A"), such entity being an approved mechanism under the laws of the state 
of Oklahoma for compliance with all financial assurance requirements, and 

WHEREAS, The City and the Trust are required pursuant to the ALF A Participation Agreement to 
annually reaffirm its membership and pledge and guarantee to provide funding for the closure and post-closure 
care costs which are currently unfunded, where current estimated closure and post-closure care costs less the 
current Escrow Balance equals, and is hereinafter referred to as, "Unfunded Costs." 

WHEREFORE, The City and the Trust hereby reaffirm and renew their membership in ALFA, (the City 
through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013), pursuant to the terms and covenants as contained in said 
Pmiicipation Agreement dated July 25, 1995, an original copy of which is on file in the offices of the Trust. 

WHEREFORE, both the City and Trust hereby pledge to pay any Unfunded Costs for the closure costs 
and post-closure care in he event its MSWLF should close or cease to operate prior to the time full funding has 
been accumulated in the ALFA Escrow Account according to the terms of the Participation Agreement. 

WHEREFORE, both the City and Trust further assign any proceeds of this pledge and guarantee to the 
ALF A, or its successors or assigns as security for the financial obligations of the City and Trust for closure and 
post-closure care of its MSWLF and the related obligations under law to the Oklahoma Department of 
Environmental Quality and/or the United States Environmental Protection Agency in the event the City or Trust 
fails to comply with applicable Federal and State laws for the closure and post -closure care ofthe MS W Facility. 

Dated this __ day of ______ _,2012. 

MAYOR 
Attest: 

_.__... _----------­
City Clerk 



i 

McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 


Meeting Date: 2012 Item Number: 9 


Department: _gi!yManager 


Prepared By: Peter J. Stasiak Account Code: 


Date Prepared: 2012 	 Budgeted Amount: 


Exhibits: 1 - Ordinance 


Subject 
Consider, and act upon, amending Solid Waste ordinance, Sec:i06-327 (b) to reflect a 2.5% increase from 

Allied in the commercial rates listed for FY 2012-2013. 


Recommendation 
Motion to approve the amending ordinance. 

Discussion 

See attached Ordinance. 

Approved By 
Initial 	 Date 

T. Ervin 	 7/2/2012Department Head 
P. Stasiak 	 7/2/2012

City Manager 

Page 1 of 1 



o R DIN A N C E N O. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 106, UTILITIES, ARTICLE IV. DIVISION 
2. MUNICIPAL COLLECTION SERVICE, SECTIONJ06-327 (b), CUARGES FOR 
REMOVAL OF PERMISSIBLE SOLID WASTE; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

************************************************************************* 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
McALESTER, that: 

SECTION 1: CHAPTER 106, UTILITIES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCE 
CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, IS HEREBY AMENDED TO READ AS 
FOLLOWS: 

DIVISION 2. MUNICIPAL COLLECTION SERVICE 

Chapter 106, Utilities, Article IV., Solid Waste, Division 2, Municipal Collection 
Service, Section 106-327 (b), Charges for Removal of Permissible Solid Waste: 

Sec. 106-327. Charges for removal of permissible solid waste. 

(b) 	 Business establislunents, industrial concerns and schools shall be charged 
on the basis of the schedule of minimum fees. 

Polycart 
2-yard dumpster 
2-yard dumpster 
2-yard dumpster 
2-yard dumpster 
2-yard dumpster 

dumpster 
dumpster 

4-yard dumpster 
4-yard dumpster 
4-yard dumpster 
4-yard dumpster 
4-yard dumpster 
4-yard dumpster 
4-yard dumpster 
6-yard dumpster 
6-yard dumpster 
6-yard dumpster 
6-yard dumpster 
6-yard dumpster 
6-yard dumpster 
6-yard dumpster 
8-yard dumpster 
8-yard dumpster 
8-yard dumpster 
8-yard dumpster 
8-yard dumpster 
8-yard dumpster 
8-yard dumpster 

1 pickup/week 
1 pickup/week 
2 pickups/week 
3 pickups/week 
4 pickups/week 
5 pickups/week 
6 pickups/week 
7 pickups/week 
1 pickup/week 
2 pickups/week 
3 pickups/week 
4 pickups/week 
5 pickups/week 
6 pickups/week 
7 pickups/week 
1 pickup/week 
2 pickups/week 
3 pickups/week 
4 pickups/week 
5 pickups/week 
6 pickups/week 
7 pickups/week 
1 pickup/week 
2 pickups/week 
3 pickups/week 
4 pickups/week 
5 pickups/week 
6 pickups/week 
7 pickups/week 

~g 

J9.67 
~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 

~ 

24+.-6+ 
~ 

~ 
2+J"{){} 
~ 
3-§-!-;{}6 

4ftOO 
4&9±) 
~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 
~ 
fu!9A}G 
Hb99 
~ 

~3~ 

4ftOO 
*9,66 
~ 

~ 

~ 

/month 
40.66 /month 
76.19 Imonth 

111.73 Imonth 
Imonth 
Imonth 
Imonth 
Imonth 

76.19 /month 
147.26 /month 
218.33 /month 

/month 
/month 
/month 
/month 

111.73 /month 
218.33 Imonth 
324.93 /month 

/month 
/month 
Imonth 
/month 

147.26 /month 
289.39 /month 
431.53 /month 

/month 
Imonth 
/month 

1,000.05 Imonth 



2 

SECTION 2: EMERGENCY CLAUSE. 

That an emergency is hereby declared to exist for the preservation of the public 
peace, health and by reason whereof it is necessary that this Act take effect 
immediately and be in full torce and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

PASSED and the EMERGENCY CLAUSE ruled on separately this day of l1!ly, 

CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA 
A Municipal Corporation 

SEAL) 

Steve Harrison, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

Approved as to form and legality this 10th day of JUly, 2012. 

By ______ 

Joe Ervin, City Attorney 




McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 


Meeting Date: Item Number: 10 


Department: 


Prepared By: Peter Stasiak Account Code: 


Date Prepared: 2012 Budgeted Amount: Unbudgeted 


Exhibits: 

Recommendation 
Motion to approve Exhibit (A) or Exhibit (B) for a sewer main extension to serve the South Side of US 69 
Bypass. 

Discussion 
The City of McAlester has an economic development project adjacent to the US 69 Bypass. This project is to 
include boring under the highway, sewer pipe installation and installing sewer manholes. Two exhibits have 
been attached for discussion and consideration. 

Approved By 

Department Head 
Peter 

Initial Date 

July 10,2012 

Page 1 of 1 



Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 

..~ City of McAlester 

71312012BRAWLEY 
THE >·1 1i'-JL , Page 1 of 1R[:;E:n FI EY f,t'-lc;rNFLF?ri-.Jf3 

Sewer Main Extension to Serve Property on South Side of Highway 69 


Option A: Sewer Main Extension from Choctaw Health Clinic Driveway on 69 Access Road 


i Item Description Unit Qty Unit Price Total Price I 

I 1 10" PVC (SDR-26) Sanitary Sewer 
Linear 
Feet 

500 $ 70.00 $ 35,000.00 

2 4' Diameter Standard Sanitary Sewer Manhole Each 6 $ 4,000.00 $ 24,000.00 

3 
Bore & 16" Steel Encasement (0.375" Wall) on grade 
including 10" PVC (SDR-26) Restrained Joint Carrier Pipe 

Linear 
Feet 

350 $ 330.00 $ 115,500.00 

4 Connection to Existing Manhole Each 1 $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 I 

5 Project Contingency 
Lump 
Sum $ 

I 
17,800.00 

Construction Total $ 193,800.00 i 

Engineering Fee, Based on Fee Curve $ 21,500.00 I 

Resident Project Representative Fee, Based on Fee Curve $ 8,200.00 
Surveying Fee $ 1,500.00 

Easement Acquisition including surveying and legal expenses $ 7,500.00 
ODEQ Permit $ 500.00 

Total Project Cost $ 233,000.00 
The costs shown are estimated costs and represent our best judgment: however these estimated costs are not guarantees that the actual costs will not vary 
from these estimated costs. 

http:233,000.00
http:7,500.00
http:1,500.00
http:8,200.00


Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 

-~ 
 City of McAlester 

7/3/2012
~ BRAWLEY 

~~-------,--,-4ERGir-iG UF ['.;r-':3, 
FlIU/, - RF?.f.... WLFY f:::'-lt31t'-..lEEf0:lt"1r:: Page 1 of 1 

Sewer Main Extension to Serve Property on South Side of Highway 69 

Option B: Sewer Main Extension from 14th Street 

Item Description Unit Qty Unit Price Total Price 

Linear
1 8" PVC (SDR-26) Sanitary Sewer 1,875 $ 65.00 $ 121,875.00

Feet 

2 4' Diameter Standard Sanitary Sewer Manhole Each 8 $ 4,000.00 $ 32,000.00 

Bore & 16" Steel Encasement (0.375" Wall) on grade Linear
3 350 $ 325.00 $ 113,750.00

including 8" PVC (SDR-26) Restrained Joint Carrier Pipe Feet 

4 Connection to Existing Manhole Each 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 

Lump
5 Project Contingency $ 27,525.00

Sum 
Construction Total $ 296,650.00 

Engineering Fee, Based on Fee Curve $ 30,400.00 
Resident Project Representative Fee, Based on Fee Curve $ 11,300.00 

Surveying Fee $ 1,500.00 
Easement Acquisition including surveying and legal expenses $ 7,500.00 

ODEQ Permit $ 650.00 
Total Project Cost $ 348,000.00 

The costs shown are estimated costs and represent our best judgment; however these estimated costs are not guarantees that the actual costs will not vary 
from these estimated costs, 

http:348,000.00
http:7,500.00
http:1,500.00
http:11,300.00
http:30,400.00
http:296,650.00
http:27,525.00
http:1,500.00
http:1,500.00
http:113,750.00
http:32,000.00
http:4,000.00
http:121,875.00


7'l!."t ). 

lin 

Job: XX-XX-XX 

NR5. INC----_ 
ENGINEERING CGRP. EXHIBIT A 

719 GEORGE NIGH EXPRESSWAY, ,,jCAL£STER, 01(. 

Oo1a 
"'0'''0·5500 "'8)420'S50' fAX SEWER IMPROVEMENTS 

.. __ .~ 10F2 ~ 



Notea 

L....l 

MEHLBURGER BRAWLEY 
-----11;< OF NRS, lNC-----· 
THE MEHL8URGER - BRAWLEY FNGINEERINO CORP. 

719 S. 	GldJRSE NIGH EXPIU.SSWAY, MGALESH.R, U'::. 74<;01 

[!!'iI014:m-5500 !91fI:J42QS501 ~AX 

" 

/~o 
.;?~ 

"!C/x::w>-;/ 
( 

9'78-JI~\ 

~f3,z6 

,.. 'aNGLEWOOD 
~...... . 

7~(.h ) 
/e 


// 


THIS DOCUMENT
CITY or MCALESTER 	 IS PRELIMINARY 

IN NATURE AND
MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA 	 EXHIBIT B IS NOT A Dolo: JULY 2012 

SIGNED &SEWER IMPROVEMENTS DOCUMENT Shool: 2 or 2 



Council Chambers 
Municipal Building 
June 26, 2012 

The McAlester Airp0l1 Authority met in a Regular session on Tuesday, June 26, 2012, at 
6:00 P.M. after proper notice and agenda was posted June25 2012. 

Present: 	 Weldon Smith, Travis Read, Robert Karr, Buddy Garvin, Sam Mason & 
Steve Harrison 

Absent: 	 None 
Presiding: 	 Steve Harrison, Chairman 

A motion was made by Mr. Karr and seconded by Mr. Garvin to approve the following: 

• 	 Approval of the Minutes from the June 12, 2012 Regular Meeting of the 
McAlester Airport Authority. (Cora Middleton, CZ<ry Clerk) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B, regarding claims ending 
June 19,2012. (Toni ChiefFinandalOJlicer) In the amount of $730.41. 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item D, Ratify and approve a one 
year Financial Advisor Services Agreement between Municipal Finance Services, 
Inc. and the City of McAlester. (Cora Middleton, Ciry Clerk) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item E, Ratify and approve a one 
year agreement between the Public Finance Law Group and the City of 
McAlester, Oklahoma to engage as bond counsel for the purposes of consultation 
on any contemplated financing which the City or the Authority may undertake. 
(peter J. Stasiak, Ciry lvianager) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item Ratify and approve a one 
year Lease No. DTFA07-97-L-01137, Outer Marker, (OM) Site and Aceess Road, 
McAlester Municipal Airport, between The United States of America and the City 
ofMcAlester, Oklahoma. (Cora MJddleton, Ciry Clerk) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item H, authorizing the Mayor to 
sign a City County Agreement for a Joint Civil Defense/Emergency Management 
Administration between the Board of County Commissioners of Pittsburg County 
of Oklahoma and the City of McAlester. (peter]. Stasiak, Ciry JI,lanager) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item I, authorizing the Mayor to 
sign a contract between the City of McAlester Public Works Project and the 



Oklahoma Department of Corrections (Prisoners Public Works). (Peter]. Stasiak, 
City Managet) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item L, authorizing the Mayor to 
sign an Equipment Maintenance Agreement between the City of McAlester and 
BizTel Business Telephone Systems for July 1,2012 through June 30, 2013. (No 
increase in service rates - same as last year.) (Peter]. Stasiak, City Manager) 

Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item Resolution to adopt the • 
McAlester Master Trails Plan. 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 3, 
a) Presentation of the City of McAlester Financial Report ending May 31, 

201 	 (Toni Ervin, Chi~IFinandal Officer) 

b) 	 Accept and place on file the presentation of the City of McAlester 
Financial Report ending May 31, 2012. 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 4, an award bid to Total 
Investment Company for future construction of FAA AlP 3-40-0057-011 & 012­
2011 and OAC Project #MLCC-12-75 at McAlester Regional Airport. This 
project is to improve safety area, remove obstruction and improve runway 
obstacle free area. (Mel Pridqy, Community Stroices Dim/or) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 6, approval of On-site 
shredding agreement with Shred-it for automatic monthly shredding service at 
City HalL (Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Trustees Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith, Read, & Chairman Harrison 
NAY: None 

Chainnan Harrison declared the motion carried. 

There being no further business to corne before the Authority, Mr. Karr moved for the 
meeting to be adjourned, seconded by Mr. Garvin. 

There was no discussion and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Trustees Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith, Read, & Chainnan Harrison 
NAY: None 

2 



Chairman Harrison declared the motion carried. 

ATTEST: Steve Harrison, Chairman 

Cora Middleton, Secretary 

3 



Council Chambers 
Municipal Building 
June 26, 2012 

The McAlester Public Works Authority met in a Regular session on Tuesday, June 26, 2012, at 
6:00 P.M. after proper notice and agenda was posted June 25,2012. 

Present: Weldon Smith, Travis Read, Robert Karr, Buddy Garvin, Sam Mason & Steve 
Harrison 

Absent: None 
Presiding: Steve Harrison, Chairman 

A motion was made by Mr. Read and seconded by Mr. Smith to approve the following: 

• 	 Approval of the Minutes from the June 12, 2012 Regular Meeting of the McAlester 
Public Works Authority (Cora Middleton, Cz!J Clerk) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B, regarding claims ending June 19, 
2012. (Toni EnJin, CbiejrznandalOfficer) In the amount of $214,536.30. 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item D, Ratify and approve a one year 
Financial Advisor Services Agreement between Municipal Finance Services, Ine. and the 
City of McAlester. (Cora j\liddleton, City Clerk) 

• 	 Confirm aetion taken on City Council Agenda Item E, Ratify and approve a one year 
agreement between the Public Finance Law Group and the City of McAlester, Oklahoma 
to engage as bond counsel for the purposes of consultation on any contemplated 
financing which the City or the Authority may undertake. (peter]. Stasiak, City Manago:) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item F, Ratify and approve a one year 
Lease No. DTFA07-97-L-Ol137, Outer Marker, (OM) Site and Access Road, McAlester 
Municipal AirpOli , between The United States of America and the City of McAlester, 
Oklahoma. (Cora lvIiddleton, City Clerk) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item H, authorizing the Mayor to sign a 
City County Agreement for a Joint Civil Defense/Emergency Management 
Administration between the Board of County Commissioners of Pittsburg County of 
Oklahoma and the City of McAlester. (peter]. Stasiak, City Manager) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item J, authorizing the Mayor to sign a 
contract between the City of McAlester Public Works Project and the Oklahoma 
Department of Corrections (Prisoners Public Works). (peter]. Stasiak, Ci!J Manager) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item L, authorizing the Mayor to sign an 
Equipment Maintenance Agreement between the City of McAlester and BizTel Business 

http:214,536.30


Telephone Systems for July 1,2012 through June 30, 2013. (No increase in service rates 
- same as last year.) (Peter]. Stasiak, G!y l'vlanagei) 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 2, Resolution to adopt the McAlester 
Master Trails Plan. 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 3, 
a) Presentation of the City of McAlester Financial Report ending May 31, 2012. 

(foni Ervin, Chirj'FinanciaIOjjicer) 

b) 	 Accept and place on file the presentation of the City of McAlester Financial 
Report ending May 31, 2012. 

o 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 5, a request from Allied 
Waste/Republic Services increasing the solid waste collection rate for Residential 
customers by 2.5% based on the increase in the CPI for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical 
Workers "All Items Index" Midwest Region, Size Class D (50,000 or less) and the U.S. 
City Average, other Motor Fuels as of April 2012. 

• 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 6, approval of On-site shredding 
agreement with Shred-it for automatic monthly shredding service at City Hall. (Cora 
J\!Iz'ddleton, Gty Clerk) 

o 	 Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 8, First Amendment to the 
Participation Agreement with the Association for Landfill Financial Assurance. John C 
Modzelewski, P.E., Gty Engineering and Public Works, Director) 

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Trustees Smith, Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason & Harrison 
NAY: None 

Chairman Harrison declared the motion carried. 

There being no further business to come before the Authority, Mr. Read moved for the meeting 
to be adjourned, seconded by Mr. Smith. There was no discussion and the vote was taken as 
follows: 

AYE: 	 Trustees Smith, Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason & Harrison 
NAY: None 

Chairman Harrison declared the motion carried. 

ATTEST: Steve Harrison, Chairman 

Cora Middleton, Secretary 

2 


	Agenda City Council Regular Session, July 10, 2012

	Item A, Minutes City Council Special Session, June 19, 2012 
	Item B, Claims from June 20, 2012 thru July 3, 2012 
	Item C, Ratify Lease Purchase agreements No. 132 and 137

	Item D, Agreement with American Red Cross

	Item E, Contract with Kiamichi Area Nutrition Project

	Item F, Division order with PetroQuest

	Item G, Contract with Robinson International

	Item H, 2011-2012 Collective bargaining atgreement with IAFF

	Item 1, Budget amendment FY2011-2012

	Item 2, Budget amendment for FY2012-2013 
	Item 3, Declaring certain vehicles and equipment surplus property

	Item 4, Declaring certain buildings dilapidated

	Item 5, Funding for McAlester Main Street

	Item 6, Discussion on funding for major street improvements

	Item 7, Personal Services Agreement for haybailing

	Item 8, Participation Agreement with ALFA

	Item 9, Amending Solid Waste ordinance

	Item 10, Sewer main extension south side US 69 Bypass

	Minutes McAlester Airport Authority Regular Session, June 26, 2012

	Minutes McAelster Public Works Authority Regular Session, June 26, 2012


